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A woman sells snacks in Guatemala City. 
The Carter Center works in the country 
to assist women and young people in 
accessing government information.
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OVERVIEW
The Carter Center was founded by former U.S. President Jimmy Carter and 
his wife, Rosalynn, in 1982. A nongovernmental organization, the Center 
has helped to advance peace and health in more than 85 countries.

KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS
• �Leading an eradication campaign that 

has reduced incidence of Guinea worm 
disease from an estimated 3.5 million 
human cases a year in 1986 to just 14 
in 2023

• �Observing 115 elections in 40 countries 
to help establish and strengthen 
democracies

• �Furthering avenues to peace in 
Ethiopia, Eritrea, Nepal, Liberia, Sudan, 
South Sudan, Uganda, Mali, the 
Korean Peninsula, Haiti, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina, Syria, and the Middle East

• �Strengthening international standards 
for human rights and the voices of 
individuals defending those rights in 
their communities worldwide

• �Pioneering new public health 
approaches to preventing or controlling 
devastating neglected tropical 
diseases in Africa and Latin America, 

The Carter Center

At a Glance

including establishing village-based 
health interventions in thousands 
of communities across Africa

• �Advancing efforts to improve mental 
health care and diminish stigma against 
people with mental illnesses in the 
United States and globally

DONATIONS
The Center received $380 million 
in cash, pledges, and in-kind gifts in 
2022–2023. The Center is a 501(c)(3) 
charitable organization, financed by 
private donations from individuals, 
foundations, corporations, governments, 
and international development assistance 
agencies. Contributions by U.S. citizens 
and companies are tax-deductible as 
allowed by law.

STAFF
Approximately 275 employees at Atlanta 
headquarters and more than 3,300 
in country offices around the world
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The Carter Center is guided by the 
principles of our founders, Jimmy 
and Rosalynn Carter. Founded, in 
partnership with Emory University, on 
a fundamental commitment to human 
rights and the alleviation of human 
suffering, the Center seeks to prevent 
and resolve conflicts, enhance freedom 
and democracy, and improve health.

The Center believes that people can improve their 
own lives when provided with the necessary skills, 
knowledge, and access to resources.

The Center emphasizes action and measurable 
results in the lives of the people it seeks to help.

The Center values the courage to break new ground, 
fill vacuums, and address the most difficult problems 
in the most difficult situations.

The Center recognizes that solving difficult problems 
requires careful analysis, relentless persistence, and 
the recognition that failure is an acceptable risk.

The Center is nonpartisan, and it seeks to work 
collaboratively with other organizations from the 
highest levels of government to local communities.

Our Mission
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A mother and three children shop 
at a town in Imo state, Nigeria. The 
Carter Center is currently fighting three 
parasitic diseases in the country: river 
blindness, lymphatic filariasis, and 
schistosomiasis.
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Jason Carter

Paige Alexander

The last year brought profound changes for The Carter Center. We bade farewell to 
beloved co-founder Rosalynn Carter in November. Just a few weeks earlier, we celebrated 
co-founder and former U.S. President Jimmy Carter’s 99th birthday. (For Jason, of 
course, these events were personal. He celebrated his grandfather’s long life and his 
grandmother’s passing.)

As tributes for both President and Mrs. Carter poured in, we were again reminded of 
the impact their lives have had on people around the world —  

from leaders to everyday citizens. You celebrated them with us, for theirs is a 
legacy worth celebrating.

Through their many achievements, the Carters personify empathy in 
action, support for human rights, compassion for caregivers and people 
with mental illnesses, the pursuit of peace, defense of democracy, elimina-
tion of diseases, and so much more.
As President Bill Clinton said in 1999 when he awarded them the 

Presidential Medal of Freedom, “Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter have done more 
good things for more people in more places than any other couple on the face 

of the Earth.”
Now all of us — at The Carter Center and beyond — carry the torch they have passed to us.
At The Carter Center, we are moving forward boldly because Jimmy and Rosalynn 

Carter positioned us to do so. They created a strong organization that, while built upon 
its founders’ principles, is not dependent on their active involvement.

In 2023, the Center observed three elections, Mali eliminated trachoma as a public 
health problem, a new cohort of Rosalynn Carter journalism fellows started work, and 
12 more cities joined the Center’s global Inform Women, Transform Lives project.

Great swaths of Nigeria and Uganda are now free of river blindness transmission; 
lymphatic filariasis is on its way out in the Dominican Republic and Haiti; and we are 
working to ensure honest, fair, and violence-free elections in the United States.

All the progress you will find in this report is inspired by Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter 
and made possible by your support. Our founders created this marvelous organization, 
and we know we can count on you to keep it charging into the future with the lofty goals 
they envisioned.

Jason Carter 	 Paige Alexander 
Chairman	 Chief Executive Officer 
Board of Trustees

Jason Carter

Paige Alexander

From the Chairman & the CEO

A Legacy Worth Celebrating
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In November 2023, The Carter Center lost one of 
its founders, former U.S. First Lady Rosalynn Carter. 
The outpouring of tributes from national leaders and 
the public showed the profound impact Mrs. Carter 

had in the United States and around the world. 

Just a few weeks earlier, on Oct. 1, 2023, the Center 
celebrated the 99th birthday of its other founder, former 

U.S. President Jimmy Carter. The Center received messages 
from people far and wide, praising his life of public service.

With this special section, we pay tribute to the incredible 
achievements of both Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter, as 

U.S. leaders and as founders of The Carter Center.
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Jimmy Carter is known as a man of high principle, steadfast integrity, and deep 
religious faith who has dedicated his life to public service. As private citizen and 
public official he has pursued the causes of human rights, peace, and care for 
the least fortunate with passionate resolve and boundless energy.

Throughout his life, he repeatedly has placed what he believes to be right above 
personal and political considerations. Underneath his quiet voice and ready smile is a bulldog determination and an 
aversion to compromise on matters of principle.

Humble Beginnings
Jimmy Carter (James Earl Carter, Jr.) 
was born Oct. 1, 1924, in the small 
farming town of Plains, Georgia, and 
grew up in the nearby community 
of Archery. His father, James Earl 
Carter, Sr., was a farmer and busi-
nessman; his mother, Lillian Gordy 
Carter, a registered nurse.

He was educated in the public 
school of Plains, attended Georgia 
Southwestern College and the 
Georgia Institute of Technology, 
and received a B.S. degree from 
the United States Naval Academy 
in 1946. In the Navy he became 
a submariner, serving in both the 
Atlantic and Pacific fleets and rising 
to the rank of lieutenant. Chosen 
by Admiral Hyman Rickover for the 
nuclear submarine program, he was 
assigned to Schenectady, New York, 
where he took graduate work at 
Union College in reactor technology 

and nuclear physics and served as 
senior officer of the pre-commis-
sioning crew of the Seawolf, the 
second nuclear submarine.

On July 7, 1946, he married 
Rosalynn Smith of Plains. When 
his father died in 1953, he resigned 
his naval commission and returned 
with his family to Georgia. He 
took over the Carter farms, and 
he and Rosalynn operated Carter’s 
Warehouse, a general-purpose seed 
and farm supply company in Plains. 
He quickly became a leader of the 
community, serving on county 
boards supervising education, the 
hospital authority, and the library. In 
1962 he won election to the Georgia 
Senate. He lost his first gubernatorial 
campaign in 1966, but won the next 
election, becoming Georgia’s 76th 
governor on Jan. 12, 1971. He was 
the Democratic National Committee 
campaign chairman for the 1974 
congressional and gubernatorial 
elections.

In 1928, the Carter family moved to a 
350-acre farm in the tiny community 
of Archery, Georgia. A young Jimmy 
Carter is pictured here atop his 

Shetland pony.

At Jimmy Carter’s 
graduation from the 
Naval Academy on 
June 5, 1946, his mother, 
Miss Lillian, and his 
fiancée, Rosalynn 
Smith, pin epaulets on 
Ensign Carter, with his 
father, Earl Carter, in 
the background.

Jimmy Carter became Georgia’s 76th 
governor on Jan. 12, 1971, tackling 
disorganization and waste in state 
government, improving race relations, 
opening state jobs to African 
Americans, achieving tax reform, and 
reforming the state prison system.
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Former First Lady Rosalynn Carter’s marriage to Jimmy Carter took her 
from a rural farming community to the White House. Showing the world a 
new vision of the First Lady, Mrs. Carter was a working partner and trusted 
advisor to the president, a participant in foreign and domestic affairs, and 

an astute political strategist. Widely recognized as the nation’s foremost 
advocate for mental health, she was actively devoted to building a more caring society.

The Early 
Years
She was born 
Eleanor Rosalynn 
Smith on August 
18, 1927, in 
Plains, Georgia, 
daughter of 
Wilburn Edgar 
Smith, a farmer 
who also owned 
and operated the 
first auto shop 
in the county, and 
Frances Allethea 
Murray, a college 
graduate and homemaker. As a 
child, she was shaped by strong 
religious and family values and an 
early acceptance of hard work and 
responsibility.

In 1946, she married Jimmy 
Carter, who had just graduated from 
the U.S. Naval Academy. Mrs. Carter 
described her years as a Navy wife as 
a coming of age in which she devel-
oped the self-confidence to manage a 
household with three babies on her 
own while her husband worked and 
was often aboard ship.

After Carter left the Navy and 
returned home to run the family 
business, Rosalynn began working 
alongside her husband, keeping the 
books for the farms and the farm 
supply business. During Carter’s 
contentious 1962 race for the state 
Senate, she received her first taste 
of politics.

Though shy 
about public 
speaking, she 
became fully 
engaged in subse-
quent campaigns 
for his re-election 
and his bids 
for governor in 
1966 and 1970. 
She campaigned 
full time on a 
separate schedule 
in the 1976 and 
1980 presidential 
races.

As Georgia’s 
First Lady, Mrs. Carter led a 
passionate fight against the stigma 
of mental illnesses and worked to 
overhaul the state’s mental health 
care system. Her obligations in the 
governor’s mansion also called for 

entertaining visiting officials and 
diplomats, serving as liaison to civic 
groups, and using her influence as 
a public figure to advance immu-
nizations of children and other 
charitable causes. 

This photo was taken on July 7, 1946, when 
Rosalynn Smith and Jimmy Carter were married in 
Plains, Georgia.

Many said Rosalynn Carter was Jimmy Carter’s best 
campaign asset in races for state Senate, governor of 
Georgia, and the U.S. presidency. Here they celebrate his 
1970 election win to become Georgia’s 76th governor.

Rosalynn and Jimmy Carter had four 
children. Jack, Chip, and Jeff Carter were 
born while the Carters were stationed in 
different Navy ports. Amy was born in 1967, 
after the family had moved back to Plains, 
Georgia. This photo of Mrs. Carter with Amy 
is circa 1970.
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ONE POWERFUL PAIR 
As equal partners, Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter achieved more 
than either could have done alone. 
Each achieved great things individ-
ually, but the dynamic combination 
of their talents, skills, and passions 
was a force multiplier. 

Here is just a sample of their 
many accomplishments:

• �In the White House, they worked 
to find solutions for the nation’s 
challenges. Mrs. Carter attended 
Cabinet meetings and advised 

President Carter on important 
policy issues. Both as governor 
of Georgia and as president, he 
named her to lead mental health 
reform efforts.

• �They elevated the role of First 
Lady to a position of conse-
quence. Mrs. Carter was the first 
presidential spouse to have an 
office in the White House, where 
she managed a staff and engaged 
in substantive matters. 

• �They fought for women’s rights. 
Mrs. Carter was a champion of 

the Equal Rights Amendment, and 
President Carter named a record 
number of women to Cabinet posi-
tions and federal judgeships. 

• �They engaged in diplomacy that 
promoted human rights, peace, 
and justice. President Carter 
deputized Mrs. Carter in 1977 to 
represent the United States on 
an unprecedented tour of Central 
and South American countries. 

• �In their post-presidency, they 
created The Carter Center and 
developed it into the effective 

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue
While assuming the traditional 
demands of presidential wife and 
official White House hostess, Mrs. 
Carter worked tirelessly to create 
what she described as “a more caring 
society.” As a result of her singular 
tenacity and Southern gentleness, she 
was dubbed the “steel magnolia.”

Early in 1977, she became the 
honorary chair of the President’s 
Commission on Mental Health, 
holding hearings across the country, 

testifying before 
Congress, and 
spearheading 
passage of the 
Mental Health 
Systems Act of 
1980. 

She traveled 
extensively over-
seas, promoting 
both her own 
projects and 
the president’s 
policies. In a 

history-making trip to Latin America in 1977, she repre-
sented the U.S. government and visited with heads of 
state from seven Latin American countries. In Geneva, 
Switzerland, she became the first First Lady to address 
the World Health Organization.

Immunizing children against preventable disease was 
a special focus of Mrs. Carter’s throughout her entire 
public service career. As governors’ spouses, Mrs. Carter 
and Betty Bumpers of Arkansas worked together in their 
respective states to promote vaccinations.

Rosalynn Carter was a strong proponent of the Equal 
Rights Amendment. On the right is former First Lady Betty 
Ford at the National Women’s Conference in support of the 
ERA in November 1977.

Rosalynn Carter testifies on behalf of the President’s 
Commission on Mental Health before the Senate 
Subcommittee on Health and Scientific Research of the 

Committee on Labor and Human 
Resources on Feb. 7, 1979. She was 
the second First Lady to appear 
before Congress.
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organization it is today. For decades, both Carters 
were deeply involved in the overall direction and 
daily operation of the Center, which continues to 
carry out their vision for a better, healthier, more 
just world. 

• �They traveled to dozens of countries to observe 
elections and campaign against neglected tropical 
diseases. Both President and Mrs. Carter could be 
seen side by side watching voters exercise their 
rights, pressing heads of state to do right by their 
citizens, and visiting with marginalized people 
around the globe.

Together, Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter made a 
formidable team.

President and Mrs. Carter travel by train to Alexandria, Egypt, 
during a trip to the Middle East in March 1979. 

Jimmy Carter was sworn in as president of the United 
States on Jan. 20, 1977, by Supreme Court Chief Justice 
Warren Burger.

In September 1978, Jimmy Carter negotiated the Camp 
David Accords, which created a framework for a peace 
agreement in the Middle East. Pictured are Egypt 
President Anwar Sadat, President Carter, and Israel 
Prime Minister Menachem Begin at the March 26, 1979, 
White House signing of the resulting Israel-Egypt peace 

treaty that began an era of lasting peace between the 
two nations. 

On to the 
White House

On Dec. 12, 
1974, Jimmy Carter 

announced his candidacy for president of the United 
States. He won his party’s nomination on the first ballot 
at the 1976 Democratic National Convention and was 
elected president on Nov. 2, 1976.

Jimmy Carter served as president from Jan. 20, 1977, to 
Jan. 20, 1981. Significant foreign policy accomplishments 

of his administration included the Panama Canal treaties, 
the Camp David Accords, the treaty of peace between 
Egypt and Israel, the SALT II treaty with the Soviet Union, 
and the establishment of U.S. diplomatic relations with 
the People’s Republic of China. He championed human 
rights throughout the world. 

On the domestic side, the administration’s achieve-
ments included a comprehensive energy program 
conducted by a new Department of Energy; deregulation 
in energy, transportation, communications, and finance; 
major educational programs under a new Department 
of Education; and major environmental protection 
legislation, including the Alaska National Interest Lands 
Conservation Act, which doubled the size of the national 
park system and tripled the wilderness areas.
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The Carter Center and Beyond
In 1982, he became University Distinguished Professor at 
Emory University in Atlanta, Georgia, and 
with Rosalynn Carter founded The Carter 
Center. The nonpartisan and nonprofit 
Center addresses national and international 
issues of public policy. Carter Center staff 
and associates have joined with President 
Carter in efforts to resolve conflict, 
promote democracy, protect human rights, 
and prevent disease and other afflictions. 
The Center has spearheaded the interna-
tional effort to eradicate Guinea worm 
disease, which is poised to be the second 
human disease in history to be eradicated.

The Carter Presidential Center was dedi-
cated in October 1986 and includes the 
Jimmy Carter Library and Museum, admin-
istered by the National Archives. Also open 
to visitors is the Jimmy Carter National 
Historical Park in Plains, administered by 
the National Park Service.

For many years, President Carter taught Sunday school 
in the Maranatha Baptist Church of Plains. The Carters 
have three sons, one daughter, and 12 grandchildren 
(one deceased).

On Dec. 10, 2002, the Norwegian Nobel Committee 
awarded the Nobel Peace Prize for 2002 to Jimmy Carter 
“for his decades of untiring effort to find peaceful 
solutions to international conflicts, to advance democ-
racy and human rights, and to promote economic and 
social development.”

Jimmy Carter consoles a young patient having a worm removed from her 
body in Savelugu, Ghana, in February 2007. The Carter Center leads the 

international campaign to eradicate Guinea worm disease.

Jimmy Carter and then-North Korea President Kim Il-Sung met in 
Pyongyang in 1994 for talks resulting in an eight-year freeze of North 
Korea's nuclear weapons program.

In 2002, Jimmy Carter was awarded 
the Nobel Peace Prize. In his 
acceptance remarks in Oslo, Norway, 
President Carter said: “War may 
sometimes be a necessary evil. But 
no matter how necessary, it is always 
an evil, never a good.” 

12



An Enduring Legacy
After what she called “involuntary retirement” 
to Plains in 1981, her working relationship with 
her husband expanded. In 1982, they together 
founded The Carter Center in Atlanta, a nongov-
ernmental organization dedicated to improving 
the quality of life for people at home and in the 
developing world through programs to alleviate 
suffering and advance human rights. 

As emissaries for the Center, the Carters circled 
the globe many times on nonpolitical campaigns 
to eradicate Guinea worm disease and other 
neglected tropical diseases, increase agricultural 
production in Africa, monitor elections in nascent 
democracies, urge greater compliance with interna-
tional human rights standards, and resolve conflicts. 

She established the Carter Center’s Mental Health 
Program to continue her work to combat stigma and 
discrimination against people with mental illnesses and 
promote improved mental health care in the United 
States and abroad. 

In 1987, Mrs. Carter founded the Rosalynn Carter 
Institute for Caregivers at Georgia Southwestern State 
University to support those who selflessly care for others 

and build on her belief that “there are only four kinds 
of people in this world: those who have been caregivers, 
those who are currently caregivers, those who will be 
caregivers, and those who will need caregivers.”

Mrs. Carter died at home in Plains, Ga., on Nov. 19, 
2023. Asked once how she would like to be remembered, 
she said, “I would like for people to think that I took 
advantage of the opportunities I had and did the best 
I could.”

Mrs. Carter observes voting at an Indonesian polling station 
in June 1999 during the nation’s first genuinely democratic 
legislative elections, which were monitored by The Carter Center.

President and Mrs. Carter receive the Presidential Medal 
of Freedom from President Bill Clinton at a ceremony at 
The Carter Center on Aug. 9, 1999.

Mrs. Carter addresses participants in the 2006 Rosalynn 
Carter Symposium on Mental Health Policy at The Carter 
Center in Atlanta.
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A voter deposits her ballot during 
elections in Tunisia. The Carter 
Center has observed six elections in 
the country, beginning in 2011. PE
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An election worker in Sierra 
Leone staffs a voting station.

A DUBIOUS ELECTION IN SIERRA LEONE
The Center has played a role in all of Sierra Leone’s 
elections since 2002, when the country emerged from 
civil war. In June of last year, the Center returned to 
observe elections, but, unfortunately, transparency 
problems cast doubt on the credibility of the results.

On election day, Carter Center observers were able 
to watch voting at 119 polling stations in every district 
of the country. Voters waited patiently in long lines, 
and observers later monitored the slow but properly 
executed counting process. Carter Center representa-
tives were the only observers present at the tabulation 
center in the capital, Freetown, where they saw 

Election Commission staff tampering with ballot boxes. 
“It’s highly unusual for The Carter Center to be eyewit-
ness to such a serious infraction,” said the Center’s 
Nicholas Jahr.

As the tabulation process continued and irregulari-
ties mounted, the Center issued a series of statements 
calling for greater transparency and urging voters to 
remain patient while awaiting results. Ultimately, the 
ruling party candidate was declared the winner, but 
The Carter Center questions whether the will of the 
people was realized.

PEACE PROGRAMS
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Democracy Program
The Carter Center observed elections 
in 2023 in Tunisia, Sierra Leone, 
Zimbabwe, and the Democratic 
Republic of the Congo (DRC) and 
sent an expert mission to Liberia. 
The Center also supported citizen 
observation efforts in DRC, Liberia, 
and Zimbabwe. Building on work 
aimed at advancing the participation 
of women and youth in Zambia, 
the Center hosted an inclusive 
democracy event in Lusaka to foster 
collaboration. At the event, the 
Center released a new edition of its 
Election Obligations and Standards 
manual, which provides a framework 
for assessing the democratic nature of 
elections, based on international stan-
dards rooted in human rights. The 
Center announced a partnership to 
promote transparent and trustworthy 
electoral processes in the U.S. The 
alliance aims to strengthen the core 
values of democracy and electoral 
integrity as defined in the Candidate 
Principles for Trusted Elections, a 
national, cross-partisan effort co-led 
by The Carter Center and the Gerald 
R. Ford Presidential Foundation and 
supported by over 70 organizations 
across the country.

Conflict Resolution 
Program
Following U.N. peacekeeping forces’ 
withdrawal, the Center completed its 
role as the Independent Observer of 
Mali’s peace agreement. The Peace 
Through Health initiative made 
significant strides in central Mali, 
implementing health initiatives and 
a mental health and psychosocial 
project that actively contributed to 
peacebuilding efforts. Despite a new 
war in Sudan, the Center continued 
the Youth Citizen Observer Network, 
which represents 7,000 youth groups 
and plays a key role for Sudanese and 
peace negotiators by serving as an 
educator, representative, and watchdog. 
In Israel-Palestine, the Center is 
supporting solutions to the crisis that 
began Oct. 7 and engaging youth 
on advocacy projects. In Syria, The 
Carter Center is marrying research and 
analysis with support to negotiations 
to foster political consensus on crucial 
issues such as using an innovative 
approach to map unexploded ordnance 
to inform solutions acceptable to all 
stakeholders. Stateside, the Center’s 
Democracy Resilience Networks in 
Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Michigan, 
North Carolina, and Wisconsin are 
expanding. Network members are facil-
itating cross-partisan events to combat 
community polarization and political 
violence.
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Human Rights Program
The Carter Center continues to 
promote equal rights for all amid an 
overall erosion of human rights. In 
2023, the Center advanced the rights 
of protected groups, especially frontline 
women environmental activists, by 
supporting indigenous women in 
attending well-being seminars and 
participating in COP28, a U.N. 
climate change conference. In the 
United States, the Center partnered 
with Black-owned businesses and 
historically Black colleges and univer-
sities (HBCUs) to address historical 
racial inequality and promote human 
rights. The Center worked alongside 
the U.N. Office for Human Rights to 
lay a foundation of domestic human 
rights principles. Globally, the Center 
continued to pursue a “just transition” 
in the Democratic Republic of the 
Congo by advocating for reform in the 
oil, gas, and minerals industries. The 
Human Rights House in Kinshasa 
provided small grants to women’s 
groups working to address threats to 
women’s rights. The Center’s Israel-
Palestine team is funding grassroots 
human rights organizations in both 
Israel and Palestine to continue 
their essential work. The India 
Policy Initiative engaged with U.S. 
policymakers on critical domestic 
developments in India.

Latin America and 
Caribbean Focus
The Carter Center is a long-term 
supporter of the peace efforts in 
Colombia. In 2023, the Center under-
took a project to support the Office 
of the High Commissioner for Peace 
in ongoing efforts to implement the 
2016 Colombia Peace Accord and to 
provide a team of experts to advise 
the government’s current negotiations 
with armed groups in its Paz Total 
(Total Peace) policy. Negotiations 
between the government of Venezuela 
and the opposition Unitary Platform 
to determine electoral conditions for 
the 2024 presidential elections led to 
the Barbados Accord, which named 
The Carter Center as an invited inde-
pendent electoral monitor, along with 
the United Nations and the European 
Union. A Carter Center team visited 
Venezuela in November to assess 
electoral conditions and preparations. 
In Nicaragua, the government released 
222 political prisoners, who were 
flown to the U.S. without notice and 
without their families. The Carter 
Center joined other nongovernmental 
organizations to facilitate their sudden 
entry to the U.S. on humanitarian 
parole.

PEACE PROGRAMS
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TAKING ACTION AGAINST EXTREME WEATHER
For farmer Dominic Hamanyanga, climate change is no 
political buzzword. He has seen its toll firsthand in his 
southern Zambia community of Gwembe.

“Climate change has affected our farming because 
of droughts, and sometimes there’s flooding,” he said. 
“When there’s no rain, there is usually very high heat, 
and because of that all crops die out, and as a result 
you don’t have a harvest.”

In between droughts, torrential rains wash away 
grasses, so there’s not enough food for people or live-
stock. Roads and bridges are ruined, disrupting school 
and commerce.

In the first project of its kind, The Carter Center 
is working with communities in Zambia to address 
drought, deforestation, and other aspects of 
climate change.

Community members are embracing the value of 
preserving forested land and planting new trees to 
replace ones that have been cut down for charcoal 
production. They are planting thousands of fruit trees 
that can help feed their families while stabilizing soil, 
providing shade, and absorbing carbon dioxide.

The initiative has been effective. A local advocacy 
committee in Gwembe won a Zambian Governance 
Foundation grant to continue fighting climate change.

With assistance from The 
Carter Center, farmer Dominic 
Hamanyanga and members 
of his community are planting 
fruit trees and embracing 
forested land to combat 
drought and high heat.
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Rule of Law Program
In anticipation of the 2024 U.S. 
presidential campaign, The Carter 
Center encouraged members of the 
legal community to use their skills 
to strengthen U.S. democracy and 
the rule of law. Further expanding 
its work in the United States, the 
Center partnered with the Atlanta 
Policing Alternatives and Diversion 
Initiative to ensure that people in 
Georgia experiencing a mental health 
crisis or substance use disorder receive 
appropriate and effective treatment 
and support versus incarceration. The 
Center is also expanding its Advancing 
Women’s Right to Information initia-
tive to six more districts in Bangladesh. 
Similarly, the Inform Women, 
Transform Lives project added 12 
cities in 2023. Since 2021, 35 cities 
around the world have helped women 
gain access to government services. 
Carter Center CEO Paige Alexander 
gave a TED Talk this year about the 
campaign’s impact. In Costa Rica, The 
Carter Center assisted the Ministry of 
Public Security in developing a suite 
of tools to advance gender equality 
and equity in the police forces. Finally, 
after more than 15 years, the Center 
successfully concluded and transi-
tioned its rule of law programming in 
Liberia to local government and civil 
society partners.

China Focus
A new installment in the Carter 
Center’s Finding Firmer Ground 
report series, released in February 
2023, examined how technological 
advancements have increased distrust 
and uncertainty in U.S.-China rela-
tions. The Center also partnered with 
the 21st Century China Center at the 
University of California-San Diego 
to convene the eighth Carter Center 
Young Scholars Forum on U.S.-
China Relations. The Carter Center 
continues to publish the U.S.-China 
Perception Monitor website (www.
uscnpm.org), creating and curating 
up-to-date content on developments 
between the two superpowers.

PEACE PROGRAMS MISSION: ASK 
QUESTIONS
When Regina N. Bee, a 
Carter Center youth infor-
mation ambassador in Bong 
County, Liberia, told students 
at her local school that the 
country’s freedom of informa-
tion law gave them the right 
to ask their principal about 
the status of their ID cards, 
the principal accused her of 
brainwashing them.

But instead of taking 
it personally, Bee was 
reassured that her work 
in educating youth about 
freedom of information was 
making an impact.

Bee was one of 16 
students in a pilot program 
in Liberia, where the 
Center has been working 
on freedom of information 
issues since 2010.

“For me, this program 
brings about openness and 
makes people accountable 
to citizens,” Bee said.

For students, ID cards 
are required for reduced 
bus fare and admittance 
into programs. According to 
Bee, it took weeks for the 
principal to provide informa-
tion about the cards after 
students made their request.

During the project, the 
youth ambassadors, along 
with the Center’s freedom of 
information facilitator, helped 
their peers and women in the 
community file 293 freedom 
of information requests with 
various government institu-
tions and other organizations 
receiving public funds. The 
institutions responded to 105 
of those requests.

20



Regina N. Bee helped community 
members file requests for 
government information during 
her tenure as a youth information 
ambassador.
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The Carter Center partners with the 
governments of Brazil and Venezuela 
to treat river blindness among the 
indigenous Yanomami people who 
live in the Amazon rainforest.
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A woman and two girls fetch 
household water from a well in 
Tarakoh village, Chad.

HEALTH PROGRAMS

TIRELESS TRACKING OF GUINEA WORM
Carter Center staff can name every person in the world 
with a Guinea worm. In 2023, 14 people suffered from 
the parasitic infection that can cause disability and 
contribute to community poverty. As the Center inches 
closer to eradicating the disease, relentless surveil-
lance and tracking by volunteers and staff in seven 
countries are required to reach the goal of zero cases 
of the disease.

For example, in 2023 in Chad, nine people were 
confirmed to have had a case of Guinea worm disease. 
Of those, six were children. Five of the nine were 

female. Three of the nine were farmers. Almost half 
lived in the same village.

Digging deeper, Carter Center staff note that the 
village with four cases currently lacks a safe source of 
drinking water, significant because the parasite breeds 
in stagnant pools of water and can be easily ingested 
by people and animals.

As the numbers of people and animals with Guinea 
worm disease dwindles, efforts to thoroughly investi-
gate every single case ramp up so that infections can 
be contained, eventually leading to eradication and a 
brighter future for those in affected communities.
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Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program
Only 14 human cases of Guinea worm 
disease were reported in 2023. The 
number is close to the lowest annual 
total of human cases ever reported, 
following 13 cases in 2022 and 15 
cases in 2021. Nine of the cases in 
2023 were reported in Chad, two 
in South Sudan, and one each in 
Cameroon, Central African Republic, 
and Mali. While infections in animals 
rose 4% in 2023, because of expanded 
surveillance in Angola and Cameroon, 
Chad reduced canine Guinea worm 
infections by 22%, its fourth consecu-
tive year of progress.

The Carter Center works with 
ministries of health to train and 
coordinate 30,000 volunteers in 
8,000 communities to conduct 
surveillance, health education, case 
containment, filter distribution, and 
water treatments. Health workers 
meticulously investigate all rumors 
of potential cases, which are key to 
finding actual cases and infections. To 
further boost surveillance, all endemic 
countries offer cash rewards for 
reporting cases and animal infections. 
Community-based and innovative 
behavioral change and local mobiliza-
tion are the key drivers of success.

River Blindness 
Elimination Program
Through decades of hard work, 
transmission of river blindness (oncho-
cerciasis) has been eliminated in four 
of six formerly endemic countries in 
the Americas and in large swaths of 
four African countries with assistance 
from The Carter Center. In Brazil 
and Venezuela, the program continues 
to deliver treatments of Mectizan® 
(donated by Merck & Co., Inc., 
Rahway, N.J., USA) to around 38,000 
indigenous people living deep in the 
Amazon Rainforest in the last known 
transmission area in the Americas. 
In 2023, seven districts in Uganda 
encompassing 1.1 million people met 
World Health Organization criteria 
to stop mass drug administration of 
Mectizan, while the Galabat area of 
Sudan confirmed transmission elimina-
tion for approximately 140,000 people 
after three years of post-treatment 
surveillance. In Nigeria, seven of nine 
Carter Center-assisted states have met 
stop-treatment criteria. The Carter 
Center laboratories in Nigeria and 
Ethiopia processed over 90,000 dried 
blood spot samples and 50,000 fly 
samples in 2023 to monitor progress 
toward disease elimination.
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Trachoma Control 
Program
Despite the country’s longstanding 
security challenges, the World Health 
Organization validated Mali as having 
eliminated the painful, blinding eye 
disease trachoma as a public health 
problem in 2023. The Carter Center’s 
trachoma partnership with Mali began 
with a visit by former President Jimmy 
Carter in 1996. The Center continues 
to fight trachoma in some of the most 
insecure nations in Africa: Ethiopia, 
Niger, South Sudan, and Sudan. The 
Center partners with these countries 
and many other organizations to 
prevent trachoma through mass drug 
distribution, preventative surgical 
services, improved water and sanita-
tion, and behavioral change education.

HEALTH PROGRAMS

Schistosomiasis Program
The Carter Center assists the 
Nigerian Federal Ministry of Health 
to distribute medication to millions 
of schoolchildren to control schisto-
somiasis. Also known as snail fever, 
schistosomiasis causes urogenital and 
intestinal problems that can lead to 
organ dysfunction and anemia. Since 
1999, the Center has assisted in 
over 30 million treatments, given by 
teachers or community drug distrib-
utors to prevent schistosomiasis and 
improve health in Nigeria.
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REACHING SURGERY CAMPS TAKES GRIT
In South Sudan, a 15-minute surgical procedure can 
save a person’s sight. Reaching the people who 
perform that procedure is another matter.

In a country the size of Texas with only 250 miles 
of paved roads, people often travel long distances — 
frequently on foot — to reach eye surgery camps, 
where the painful and advanced stage of the bacterial 
eye disease trachoma can be corrected. The free 
camps are sponsored by The Carter Center.

Several years ago, one man walked 200 miles 
with his son, who needed the surgery, stopping along 
the way as he chased rumors of camps before finally 
reaching one at the right time. Another time, two men 

carried a parent in a wheelbarrow to receive surgery 
because the parent could not walk. In another example, 
a man and his pregnant wife walked for hours to reach 
a camp offered in a small dirt-floor church.

Center staff realized that some women were 
reluctant to get surgery because their child-rearing 
responsibilities made a night away from home —  
required post-surgery — impossible. The Center erected 
hospital tents and told women they could bring their 
children with them, everyone receiving meals and 
lodging overnight.

The impact: 2,201 people in South Sudan received 
free sight-saving surgery for trachoma in 2023.

A South Sudanese woman 
waits to have her bandage 
removed after receiving 
surgery the previous day 
for advanced trachoma.
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Guerla Joseph lives with lymphatic 
filariasis, a parasitic disease that 
has caused permanent swelling in 
her right leg.

HEALTH PROGRAMS
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Hispaniola Initiative
Surveys conducted in 2023 in Haiti 
confirmed that lymphatic filariasis, also 
known as elephantiasis, has been elim-
inated as a public health problem in 
the Nippes and Sud-Est regions of the 
country. A similar survey was launched 
in the eastern region of the Dominican 
Republic in late 2023, and results 
showed that no one sampled tested 
positive for the disease. Provisionally, 
11,704 cases of malaria were reported 
in 2023 in Hispaniola — 11,433 in 
Haiti and 271 in the Dominican 
Republic. This is a 19% decrease in 
total cases compared to 2022. In April 
2023, on World Malaria Day, The 
Carter Center and the Dominican 
minister of health opened a new 
molecular surveillance laboratory to 
help the country improve diagnostic 
capacity to eliminate malaria and other 
infectious diseases in the country.

DERAILING A 
DEBILITATING DISEASE
Guerla Joseph’s right leg is a 
weight, in more ways than one. 
With her leg severely swollen 
from lymphedema, Joseph 
finds it hard to move around 
physically. Her condition has 
also exacted a mental toll. She 
said that other people in her 
Dominican Republic commu-
nity of farmworkers sometimes 
look at her in a way she 
doesn’t like.

The underlying cause 
of the swelling in Joseph’s 
leg is lymphatic filariasis, a 
parasitic disease transmitted 
by mosquito bites. The Carter 
Center has been working 
with Haiti and the Dominican 
Republic since 2008 to elim-
inate lymphatic filariasis and 
malaria from their shared 
island.

The 49-year-old mother of 
six said the disease prevents 
her from working. “I do what 
I can do,” she said, “but I 
have difficulty moving around 
because of the leg.”

Although there’s no cure 
for Joseph, the Center’s work 
on the island is paying off. A 
recent blood-sample survey 
demonstrated that transmission 
of lymphatic filariasis has been 
eliminated as a public health 
problem from the Dominican 
Republic.

Joseph said she is glad to 
know that in the future, no one 
will have to worry. “It’s good 
that kids won’t get this disease,” 
she said.

Lymphatic Filariasis 
Elimination Program
The Carter Center combats lymphatic 
filariasis in Ethiopia and Nigeria 
with medicine donated by Merck 
& Co., Inc., Rahway, N.J., USA 
(Mectizan®) and GSK (albendazole). 
Thanks to years of consistent high 
treatment coverage, seven districts 
encompassing 400,000 people in 
Ethiopia and 3.7 million people in 17 
districts in Nigeria met World Health 
Organization criteria to stop treatment 
for lymphatic filariasis in 2023. Ninety 
percent of formerly endemic areas 
assisted by The Carter Center in 
Ethiopia and Nigeria now no longer 
need treatment for the disease. The 
Hispaniola Initiative section highlights 
additional work to eliminate lymphatic 
filariasis in the Dominican Republic 
and Haiti.
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Tyler Neang (center) prays alongside 
his family at the Fresno Cambodian 
Buddhist Society temple.

HOPE AND HEALING FOR INTERGENERATIONAL TRAUMA
More than 40 years after the Khmer Rouge genocide 
in Cambodia, refugees and their children still suffer 
from the trauma. Journalist Soreath Hok, herself the 
daughter of Cambodian refugees, is shedding light on 
the issue of mental health within the Fresno, California, 
community of Cambodians.

Hok received a Rosalynn Carter Fellowship for 
Mental Health Journalism from The Carter Center to 

report on the issue in a five-part audio series.
“I was interested in exploring my culture of 

Cambodians and the refugees, and what they’re still 
dealing with,” she said. “There was a gap in mental 
health care for this group that has been in the U.S. 
for decades but hasn’t gotten help for the trauma 
they experienced.”

Reflecting on her fellowship year, Hok said she was 
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Mental Health Program
The Carter Center’s Mental Health 
Program lost its pioneering founder 
and greatest advocate with the passing 
of former First Lady Rosalynn Carter, 
whose priorities and legacy the Center 
carries forward. The Carter Center 
is currently working in three areas: 
global programs, public policy, and 
journalism. Mental health system 
strengthening continues in Liberia; 
the Center and United Methodist 
University established the nation’s 
first master’s program training mental 
health specialists and is preparing 
to begin work in Sierra Leone and 
Uganda. The Center awarded nine 
Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for 
Mental Health Journalism to U.S. jour-
nalists, started a fellowship in Ireland, 
initiated the award-winning Mental 
Health Parity Newsroom Collaborative, 
and released global guidelines for 
reporting on mental health. The 
Carter Center leads in monitoring the 
implementation of Georgia parity legis-
lation and raising citizen awareness of 
the right to have insurance coverage for 
mental health and substance use disor-
ders on par with other illnesses. Parity 
in payment for mental health services 
in schools and universal prevention 
remains a priority.

thankful for the opportunity to connect with the legacy 
of former First Lady Rosalynn Carter, whose vocal 
advocacy for Cambodian refugees several decades ago 
impacted Hok’s own journey. “I wouldn’t be here today 
if she had not had the compassion to recognize that 
there was this problem happening on the other side of 
the world.”

31



In December 2023, Congolese 
citizens line up to vote.
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As a not-for-profit organization, The Carter Center can 
realize its mission only through generous support from 
individuals, foundations, corporations, and governments. 
More than 98,601 donors contributed $380 million in 
cash, pledges, and in-kind gifts in 2022–2023 to further 
the Center’s mission.

The Carter Center works with a broad and diverse 
range of supporters to prevent and resolve conflicts, 
enhance freedom and democracy, and improve health. 
While the focus of our work remains international, 
we have increased our footprint in the United States. 
Support from long-time partners has been integral to 
building and expanding our domestic work.

After seminal support to the Ethiopia Public Health 
Training Initiative, The David and Lucile Packard 
Foundation support for the Center’s democracy work 
in the United States has been integral to efforts to 
bolster democratic norms, strengthen trust in the U.S. 
electoral process, and work toward more transparent, 
peaceful, and trustworthy elections. The Packard 
Foundation support allows the Center to contribute its 
vast knowledge, expertise, and learning from monitoring 
115 elections in 40 countries toward more inclusive 
democracy in the United States.

In 2023, the Arthur M. Blank Family Foundation 
invested in the Center’s frontline public policy and 
advocacy work, enabling progress in the accessibility of 
behavioral health services for individuals and families 

across the state of Georgia. Following the passage of 
the 2022 Mental Health Parity Act, the Blank Family 
Foundation’s grant supported the launch of the Mental 
Health Parity Awareness Campaign, which priorized 
women, people of color, and underserved communities 
in Albany and Savannah. Results show a marked increase 
in public awareness of the right to mental health care 
and insurers’ legal obligation to cover mental health care 
on par with physical health care. After the campaign, 
women who were interested in mental health care but 
felt they could not access it or had not looked for it 
were much less likely to see insurance as an obstacle. 
Pre-campaign, 40% of these women cited insurance as a 
barrier, while post-campaign, just 10% said insurance was 
a barrier, a 75% drop.

Individuals play a significant role in the work of The 
Carter Center: “We have been supporters of President 
Jimmy Carter, Rosalynn Carter, and their Carter Center 
for over a decade. Their incredible spirit for creating 
a better world is inspiring,” said Joe and Sarah Kiani. 
“We want to support the work the Carter Center is 
doing to improve access to health care around the world, 
including the village-based health care delivery systems 
they have put into place in thousands of communities in 
Africa. They have been an advocate for patient safety and 
increased awareness of mental health challenges in our 
health care system. They took action out of kindness and 
led with love.”

ABOUT OUR DONORS

Sources of Support 
Fiscal Year 2022–2023

Total Expenses 
Fiscal Year 2022–2023

Administration
Fundraising

3%
4%

Programs

93%

Governments 
(U.S. and 
Foreign)

Individuals

Foundations

6%

14%

7%

Other

2%

Corporations 
(includes 

in-kind gifts)

71%
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A boy and his friend play outside in a 
neighborhood in eastern Dominican 
Republic. The Carter Center is working 
in the country to eliminate malaria and 
lymphatic filariasis.

Some 83 volunteers in the Atlanta 

area donated 4,333 hours of service in 

FY 2023. Their energy and devotion help the 

Center achieve much more with the resources 

it receives from its financial contributors. We 

thank these volunteers for their support.

VOLUNTEERS
The Carter Center appreciates the support of its 
many donors. Although we are able to list only those 
gifts that totaled $1,000 or more from Sept. 1, 2022, 
through Aug. 31, 2023, we are grateful for each gift 
that helps to support the vital work of The Carter 
Center. Every effort has been made for accuracy. 
Should there be any omission or error, we apologize 
and ask that it be brought to our attention.

A NOTE TO DONORS
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Mr. John W. Rendon, Jr. and  

Ms. Sandra L. Libby
Estate of Rita Salzberg
Sightsavers
The Task Force for Global Health
Dr. Gail E. Thomas
UPR Info
Estate of Ruth S. White
Alfred L. Woodill Trust
Yellow Cardinal Advisory Group

$5,000–$9,999
Ms. Paige Alexander and  

Dr. Stephen R. Grand
Jane C. Artz & Frederick J. Artz 

Fund

DONORS 2022–2023
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Atlanta Jewish Foundation
Mr. Jay Beck
Big Win Philanthropy
The Louise B. Blaser Trust
Ms. Grace L. Chu
Mr. Robert Cieslik
Estate of Douglas and  

Kathryn Cochrane
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
Ms. Jamie Cooper
Jesse M. Corum and Carol M. 

Corum Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. Drezek Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Russell C. Filbeck
Foreign, Commonwealth, and 

Development Office
Mr. Robert Kent Greenawalt
Mr. David H. Hartke
Ms. Sherry Lansing
Neil and Amelia McDaniel 

Charitable Trust
Microsoft Corporation
Estate of Evelyn Mitchell
Estate of Shirley M. Patzke
The Domenico Paulon 

Foundation
Estate of Linda J. Riggan
Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
Dr. Jason W. Sheedy
Soapbox Soaps
Estate of Carleton and  

Sylvia Spotts
Dr. Gregory J. Vaughn
World Health Organization

$1,000-$4,999
Anonymous (3)
Ms. Janet Abbate
Mr. William Ackerman
Ms. Winifred R. Adams
Mr. Terrence Adamson and  

Ms. Edith Holiday
Angela Aguiar
Mr. Richard Aho
Mrs. Bernadette Aliprantis
Crystal Ward Allen
Dr. F. Towne Allen
Basavlinga S. Amarkumar
Yoshiko and Takeshi Amemiya
The American Chestnut 

Foundation
AMG Engineering &  

Machining Inc.
Amgen Foundation Inc.
Constance R. Anderson and 

Justin Pava
Mr. Stephen F. Ankner
Mr. Michael Anstett
Mr. Thomas Antoniadis
Dr. and Mrs. Kenn Apel 

Shirley G. Asmussen
Mr. John H. Atkinson
Robert Badgley
Mr. Abdulla Badsha
Ann E. Balderama
Shumeet Baluja, Ph.D.
Bank of America
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory P. Barclay 
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Bardin
Mr. Joel A. Bargamian
Mr. Jeff P. Barnes
Kimberly W. Barnett
Ms. Petra Barniak
Ms. Elaine Baxter
Ms. Tanis O. Beadle
Linda J. L. Becker
Lawrence Benefield
Ms. Teresa Snodgrass Bennett
Margaret C. and Charles Bergman
Estate of Elaine V. Berquist
Mr and Mrs. Roger Betz 
Mr. Walter E. Bird
The Linden Marie Blackwell Fund
Ms. Kathryn Blatt
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mr. Peter Bloom
Mr. Harvey Bodker
Mr. Adam C. Boese
Mr. Elijah Bogart
Mr. Raymond R. Brandt

Donna Braun
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Bright 
Bristol-Myers Squibb  

Foundation Inc.
Mr. Charles P. Brown
Mr. Stanley Brown
Patricia Brown
Ms. Kathy Bruneske
Cecelia E. Bryant
Ms. Rene S. Buchanan
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald E. Buls 
Beebe Bungalow Fund
Doris E. Burd
Nona E. Burden
Ms. Carol A. Busby
Mr. John W. Caldwell
Elisabeth M. Camp
Cynthia Gratz Campbell and  

Tim Campbell
Carol and Thomas A. Campbell
Mr. James E. Cantrell
Mr. John L. Carlin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Carr 
Mr. D. Jeffrey Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua J. Carter
Ms. Mary E. Carter
Sandra M. Carter
Mrs. Sarah Jane Carter
Mr. Raymond Catani 
Daphne Lin Chang

Ms. Marva J. Cheek-Gettis
Chevron Corporation
China Medical Board Inc.
Joann Clark
Mr. Thomas Clower Jr.
Liza and Matt Colby
Ms. Nancy F. Collier
Ms. Kathleen E. Collins
Colorado Episcopal Foundation
Comcast
Mr. and Mrs. Troy H. Cooper 
Mr. Daniel Cooper 
Costco Wholesale 
Mr. Henry Cote 
David R. and Jody Crawford
Estate of John Cristiano
Dr. Maddy Cunningham and  

Mr. Hugh Cunningham
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert Curry Jr.
The Musco D’Amico  

Charitable Fund
Dr. Richard J. Davey
Wayne Davis
Mr. Ed Deci 
Ms. Noreen Dempsey
Mary B. and Bradford Denny
Dr. and Mrs. Russell L. Deter 
David W. Dettwiler
John and Maureen Doerfler
Ms. Karen L. Dolphin
Ms. Susan Donius

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2022 – Aug. 31, 2023.

In Washington, D.C., parents attend a citywide event promoting family support programs. The 
Carter Center partnered with the city through the Inform Women, Transform Lives campaign.
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Mr. Dave Doody 
Downtown Investors
Dr. Kathleen M. Duerksen and 

Mr. Kevin M. Finnegan
Joyce P. Duncan
Mr. Melvin Dyck 
Ms. Sharon Easterling
Thomas A. Ebert
Jean M. Eccleston
Mrs. Anne Eckert
Mr. Ronald D. Eckoff 
Eggal Foundation
Mr. John R. Elliott 
Mr. Gregory N. Eppler
Ms. Barbara J. Ericson
Mr. Mike Ertel 
Ms. Julie A. Esser
Mr. Patrick R. Falkner 
Ms. Mary A. Fiala
Kate and Hermann Field  

Legacy Fund
Ms. Victoria Findlay
Mr. Robert L. Fine 
Ms. Kate Fitzgerald
Beverly Flood
Foundation Source
Mr. Gilbert G. French and  

Mr. Gary B. Doudna

Steven R. Frichette and  
Ann Kreile

Mr. Mark E. Fried 
Mr. Robert E. Friedman
Alberta L. Frye
Dr. Odelia Funke 
Mr. James Gage 
Virginia W. Gale
J. W. and Adriance M. Galloway
Rachel L. Garb
Beverly A. Garcia
Mr. Lytt I. Gardner Jr. and  

Ms. Alva Maria Edmondson
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney M. Gay 
The GE Foundation
Mr. Stephen Gelardi 
Ms. Dorothy A. Geoghegan
John George
Sarah MacKenzie Gibbons
Mr. Joseph Giglio 
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Glass 
Asceline S. Go
Mr. and Mrs. E. Stanly  

Godbold Jr.
Ms. Debra Lynn Gold
Mr. Robert N. Goldberg and  

Ms. Colleen A. Foley
Tarez Samra Graban
Ms. Adeline Graber

Estate of Charles Grimes
Gary G. and Christine B. 

Grindler
Perviz and Nargis Guard
Charles J. and Louann 

Gunderson
Mr. and Mrs. Leland G. Haefner 
Mr. and Mrs. James Brian 

Haering 
Mr. and Mrs. James J. Hagle 
Estate of Elizabeth Lynne Hall
John B. Hamerslough
Mr. John N. Hamiel 
Mrs. Ann M. Hamory
Mr. Peter Hancon 
Estate of Linda Handelman
The Hanley Foundation
Ms. Denise M. Hanlon
Estate of Lucile M. Harford
Lenae D. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald P. Hart 
Ms. Elizabeth A. Harvey
Ms. Julia Ann Hayes
Mr. John Hays
Mr. Roger F. Heegaard
David Heinert
Mr. William Hellrung 
Mr. Allan Helminiak 
Sharon M. Henderson

Mr. Fred C. Hennie 
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Hepler 
Ms. Nancy Herbert
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Heritsch 
The William and Flora Hewlett 

Foundation
Mr. Stephen C. Hicks 
Ms. Brenda High
Mr. Joachim Hirche 
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Hirdes 
Mr. Robert Nile Hobbs 
Mr. Edward C. House 
Estate of Richard A. Hudson
Ms. Charlotte Huefner
Ms. Mary H. Hughes
Charles G. Humble
Dr. Richard C. Hunt 
Rosa Hurst
Marissa A. and James Huttinger
Mr. and Mrs. George Hyatt 
Dr. Kashef Ijaz
The Inman Foundation
Intuitive Surgical Inc.
Mrs. Narvella Jackson
Ms. Anna James
Mr. and Mrs. James Johns 
Mr. David M. Jenns
Estate of Gertude Jockusch
Johnson & Johnson
Dr. Alan Roy Johnson 
Dawn L. Johnson
Ms. Kelly M. Johnson
Ms. Linda Johnson
Ms. Janis N. Jones
Ms. Jill Jones
Ms. Nathalie R. Jones
Ms. Madeleine Jordache
Rev. Paula K. Judy and  

Mr. K. Wesley Judy 
Mr. and Mrs. I. Michael Kadish 
Kerstin Kaiser
Mr. Stephen J. Kaufman 
Mr. Raymond J. Keating 
Linnea J. and Kevin J. Kelley
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Kendrick 
Mr. Jayant Sadashiv Khadilkar 

and Ms. Manjushree R. Karkare
Ms. Valerie King-Ernst
Mr. and Mrs. Leroy M. Kingman 
Mr. David Kirk 
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew J. Klaben 
Mr. James Knauer 
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. 

Komnick 
Mr. Anthony Kopas 
Besa Kotati
Ms. Ursula Krause
Kyle Krohn
Mr. John G. Kroll

With assistance from The Carter Center, a Nigerian child takes drug treatment to prevent 
schistosomiasis, a parasitic disease that damages internal organs.
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Mrs. Helen E. Kutschbach
Steve and Liska Lackey
Ms. Rita D. Lamb
Mr. and Mrs. J. Richard Landis
Ms. Julia C. Langston
Mr. John Larse
Matthew J. Lawonn
Mr. Jerome Lawrence
Mallory A. Lawrence Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Tuan Le
Mr. and Mrs. M. Russell Lee 
Carolyn Lee
Mr. John E. Legg 
Estate of Sue Leong
Anita and Charles Lewis
Estate of James Lewis
Mr. Paul Litwin 
Mr. Joseph Loporcaro 
Mr. Joseph Ellis Loyd 
Carl Lynch
Mr. James MacKay 
Mr. Philip Mahoney 
Durga Mallampalli
Sylvia R. and Peter Mann
Maithreyi Manoharan
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Mantz 
Michele Martin
Ava Martin
Ms. Mary Anne Massey
Mrs. Felicia May
Allie Mayes
The Edith MacGuire  

Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Ward W. 

McCaughey 
Ms. Creel C. McCormack
McDermott Family
Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. 

McGuire 
Tyce McLarty
Mr. James A. McLean
Mr. John B. McLellan
Hugh M. McNeely
Steven W McNicol
Melissa and Bob McWhirter
Ms. Emilia Gay Griffith Means
Mr. Wade I. Melton 
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas W. 

Mendenhall 
Ms. Sharon L. Metcalf
Mrs. Lois A. Michelin
Ms. Susan L. Micona
Mr. and Mrs. William B. Miller 
The Mills Foundation
Ms. Brenda Milum
John Mix
Brian Mock
Mr. Thomas J. Moffett 
Mr. Robert B. Molise

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Moore 
Dr. Lupe Y. Morales 
Ms. Ana Moreno
Evelyn and John Morrison 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. John L. Morrison
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne A. Morrison 
Suzan Moskal
Theresa Mowrer
Debra Peterson Mundt
Ms. Sheila Murphy
Naoko Y. Murphy
Chris Myers
Linda Nabrezny
Mr. Amol S. Naik
Mr. and Mrs. Mikhail E. 

Nasrallah 
Rev. Thomas Nellis
Mr. and Mrs. Edward B Nelson 
Ms. Iris D. Nelson-Schwartz
Ms. Laura Neuman
Mr. and Mrs. David Nicol 
Mr. Bruce Novak
Ricky Oliver
Ms. Carol J. Olwell
Mr. Robert B. O’Rourke 
Mr. Michael C. Orth 
Mr. Ronald M. Osment 
Kimberly and David Page
Ms. Christina Pappas and  

Mr. Eric Alstad
Maika N. and Nathan Patterson
Daniel S. and Donna Pellegrin
Barbara Pemp
Ms. Carol J. Pennock
Anne and Dave Peterson
Burnell E. Peterson and  

Ann Carlander
Mr. Joe Petro III
Jukka Piironen
Richard Piper
Ms. April C. Pixley
Mrs. Diane M. Pomeroy
Mr. Daniel Rick Preston
Ms. Paula Proppe
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Purkiss 
Ms. Sara M. Putzell
Mr. Scott A. Rabick 
Hazel Jean Rachkowski
Donald L. Rankin
Mr. Robert A. Rapp 
Leslie Jackson Reincke
Mrs. Jackie Sue Reineke
Joann Reinsel
John Reiz
Mrs. Dee Reynolds
Estate of James L. Rhinesmith
Kandace D. Rich

Dr. and Mrs. Frank O. 
Richards Jr.

Ms. Judith A. Richardson
Marc Richardson
Ms. Patricia Alice Rischar
Barbara Roach
Ms. Patricia N. Robbins
Judith A. Robertson
Dr. Richard G. Rolfes 
Mr. Stephen Russo 
Mr. Henry R. Rygiel 
Mr. Albertino Santos 
Maureen Saul
Mr. and Mrs. Allen G. Sault 
Schneider Electric North 

American Foundation
Ms. Anne S. Schiffiano
Libbie A. Schock
Mr. Rodney L. Scribner
Mr. Christopher Schroeder 
James and Wilma Schweppe
Mr. Richard Scott 
Ms. Beth M. Search
John Wesley and Jill Sebaugh
Mr. Alan D. Seget
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald A. Sewell
Dr. William T. Shaffer 
Mr. and Mrs. James Sheehan 
William Shepherd and  

Arthur Fisher
Mr. Robert Sherlock 
Robert L. Shipley
Mr. Walton W. Shreeve 
B. Shults
Mr. Fahim Siddiqui
Ms. Sharon R. Sievert
Ms. Caroline Signor
Mary Simon
Ms. Annette C. Skellenger
Bernard and Gwen Sklar
Sarah Slagle-Garrett and  

Chris Garrett
Christine Slavin
Mr. and Mrs. Donald A. Small
Mr. Branden N. Smith and 

Ms.Tara Serey
Ms. Catherine J. Smith
Charles R. Smith
Mr. Jeffrey P. Smith
Thornton P. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Snider
Dr. Anthony Somogyi 
Ms. Lola D. Sorrells
Ms. Lana Grace Spraker
Estate of Rex and Nancy Spivey
Ms. Janet Stanley
Mr. Samuel C. Steele 
Mr. and Mrs. Gary S. Stein 

Mark Stinson and Elizabeth 
Murphy Jones

Mr. Trasbin Lee Stoner II
Patricia Strougal
Dr. Robert A. Stull and  

Mr. S. P. Giorgi
Jay Sullivan
Mr. James Eric Summers
Estate of Harold Sutton
Mr. John W. Swinney 
Tara and Dan Tamburello
Estate of Edward Tanner
Janice Tarrant
Estate of Edward Tarte
Mr. William Tausig 
Mr. David V. N. Taylor
David V. N. Taylor Foundation
Texas Instruments Foundation
Ms. Lisa T. Thomson
George Allen Tindol Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Fernando P. Tovar
Ms. Ruth A. Townsend
Mr. Richard Bruce Travis 
Tull Charitable Foundation Inc.
Turner Foundation Inc.
University of South Florida
The UPS Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Urdahl 
Mr. Robert C. Valentini 
Ms. Mary C. Vanderschaaf
Mr. James Albert Vandeurzen 
Suzann W. Voigt 
Ms. Marlene R. Vuitel
Ms. Priscilla Walter
Estate of Lois and Jimmy Waltrip
Yongmei Wang 
Diane D Warfield 
Charles E. Washington Jr.
Mr. Bobby Watson 
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Webb 
Claire E. Welsh 
Mr. William J. Westlake 
The Westport Fund
Estate of Hilda White
Wiley Publishing
Mr. Willie J. Wiley 
Mr. Peter A. Wilhelm 
Ms. Pamela K. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Henry R. Wilson 
Dr. Betty Karol Wilson and  

Mr. Charles Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Wist 
Carol Wolfinbarger 
World Law Group
Deborah Wright 
Marian K. Yoder 
Karen Yun and Michael Pollock
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Cabinet 10,000+
Mr. John Achatz and Ms. Mary 

Farrell
Dr. and Mrs. Heinz Aeschbach
The Ajram Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gaby A. Ajram
Mr. Edward E. Altemus
Mr. and Mrs. A. Clay Atkins
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill Jr.
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Ms. Thada M. Bain
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
David A. Bakhtiari 1988 Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Karl E. Bakhtiari
Karl Erik Bakhtiari Revocable 

Trust
James and Marietta Bala 

Charitable Fund
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Bala
The Balsamo Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. Balsamo
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Barrow III
Richard Allan Barry Family 

Charitable Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Richard A. Barry
Mrs. Wilma Baumgartner
Ms. Winifred McGuire Becker
Russ and E. Cordy Beckstead
Mr. Thomas C. Bishop
Robert and Joan Blackman 

Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Blackman
Ms. Elizabeth K. Blake
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Bliss
Mrs. Linda E. Bodnar
Mr. John A. Boettcher
Boger Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Mr. Richard Brems and  

Ms. Katy Hu
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Bridges
Mr. Charles Kent Brodie
Mrs. Martha Finn Brooks and  

Mr. Oliver Brooks
Ms. Donna Brown
Alvin I. & Peggy S. Brown Family 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence J. Brown
Ms. Terri D. Bullock
Mrs. Carol G. Burmeister
Ms. Kathleen Cafaro
Mr. Simon F. Capper
Mr. Sherman B. Carll
Thalia & Michael C. Carlos 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas W. Caves

The Ching Family
Ms. Karen M. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Brian G. Clarke
Mr. John R. Clifford
Mr. Joseph V. Cohen
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Mr. Peter D. Conlon
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello
Drs. Frank and Ann Critz
Mrs. Claire L. Cross
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Culver
Dr. Woody Cunningham and  

Ms. Jessie Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Rev. Bruce Davidson and  

Mr. Donald Barb
Dr. and Mrs. Clayton Dean
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis DeBruler
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. Denning
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Dillard
The Dillard Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Keith 

Donnelly
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin M. Duke
Ms. Anneliese H. Duncan
Harry F. Duncan Foundation
Mr. Douglas Dunn and  

Mrs. Donna Gaab
Mr. and Mrs. Jon E. Durbin
Walter and Ursula Eberspacher 

Foundation
Mr. Walter Eberspacher
The Eccles Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Eccles
The Edgerley Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
The Ellis Foundation
Engelke Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
Ms. Jessica Epperson
Mr. Paul S. Fan and  

Ms. Lai-Sang Young
Mr. Jerome Farnsworth
Mr. Michael G. Feinstein and  

Ms. Denise Waldron
Finn Brooks Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan H. Fisher
Mr. Austin Fite
Fite Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Flora Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Annuel Forman
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Foszcz
The Honorable William Wyche 

Fowler Jr.
Ms. Mary Ann Francis
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Frazier
Mr. and Mrs. Charles French

Dr. and Mrs. Richard Oliver 
Friday

Mr. and Mrs. Milton S. Fujii
Full Circle Foundation
Ms. Evelyn K. Fulmer
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Funk
Mr. William Gee and  

Ms. Susan Crothers
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Gelling
Mr. and Mrs. Praveen Ghanta
Drs. David and Lynn Gill
Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel
Mr. Taylor Glover
Mr. Mark L. Goodman Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Donald G. 

Goodwin
The Donald G and Ellen 

Goodwin Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Gorman
M. Green Family Fund
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Dr. Jeffrey Greve and  

Dr. Janis Kahn
Mr. and Mrs. Donal Grogan
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey B. Grossman
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Grzedzinski
Mr. and Mrs. R. T. Hagemeyer
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Hale
The Dot & Lam Hardman 

Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
The Jessie M. Harris Revocable 

Trust
Mrs. Francis W. Hatch
Haug 1999 Alaska Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Roger Tim Haug
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Haviland
Mrs. Nancy Herman
Mrs. Edigna Herold
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Hickey Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Ho
James and Anna Hoag Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelius Houston
John C. & Karyl Kay Hughes 

Foundation
Mr. Bruce Hull
Mr. and Mrs. Mark R. Humphrey
Mr. John Hurley
Christine and Jim Hurtsellers
The Jachaly Project
D. Jared Family Fund
Mr. Joseph P. Jensen
Mr. Joseph N. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. 

Johnston
Mr. Chris Jones and  

Mrs. Barb Jones
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Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.

Ms. Fredericka B. Jura
Mr. Mark E. Kalmansohn
Mr. John W. Kapouch Jr.
Mr. John A. Kazanjian
Mr. Philip D. Kearns and  

Ms. Grace E. Ray
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Dr. and Mrs. David Khoo
Mrs. Lyn B. Kirkland
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Kirkpatrick
Knopf Family Foundation
Ms. Sonja Laughlin Koenig
Mr. Thomas E. Koenig
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Dr. Wayne A. Kradjan and  

Mrs. Carolyn L. Kradjan
Mrs. Donna Krulitz
Drs. Mark and Diana Kudes
Ms. Cassandra Kwoh
Frank S. and Julia M. Ladner 

Family Foundation
Mrs. Julia M. Ladner
The Robert and Vivian Lamb 

Fund
Mrs. Joan Lamonica
Dr. James T. Langland and  

Dr. Penny I. Langland
Mr. and Mrs. George W. Lattimer
Mr. Phillip O. Lawson
Ms. MaryAnn Leak
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Mrs. Judith C. Lee
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Dr. Mark Lindborg and  

Ms. Laurie Parson
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Dr. Stephen A. Maas
Ms. Penelope J. Maddy
Mr. Edward Magarian
Manaaki Foundation
Mrs. Lynne R. McClendon
Mr. and Mrs. Fred T. McGregor
Jeffrey and Karen McHenry
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McKinney
Ms. Martha McMahon
Ms. Susanne O. McMillan
Mr. and Mrs. Jim McNamara
Dr. Burrelle S. Meeks
The P. D. Merrill Charitable 

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Miller
Mr. Charles R. Miller
The Isobal and James T. Mills Jr. 

Family Fund
Misty Meadows Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Paul G. Moe
Ms. Dorothy J. Moore
Mr. Josh Moore

Kristina and Patrick Morton
Mrs. Catherine A. Mullins
Ms. Pamela Murphy and  

Mr. Richard D’Avino
Ms. Lee Ann Myers
Dr. Kenneth H. Nealson
NFN8 Foundation
Dr. Ronald P. Ngayan and  

Ms. Sasha Gulati-Ngayan
Nicholl Family Foundation
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl
Mr. James Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell E. 

Northrop III
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Mr. Steven E. Nothern
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and  

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Mrs. Carol L. Olsen
Dr. Gilbert S. Omenn and  

Ms. Martha A. Darling
Dr. Russell Lowell Osmond
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and  

Mr. Haddon Hufford
Mr. Chang K. Park
Martha M. and Robert N. Parke
Dr. Brutus and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Ms. Judith A. Petroski
Dr. Keith W. Prasse and  

Dr. Susan W. Prasse
Dr. and Mrs. Keith H. Randall
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt N. Rathjen
Ms. Kimberly J. Rendleman
Ms. Ilene S. Resnick Weiss and 

Mr. Daniel J. Weiss
Ms. Anne Martin Reynolds and 

Mr. David Reynolds
Ms. Florence Rogers and  

Ms. Janet Ainsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Dr. Selma H. Rutenburg
The Sage Foundation
Mrs. Carol E. Saunders
Mrs. Mary E. Schaff
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Scheible
The D & M Scheible Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber
Drs. Evelyn and Craig Scott
Ms. Patricia M. Scott
Mr. John M. Scully
Ms. Karen Serratoni
Dr. Ajeet Shankar and  

Ms. Rebekah Sexton
Mr. and Mrs. David Shell
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shevlin
Mr. and Mrs. Harry R. Silletti
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R. Simpson
Mr. Steve Slater

Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Ms. Alicia Woolston Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Mr. David C. Smith
Richard O. and June C. Smith 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Charles 

Smith-Dewey
Mr. Brent A. Sowers
Mr. Joel Spolsky and  

Mr. Jared Samet
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mrs. Mary Ellen Stachnik
Ms. Ann Starr
Mr. Edward Stern and  

Ms. Claudia Hearn
The Claudia Hearn and 

Edward Stern Foundation
Mr. Stephen E. Still
Willow Springs Foundation
James M. and Cathleen D. Stone 

Foundation
Stonesfair Financial Corporation
Mr. David B. Stoppelman
Mr. and Mrs. John Strange
Ms. Kathleen F. Stroud
Suggs Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney V. Suggs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan
Ms. Anne E. Swenson
Mr. and Mrs. Chade-Meng Tan
Tan Teo Charitable Foundation
Ms. Jennifer Chen Taylor and  

Mr. Christopher Jorgen Taylor
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick C. 

Teutsch
Ms. Lorraine M. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Thomas
Andrew Tobias
Turner Enterprises
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Turner
Two or More Foundation
Ms. Dawn Vincent
Mr. David R. Virden
Mr. Paul E. von Kuster III
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald K. 

Wackowski
Ms. Donna M. Warnken-Brill
Dr. Larry E. Warren
Dr. Jack Webb and  

Ms. Nancy Allen
Mr. and Mrs. William C. 

Wehmeier
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and  

Dr. Patricia Wheeler
Mr. Robert M. White
Ms. Nancy G. Whitney

The Willow Springs Foundation
Mr. David Douglas Wilson and 

Mrs. Melody Wilder Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Wilson
The Wilson Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth M. 

Woodworth
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Mark 

Wright
John R. Wright and Eloise 

Mountain Wright Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Todd Yankee
Dr. Ellen H. Yankellow and  

Mr. William E. Chapman
Dr. and Mrs. Cary Yeh
Mr. Robert A. Yellowlees
Peggy and Lee Zeigler

Diplomat $5,000–
$9,999
Aikman Foundation
Mr. James W. Aikman
Mr. and Mrs. Miles Alexander
Ms. Toni W. Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Silvio P. Alfeo
Mr. Steve M. Alpers
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Andreen
Arbor Rouge Foundation
The Arches Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce H. Armstrong
Mr. and Mrs. H. Ross Arnold III
Mr. David W. Arpi and  

Ms. Natalie Gubb
The AtLee Family Foundation
Mrs. Patricia K. AtLee
Dr. Emily H. Bailey and  

Mr. John Winslow
Mr. Jon W. Balke
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mr. Peter Bannon and  

Ms. Maura Considine
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd J. Baroody
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Barta
Mr. and Mrs. Roland L. Bates
Mr. Ian Bavey
Ms. Rebecca M. Baybrook
Mrs. Joan D. Bentz
Ms. Shirley M. Benzley
Dr. Robert A. Berenson
Ms. Victoria BerkeMeyer and  

Mr. Seth BerkeMeyer
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Dr. and Mrs. David F. Bishop
Mr. and Mrs. Cliff Blaker
Mr. Lawrence Blaskopf
Mr. Philip P. Bolton
Ms. Deborah Bombard
Mr. Geoffrey Bond
Dr. and Mrs. Gordon S. Bonham
Dr. Carol C. Borden
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Mr. and Mrs. William E. Boys
Ms. Jeffrey P. Breckel
Ms. Jan W. Briscoe
Bruce Family Limited Partnership
Bunnell Family Donor Advised 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Harry S. Burnett
Mr. Christopher A. Calhoun
Dr. Louis Centofanti and  

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Mr. John K. Chalmers
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Chamberlin
Ms. Martha Rose Charney
Mr. Marc A. Chary
Ms. Diane M. Chesnut
Dr. and Mrs. Chee W. Chow
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Ms. Marilyn Clary
Dr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Ms. Barbara Cocovinis
Mr. Patrick J. Coghlan
Mr. Edward B. Cohen and 

Ambassador Charlene 
Barshefsky

Ms. Susan Cohen and  
Mr. Doug Williams

Dr. and Mrs. J. Richard Collins
Ms. Deanna L. Congileo
Dr. Arnold R. Cowan and  

Rev. ChristineAnne C. Cowan
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Crain
Mr. Kevin T. Cronin
Mr. Rodney Bert Crossland
Mr. Jonathan Crowell
Mr. and Mrs. Alex Crumbley
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas 

Cunningham
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Curry
Dr. Roy Curtiss III
Dr. Peter B. Danzig and  

Ms. Lava Thomas
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mr. Justin De Graaf and  

Dr. Sumona De Graaf
Ms. Nancy A. Deering
Mr. and Mrs. John DeHarpporte
Dr. and Mrs. Gilbert B. Dickie
Mr. Mark Dickinson
The Dickinson-Stanghellini Trust
Mrs. Kimiko W. Dornburg
The Dougin Family Foundation
Mr. Douglas O. Drake
Ms. Julie Dretzin
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and  

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. and Mrs. Peter B. Dunlap
DVJ Partnership
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. David Eggert
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Elmhorst

Ms. Jill Ericsson
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Everly
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Mr. and Mrs. L. Reade Fahs
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Farese
Professor and Mrs. Joseph Farrell
The Honorable and Mrs. R. 

Keegan Federal Jr.
Ms. Ann B. Fegan
Mr. Kevin P. Filter and  

Ms. Sandra Tazelaar
Ms. Judith A. Fitz
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
Larry and Grace Fricks
FThree Foundation
Mr. Aki Fujimura and  

Ms. Sally Siao
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
Mr. and Mrs. William Gagen
Robert E. Gallagher Charitable 

Trust
Mr. James F. Gammill Jr. and  

Ms. Susan H. Alexander
Ms. Amy L. Gibbs
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Giordano
Mr. Thomas Glowacki
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and  

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Grose
The Gumbo Foundation
Carroll J. Haas Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
Ms. Mary J. Hamilton
Mr. Richard Hamilton and  

Mr. Leo Motivans
Ms. Karen A. Hammerstrom
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Ms. JoAnne Horton Hardy
Mr. and Mrs. David P. 

Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Harris
Reverend Miriam L. Hathaway
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Dr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Heller
Dr. Charles J. Helm
Ms. Babette Henagan
Mr. Jonathan R. Hettinger
Ms. Mary Emily Hogan
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis D. 

Hollingsworth
Dr. Don Holmgren and  

Dr. Jennifer Holmgren
Dr. Donald Hopkins and  

Dr. Ernestine Hopkins
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Alice and Jaclyn Houseknecht 

Foundation

Ms. Rita Hovakimian
Dr. Marla S. Howard and  

Dr. Howard Foster
Ms. Claudia N. Hughes
Dr. Matthew and Linda Hulbert
Mr. and Mrs. Germaine Hunter
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Hurt
Ms. Henna Inam
Dr. S. Rubina Inamdar and  

Mr. Kayyum Mansoor
Mr. and Mrs. Bahman M. Irvani
Ms. Sara Irvani
Jalima Holdings, Ltd.
Rev. Dr. Riley Jensen and  

Dr. Pamela Kidd
Dr. Kelley Rae Jewett and  

Ms. Kristi Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce E. Johnsen
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. Johnson
Ms. Marjory J. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Johnson
Ms. Marilee Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Jordan
Dr. Shawn P. Jorgensen and  

Dr. Stephanie E. Jorgensen
The Kallio Family Trust
Mr. Steven Kallio Jr.
Ms. Myra R. Kauffman and  

Mr. Michael R. McCartney
Ms. Rosemary M. Kessler
Mr. John E. Kinikin
Mr. Douglas Klaucke and  

Ms. Natalie Moses
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Ms. Cecelia S. Kreidler
Mr. and Mrs. Louis R. Kroll
Mr. Woodrow A. Krugel
Mr. Larry Kuhn
Mr. James G. Kulleck
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis R. Lacroix
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Dr. Susan M. Laing
Dr. David Lee and  

Dr. Lyn Jakeman
Mr. Dale W. Leibach
Ms. Patricia B. Leibach
Mr. Joseph Robert Lentini and 

Ms. Sandra J. Piech
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred R. Light
Mr. Bruce C. Lincoln
Ms. Julie A. Linker
Ms. Alicia Loo and  

Mr. Guy Miller
Ms. Karen E. Lotz-McMillen
Dr. Joyce H. Lowinson
Ms. Jane R. Lubben

Ms. Cheryl Luce
Mr. Howard L. Lyons
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
Joseph and Katherine Macari 

Foundation
Mr. Carl Malcolm and  

Dr. Jessica Link-Malcolm
Ms. Diane Malone
Mr. Iqbal G. Mamdani
Ms. Emily C. Martin
The John J. and Maryanne T. 

Mauriel Family Foundation
Ms. Anna L. Mayne
Ms. Margaret McCarthy
Ms. Valeri McGarvey
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Mr. Gary McGuire
Ms. Patricia Ann McGuire
Mr. Chris McIlvoy
Ms. Maridelle McKesson
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas C. 

McLaughlin
Mr. and Mrs. John McMullen
Mr. James J. McQueeny
Dr. and Mrs. Kenneth J. Mello
Mr. Tim Meltzer
Ms. Laverna E. Meyer
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and  

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Dr. and Mrs. James W. Mold
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Muirhead
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Mr. and Mrs. Leo F. Mullin
Mr. Thomas Mullooly
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Mr. Peter M. Musser
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Nielson
NLH Charitable Fund
Mr. Paul Noonan
Mr. Lee A. Obenchain
Ms. Dianne O’Connell
Mr. Paul I. Olsen
Mr. James M. O’Neill and  

Ms. Kathy Mosier
Ms. Deborah L. Ornowski
Ms. Charlotte J. Owens
The Ozma Fund
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Mr. Robert W. Page Jr.
Ms. Noreen J. Parrett
Ms. Marguerite Patterson
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. Waitat P. Poon
Mr. Jeffrey K. Postle
Mr. Michael Powers and  

Ms. Sallie Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Pozzi
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Mr. Andrew Pratt
Rudy & Alice Ramsey 

Foundation
Ms. Sara R. Ransford
Dr. Richard C. Reichman and  

Dr. Lisa Demeter Reichman
The Reidler Foundation
Ms. Stephanie W. Renuart
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Rieck
Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess
Mr. Raymond Allan Ring and  

Ms. Joann M. Peeks
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ritchie
Ms. Marilyn A. Robertson
Mr. Michael Robinson
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Rodman
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
Mr. Doug Rottman
Rottman Family Charitable 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Rowe
Ms. Cathi Roy
Mr. George A. Rudeseal
Ms. Kathy A. Sandoval
Mrs. Joanne D. Sanger
The Sank Family Foundation
Mr. Zachary B. Sank
Mr. William P. Saviers Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Paul David 

Schaeffer
Mr. and Mrs. Taylor Schollmaier
Dr. David T. Schreiner and  

Dr. Johanna R. Jorizzo
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Ms. Kathleen Sellman and  

Mr. William Carroll
Mr. Norman B. Senjem
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Andrew 

Shea
Robert A. Sherman & Gloria 

Sherman Family Foundation
Mr. Robert A. Sherman
Ms. Jane E. Shivers and  

Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
Ms. Mary M. Sies
Mr. A. Boyd Simpson and  

Ms. Melody Mann-Simpson
Ms. Susan Skog
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Smith
Mr. Mark C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. John Robert 

Southall
Ms. Joyce M. Stearns
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rodney Stern
Mr. Robert Stets Jr. and  

Ms. Lena Lee
Ms. Alice L. Stoll
Dr. Barbara S. Stowe

Ms. Margaret A. Strahl
Mr. David Stump and  

Dr. Carly Kenkel
Dr. and Mrs. Ali G. Surek
Sutter Instrument Company
Mr. and Mrs. Chester L. Sutula
Ms. Amy Swanson
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A. Swanson
Mr. Robert E. Swanton
Mr. and Mrs. Dalton Tarwater
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Dr. Samuel T. Test
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Tipton
Mr. Robert B. Tripp
Mr. L. David Tucker
Ms. Carol L. Tucker-Foreman
Mr. Charles R. Upshaw
Ms. Corbin Vandemoer
Mr. Brian K. Vaughan and  

Ms. Ruth McKee
Ms. Martha L. Vaughan
Vaughan McKee Family Trust
Vogel Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Vogel
Dr. Mark von Zastrow
Ms. Janet S. Walde
Ms. Carolyn Walker
Mr. Dougin Walker and  

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
The Ward Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
Commander Peter W. Ward and 

Mrs. Jennifer R. Dunson
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.
The Wayne Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Wayne Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. E. Hunter 

Welles III
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Wells
Sarah R. Wetherbee Charitable 

Trust
Mr. Michael J. Wetherbee
Ms. Ann Rhodes White
Mrs. Neva Whybark
Mr. John F. Wieland
Malcolm Hewitt Wiener 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm H. Wiener
Winestock Foundation
Mr. Jim Winestock
Mr. William Witcraft
Mr. and Mrs. James Douglas 

Workman
Ms. Penelope Wright
Wrocklage Family Charitable 

Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage
Mr. Alexander C. Wu

Mr. Keith C. Yarak
Dr. Clarice M. Yentsch
Ms. Jenni Yoshida
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak

Envoy $2,500–$4,999
Mrs. Billye S. Aaron
Dr. John R. Abelson and  

Ms. Kendall Rafter
Mr. Govinda Acharya
Mr. Donald Adams and  

Ms. Ellen Maland
Mr. James F. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Aiken
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph T. Alexander
Ms. Susan W. Almy
Ms. Barbara A. Anderson
Ms. Elizabeth Anderson
Ms. Kim M. Anderson
Dr. Larry J. Anderson and  

Ms. Karen Torghele
Sherman Michael Anderson Trust
Selma Ankist Family Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Gavin S. Appleby
Mr. Brian Arbogast and  

Ms. Valerie Tarico
Mr. Patrick W. Asher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Atkins
Mr. Mushtaq Azad and  

Dr. Manik Husain
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff C. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory 

Ballentine
Mr. Thomas Bapu
Ms. Beverly A. Barnett
Ms. Janet M. Bartlett
Mr. Todd Barton and  

Ms. Mary Elizabeth Kreider
Mr. David W. Bartz and  

Ms. Margaret L. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Bateman
Ms. Lyla B. Baumann
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan T. Bebb
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Sandi Jo Behnken
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Bellardo
Mr. Wayne Bert and  

Ms. Kerstin Jagerbo
Ms. Georgia A. Biesterveld
Ms. Elizabeth Biliske and  

Mr. Patrick Holmes
Ms. Patricia Bisset
Dr. Tallis Blalack and  

Ms. Katherine Weller
Dr. Lynn Z. Bloom
Mr. Wayne Blythe and  

Dr. Cheryl Blythe
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Bockmann
Ms. Joyce Hood Boettcher
Ms. Myrtle Bohanan

Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Ms. Victoria Bone
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Brainerd
Ms. Marion Elizabeth Brannon
Ms. Janice Brazil
Mrs. Rose Marie Brehm
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Bristow
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Brooks
Ms. Mary Lord Brown
Mr. Wesley Bryan and  

Ms. Terri Bryan-Zwick
Mr. Barry Bryant and  

Dr. Genevieve M. Lambert
Dr. Kathleen M. Burke
Mr. Michael W. Burke
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Butcher
Mr. and Mrs. Luca Cafiero
Ms. Diane Cantelli
Dr. Cecilia H. Cantrell
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Cardozo
Mr. Brian Carman
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. James E. Carter III and  

Ms. Rebecca P. Carter
Ms. Becky Carter
Dr. Susan M. Case and  

Dr. Alfred DeMaria Jr.
Mr. Sylvain Casimir and  

Ms. Luna Hilaire
The Cedars Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas I. Chacko
Mr. James G. Chamberlain and 

Ms. Diane B. Burrows
Sing and Joanne Chan 

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Sing Chan
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Chiang
Ms. Marge Coahran
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey M. Cohen
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and  

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Ms. Ellen Covairt and  

Mr. Bernard R. Kalscheuer
Ann and Jeff Cramer
Mrs. Pam Crockett
Dr. Gary Cromer and  

Ms. Judy K. Porter
Ms. Mary Karen Cronin
Mrs. Carleton E. Curran
Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Ms. Renu Daga
Mr. Ryan Dahlin
The Honorable and Mrs. John H. 

Dalton
Ms. Lynette C. Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Darmody
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Mr. William A. Deacon
Mr. Jeffrey Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Shaun K. Deola
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Ms. Irene Devine and  

Mr. Hal Schneider
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Docter
Ms. Joan E. Donnelly
Ms. Carol G. Dornbush
Ms. Peggy N. Dougherty
Ms. Irene Dowdy
Ms. Christine Doyle and  

Mr. Michael Yessik
Ms. Ruth Dunlop
Mr. Pierce Dunn and  

Ms. Barbara Hoyt
Ms. Marcia F. Dunscomb
Ms. Patricia Dusenbury
Eagan Family Foundation
Mr. J. Christopher Eagan
Ms. Jane Moretz Edmisten
Mr. M. Michael Egan
Dr. and Mrs. Bryon Ehlmann
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Eisenacher
The Honorable Stuart E. Eizenstat
Mr. Hugh Eley
Mr. Joseph E. Ellovich
Dr. Antoinette S. Emch
Ms. Kathryn Engholm and  

Mr. Jeffrey Earls
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Epstein
Ms. Sherma R. Erholm
Mr. Thomas W. Evans
Mr. Michael K. Ewert

Ms. Jean W. Faddis
Ms. Barbara Faga and  

Mr. Paul C. Kulinski
Dr. Paul G. Farnham
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P. Ferrell
Mrs. Ruth A. Fingerson
Ms. Jean H. Fisher
Ms. Nancy E. Fleischer
Ms. Helen Fosgate
Ms. Kristin Fossum
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Ms. Jeanna French
Mr. Markus Fromherz and  

Ms. Heike Schmitz
Dr. Eleonora C. Gabriel
Dr. Barry Gaeddert
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Alison Gallaway and  

Mr. Andy Carson
Carol and William Gay
Dr. and Mrs. Ranier Gehres
Mr. Wayne Gibson
The Honorable Gordon D. Giffin
Mr. John Gillespie
Dr. Patricia I. Gillis
Ms. Elizabeth G. Ginsberg
Ms. Mary B. Gooding
Abe Graber Memorial Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Graves

Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. Kevin F. Green
Ms. Patricia R. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Gritman
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
Mr. John B. Hanlon
Mr. Jay Hariz
Ms. Ann-Marie F. Hartline
Ms. Ellen Weaver Hartman
Mrs. Kathleen J. Hasenohrl
Mr. William P. Hausdorff, Ph.D. 

and Ms. Wendell Hausdorff, 
Ph.D

Dr. Harry W. Haverkos
Mrs. Judith Hays
HCD Foundation
Ms. Vivian J. Headings
Hans H. and Kathryn W. Heikel
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Helpenstell
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Heneghan
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. Frederick C. Herzog III and 

Ms. Marla J. Mercer
Ms. Janet L. Hesness
Ms. Kathleen Hester
Ms. Susan A. Heule
Mr. Joseph Hingston and  

Ms. Theresa Gladek-Hingston

Dr. JoNell L. Hjelsand
Mr. and Mrs. Philip E. 

Holladay Jr.
Mr. Forest Honl
Mr. Earl D. Horman
Ms. Mary L. Hortin
Mrs. Janet M. Howle
Mr. Robert C. Hoyler
Mr. MacLay Hoyne
Mr. and Mrs. Fritz Huebner
F. A. Hunter & Associates
Mr. Farley A. Hunter
Mr. and Mrs. Alan D. Husak
Mr. Rick Huszagh and  

Ms. Cristina E. Carrell
The Rick Hutcheson and Rob 

Kincaid Charitable Giving Fund 
at The Community Foundation, 
Strengthening Inland 
Southern California through 
Philanthrophy

Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. 
Iacolucci

Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
Mr. Zephyr Isely and  

Ms. Fruzan Parvanta
Ms. Kazuko Ishida
Ms. Jo Bess Jackson
Dr. Marianne Jackson
Jana Foundation

Jason Carter (center), chair of the Carter Center's Board of Trustees and grandson of Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter, talks with 
members of the Climate Advocacy Team in Gwembe, Zambia, where some of the 4,500 seedling trees the community is 
planting to help fight climate change were on display. 
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Mr. Robert L. Jennings Jr. and 
Ms. Barbara H. Bott

Ms. Karen Jing
Mr. and Mrs. Eric W. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. George D. 

Johnson Jr.
Mr. Jonathan D. Johnson
Mr. Charles E. Jones
Mrs. Kimberly A. Jones
Ms. Kyung Joo
Mr. Lawrence E. Jordan
Ms. Janice M. Jung and  

Mr. John Davis
Dr. Julian Leonard Kadish
Ms. Kris L. Kandler and  

Ms. Kim Kandler
Mr. Nicholas Karsiotis
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Kaste
Ms. M. Emilie Keas
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher A. 

Keenan
Mr. Bill Kehl
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Kick
Dr. Larry Reese Kidd
Dr. and Mrs. William A. Kincaid
Mr. Michael R. King
Mr. and Mrs. Abram Klein
Dr. and Mrs. David Kleinbaum
Steven and Diane Knapp
Dr. and Mrs. David A. Knauft
Ms. Kathleen Knepper
Mr. and Mrs. Gearold L. Knowles
Mrs. Susan Knowles
Ms. Kristin L. Koblish
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Mr. Kerry W. Kohnen
Ms. Cynthia Kosacz
Dr. and Mrs. Gary A. Krasicky
Mr. Ronald Krisch
Dr. R. K. Krishnan
Ms. Donna S. Kutner
Nancy G. Kutner, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Labowsky
Mr. Michael LaHood and  

Ms. Elizabeth Pontikes
Dr. Genevieve M. Lambert
Ms. Leslie C. Lambert
Mr. and Mrs. Scott D. Lambros
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Lane
Mr. and Mrs. William Laprade
Mr. and Mrs. James M. LaRowe
Mr. Gregory E. Larrison
Mr. John R. Larsen
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley C. Lawson
Mr. Douglas Leal
Mr. Thomas Lease
Ms. Jessica Ledbetter and  

Ms. Ranee Barsanti

LeFort-Martin Fund of 
The Chicago Community 
Foundation

Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey D. Leman
Mr. and Mrs. L. Dave Lentz
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M. 

Leuthold
Mr. David R. Lewis
David R. Lewis Family 

Foundation
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Mr. Ronald M. Libby and  

Ms. Janene Miller
Ms. Elsa Limbach
Ms. E. Kirsten Linker
Mr. Christopher Linn and  

Ms. Patricia Kellison
Ms. Angela M. Lo Re
Mr. Gregory Loek and  

Ms. Kathleen Rice
Mr. Joseph E. Logan
Mr. Howard Lowen
Ms. Phyllis Lucas and  

Mr. Odin D. Christensen
Lutes Family
Ms. Patricia A. Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Lyttle
Mr. and Mrs. D. Gordon 

MacLeod
Dr. and Mrs. David Maharry
Ms. Julia Maher
Dr. Mark Manasse and  

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani
Stuart Mannon, M.D.
Ms. Pamela J. Mansfield
Mr. James F. Marchman III
Dr. and Mrs. William E. Marsh
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph G. Martin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis A. Martinek
Ms. Joycelyn A. Martinez-Wade
Mr. and Mrs. Richard T. Mason
Mr. William K. Mathison
Mr. John W. Maynard and  

Ms. Judith P. Snyder
Mr. Brian K. Mazar and  

Mrs. Anne S. Mazar
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Alexander F. & Phyllis L. McCalla 

Revocable Trust
Jean Ann and Barry McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. 

McCarthy
Ms. Florence McCutcheon
The McCutcheon Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Carl McElwee
Ms. Janice McGarrah and  

Mr. Steven Williams
Ms. Veronica McGlynn
Ms. Kathleen M. McKinley
McMahon Family Fund at  

The San Diego Foundation
Ms. Linda McMullen

Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan W. Mead
Dr. Nathaniel Griffith Means
Ms. Smita Mehta
Ms. Ramona H. Merrifield
Ms. Ann G. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Miller
Ms. Susan E. Miller-Tully
Mr. Stuart Mills and  

Mrs. Helen Probst Mills
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Mirsky
Ms. Emilie A. Mitchell
Ms. Betty J. Mizek
Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Motes
Dr. Linda Mulka
Dr. Christine Murphy
Dr. Trudy Murphy
Mr. John Nagel
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Nard
Dr. Robert Negrini and  

Ms. Jana McIntyre
Mr. Matthew Neiger
Mr. Douglas W. Nelson
Ms. Linda A. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. 

Netherland
Ms. Anne Neuhaus
Ms. Suzanne K. Nieman
Selma Ankist Family Trust, 

Andrea Nobil, Trustee
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Noonan
Norwell Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Richard S. Novack
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. O’Neill
Mr. Robert E. Oppenheimer
Ms. Sue Overdevest
Rusty and Connie Pace Family 

Foundation
Mr. Rusty Pace
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Page
Dr. Paul M. Parker and  

Mr. Eric D. Johnson
Ms. Jacqueline F. Patterson
Mr. Daniel K. Paulien
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Mr. Edward A. Pearson
Ms. Irene Pecuszok
The Irene A. Pecuszok 

Living Trust
Dr. Deborah S. Lee and  

Mr. John W. Peifer
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Q. Perritt
Mr. William Kanarek and  

Ms. Deborah Perry
Mr. Grant Petersen and  

Ms. Mary Anderson
Mr. Norman John Peterson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Guy D. Pfeiffer
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Poag
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Pollack
Ms. Virginia Benton Pollack
Ms. Susie Q. Pomares

Ms. Margaret F. Pryatel
Psychological Assessment 

Resources
Mr. and Mrs. Gabriel L. Pugliese
Mrs. Diana Quattlebaum
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Quinn
Dr. Archana Ramaswamy and  

Dr. Rumi Faizer
Mrs. Sam T. Ray
Mr. and Mrs. D. Paul Regan
Dr. Monique M. Regard
Mr. Michael J. Repass
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Reppun
Mr. Lee Allen Reynolds
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Dr. and Mrs. Jason Rich
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew T. 

Richmond
Mr. and Mrs. Randy 

Rinderknecht
Ms. Christina Lyn Cooley Rivers
Dr. and Mrs. Paul F. Rizza
Ms. Shirley K. Robb
Ms. Janessa R. Robinson
Mr. Gary N. Rogers and  

Ms. Jeri L. Lane
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M. Rohan
Mr. Paul Romano
Mr. James H. Rowe III
Mrs. Luana D. Rubin
Ms. Trina P. Russell
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Sablesak
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Sager
Mr. and Mrs. John Saukaitis
Ms. Judith A. Schaffenacker
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Schentrup
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Schlake
Ms. Barbara J. Schmid
Mrs. Charlotte H. Schmidt
Ms. Susan A. Schneider
Mr. Kent Schoch
The Murry & Florence Schott 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. Robert J. Schott
Ms. Kathryn Schultz
Mr. Kirk A. Scott
The Honorable Leah Sears and 

Mr. Haskell Ward
Dr. Mridu Sekhar and  

Dr. Chandra Sekhar
Dr. Timothy H. Self and  

Dr. Melissa Matlock-Self
The Selig Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. S. Stephen Selig III
Mr. Charles R. Sellers
Ms. Laura Turner Seydel
Mr. Scott O. Seydel Jr.
Dr. A. Richey Sharrett
Ms. Isabel F. Shaskan
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Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
Ms. Carolyn S. Shawaker
Ms. Josephine Sherwood
Dr. Cynthia Shewan
Ms. Gail D. Shore
Ms. Ruth Shults and  

Mr. Charles Bradley
Mr. John R. Shutt
Mr. Robert O. Simons
Ms. Andrea L. Sjoreen
Bruce R. and Jane Scharding 

Smedley
Mr. and Mrs. Joel F. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Ms. Phyllis A. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Mr. Valton D. Smith
Dr. David A. Snow and  

Dr. Roberta Lessor
Mr. Edwin C. Sparks
Mr. Jim Spearman
Ms. Margaret J. Spencer and  

Ms. Patricia J. Lahti
Mr. Michael Spiegelman
Mr. Stephen R. Spivey
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald K. Stair
Mrs. Harriet Steinberg
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Stensrud
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Stewart
Mr. Frank Stiebel
Stillwater Electric
Mr. Steven Stockman
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Stripe
Mrs. Irene Stuart
Ms. Patricia M. Sullivan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Super
Ms. Elizabeth C. Sussman
Mr. Philip L. Swan
Mr. Tad J. Swida
Mr. Richard Szeliski and  

Ms. Lyn McCoy
Mr. Douglas Szperka and  

Dr. Christina Szperka
Ms. Genevieve M. Szuba
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Tausz
Temcov Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Temcov
Ms. Janice L. Thompson
Mr. Charles E. Thornton-Kolbe
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Torian Jr.
Tosa Foundation
Ms. Susan T. Trackman
Ms. Mary Treanor
Mr. and Mrs. Roland D. Trietsch
Ms. Dari Tritt
Turner Foundation
Mr. David Tyson
Mr. James R. Uber and  

Ms. Jean E. Marcy

Mr. Peter Ungar
Ms. Donna Van Wechel
Mr. and Mrs. William T. 

VanCuren
The Melinda and William J. 

vanden Heuvel Foundation
Mrs. Melinda vanden Heuvel
Mr. and Mrs. John Vottero
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Vrana
Ms. Donna Waechter
Ms. Sherry C. Walton
Ms. Kathryn Lynn Ward
Hon. Larry F. Warren
Ms. Margaret B. Watkins
Ms. Nancy A. Watson
Ms. Kathleen F. Webb
Dr. Paul L. Weiden and  

Ms. Beverly L. Linkletter
Mr. Max W. Wendell
Ms. Carolyn C. Wheeler
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Whinfrey
Mr. Thomas L. White Jr.
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Mr. Tyler Wiegert
Mr. Roger C. Wiest
Mr. Peter D. Wildes and  

Dr. Julia W. Wildes
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Ms. Susan Williamson
Ms. Aletta T. Wilson
Ms. Emily Wirth
Mr. Kenneth P. Wolford
Ms. Marion Woodfield and  

Mr. Marc Weinberg
Mr. John F. Woods
Dr. Susan Zimicki
Ms. Marilyn R. Zitterkopf
Ms. Amy P. Zupancic

Emissary $1,000–$2,499
Dr. and Mrs. Jack A. Aaron
Mr. Dwight L. Aarons
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Dr. Alicia Abell and  

Mr. David Abell
Ms. Tamara Abell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. and Mrs. Paul N. Abraham
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Abrams Foundation
Mr. Jeffrey S. Adamczak
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Adams
Ms. Sally Adams and  

Mr. Louis Richard
Mr. Thomas Adams and  

Ms. Erin Bell
Mr. Albert F. Adcock
Ms. Alice J. Adcock
Mr. and Mrs. Alfonso L. Adderly

Mr. and Mrs. George A. 
Adriaenssens

Mr. John Affleck and  
Ms. Jessica Ancker

Ms. Barbara R. Agosin
Dr. Charu Agrawal
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Dr. Gillian Air
Dr. Oluade A. Ajayi
Dr. Paul B. Albee and  

Dr. Laura A. Campbell
Dr. Jason Albers
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Alberts
Mr. Joseph Alexander and  

Ms. Janine Clayton
Ms. Priscilla Alexander
Ms. Vera M. Alexander
Drs. Bradley and Lindsay Alger
Mr. Peter F. Allard
Shirley & David Allen 

Foundation
Mr. H. Inman Allen
Dr. Lee-Ann H. Allen
Mr. Richard C. Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Allison
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Alonzo
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Alston Sr.
Ms. Sally K. Alt
Ms. Patricia L. Amend and  

Mr. Stephen Dean
Dr. Sam Amirfar and  

Dr. Vibhuti Arya
Mrs. Rosalie Amos
Ms. Jessica Ancker
Ms. Jacqueline Anders
The Andersen Charitable Trust
Ms. Anita M. Anderson
The Honorable and Mrs. Brady 

Anderson
Dr. Cris J. Anderson
Mr. David R. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. 

Anderson
Chaplain Col. Jack N. Anderson
Joan Brownell Anderson, Ph.D.
Mr. John W. Anderson
Mr. Karl D. Anderson
Mr. Larry W. Anderson and  

Mr. Michael Bernard Boulas
Mrs. Nancy E. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Scott W. Anderson
Mr. Jonathan Andrews and  

Ms. Susan Gay
Mr. Richard Andrews
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Angel
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Dr. Anita Antler
Rev. Carl Anton
Mr. Glen Y. Arakawa and  

Mr. Arthur W. Selly

Ms. Miriam N. Arbelo
Mr. Jerry J. Arca
Ms. Laura Arcidiacono
Mr. Carlos Arias
Ms. Sheila M. Armstrong
Mr. Kevin W. Arthur
Mr. Seth Arvanites and  

Ms. Andrea Daley-Arvanites
Ms. Joanne S. Arvid
Ms. Ann M. Ashton
Aslan Capital
Ms. Sharon Atack
Mr. Roger Atkinson and  

Ms. Janet Arey
Mr. Bernard Attal and  

Ms. Gerluze Santana
Dr. Jeffery S. Atwater
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Augsburger
Ms. Diane D. AuKamp
Dr. Sharon Aukerman
Allan and Anne Aunspaugh
Mrs. Julia E. Austbo
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Austin
Ms. Sandra L. Austin
Ms. Pamela W. Avedisian
Ms. Marilyn M. Ayres
Dr. and Mrs. Richard J. Babaian
Mr. and Mrs. Jack L. Bacon
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Bader
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Bagby III
Ms. Elizabeth Lenore Bailey
Dr. Virginia R. Bailey
Bailey-Thompson Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Mark F. Bainbridge
Dr. William H. Baird
Dr. and Mrs. David J. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. George Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Bakker
Dr. John Ball and Ms. Jean Dillon
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Ballantine
Ms. Betty B. Ballard
Ms. Jacqueline Ballester
Ms. Laurie L. Balmuth
Mr. and Mrs. Parmanand Balsaver
Mr. Joseph L. Balwierczak
Dr. and Mrs. Richard N. Baney
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Bankoff
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Banks
Ms. Lorelle K. Banzett
Mr. and Mrs. Mal L. Barasch
Ms. Dolores J. Barber
Mr. Paul L. Barden
Mr. Robert Barr
Ms. Roberta M. Barrett
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Barringer
Mr. W. Frank Barron Jr.
Mr. Robert L. Barry
Ms. Sue S. Bartlett
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Mr. John J. Barton
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Barton
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Barton
Rev. and Mrs. Clayton Bates
Mr. Stephen Bates
Mr. Michael Batte and  

Ms. Wanda Kile
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Bauder
Ms. Helen H. Baumann
Mr. and Mrs. Robert T. Baumel
Mr. Richard A. Baumgartner
Patti and Owen Baynham
Mr. and Mrs. David Bean
Dr. David Bear and  

Dr. Laurie Hammer Bear
Bear Sontz Family Foundation
Ms. Gillian L. Beasley
Ms. Lauren L. Beaudry
Ms. Barbara Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Joe M. Beck
Dr. Jonathan Becker and  

Ms. Danielle Wilson
Beckman Family Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Beckman
Mr. and Mrs. Royce Bedward
Ms. Patricia F. Beerhalter
Mr. Stephen Beers
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Beeton
Rev. Lance Beizer
Mr. William Belknap
Ms. Brenda A. Bell
The Belsky Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Mark Belsky
Mr. and Mrs. John O. Belt
Mr. Herbert E. Benadom
Mr. John E. K. Benfer
Mr. and Mrs. John Benjamin
Mr. David L. Bennett
Dr. Sarah Benor
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Bente III
Ms. Kim S. Berez
Ms. Robin Michelle Bergen and 

Ms. Janine Hackett
Mr. Laurence N. Berking
Mr. Richard E. Berkins and  

Ms. Tomoko Takami
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Bernados
Mr. Thomas Bernadzikowski
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Berry
Dr. Gloria M. Berttucci
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Beschta
Ms. Kathleen S. Best
Bette Jane Charitable Fund
Mrs. Kathy Betty
Jim and Kim Betz
Mrs. Victoria E. Beynon
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Biggs
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Biller II

Mrs. Cherry A. Billings
Ms. Suzanne Binder and  

Mr. Jeffrey Sacks
Ms. Catherine Binns
Dr. and Mrs. Ashley R. Bird
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Bitterling
Ms. Brenda J. Black
Mr. Vanderbilt Black
Ms. Becky Blalock
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Bland
Ms. Diana Blank
Mr. Harry E. Blevins Jr.
Mr. Robert E. Bliemeister
Mrs. Judith L. Bliley
Dr. Carl Blobel
Mr. Richard Blohm
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Ms. Susan F. Blumenberg
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Boddy
Mr. and Mrs. Scott R. Boerke
Mrs. Robert C. Bogenpohl
Ms. Joan W. Boggs
Dr. and Mrs. John K. Boitnott
Ms. Linda Bollensen
Mr. and Mrs. Ross N. Bolton
Ms. Rosalynn June Bonamusa
Mr. Zoltan J. Borbely
Mr. Bruce G. Borglum
Mr. Arne M. Borgnes
Dr. Leslie McIntosh Borrelli and 

Mr. Steven Borrelli
Ms. Kathryn Bosler
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Boudreaux
Ms. Carrie Boulet
Mr. Chris Boulton
Ms. Margaret Bourg
Ms. Roseann Bove
Ms. Kathleen Bovid
Ms. Heidi Bankes Bowen
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas L. Bowman
Mr. Jeffrey T. Bowman
Ms. Deborah Boyce
Ms. Helen Boyce
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Boyd
Ms. Molly E. Boyle
Mr. Henry H. Boyter Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Braband
Mr. Todd C. Bradbury
John and Kristine Bradley
Dr. Lucy A. Bradley-Springer and 

Mr. Robert E. Springer
Mr. Charles R. Brainard
Ms. Jeanine Brakefield
Mr. Albert Brandel and  

Dr. Maureen Murphy
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Branscomb Family Foundation

Mr. Lewis M. Branscomb
Mrs. Benjie H. Branson
Mr. and Mrs. Alan J. Brattesani
Ms. Carolyn Bratush
Ms. Joanne Bratush
Mr. Brad Braufman
Ms. Nancy E. Braun
Mr. Miguel Bray
Mr. Edward G. Brekke
Mr. Sean M. Brennan
Drs. John and Carol Brewer
Mr. Alan R. Bright
Ms. Frances T. Britton
Ms. Lori Britton
Ms. Katherine K. Brobeck
Brockman Farming
Mr. Harold C. Brockman and  

Ms. Cynthia Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Reade Brower
Mr. Aaron B. Brown
Ms. Allison Brown
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Brown
Rev. and Mrs. John L. Brown
Mr. Mike Brown
Mr. Richard R. Brown and  

Ms. Sandra Jean Zaremba
Mr. Robert Clarke Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart H. Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and  

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Carol J. Brull
Dr. David Brunco and  

Ms. Anna Lee
Mrs. Barbara Brunell
Ms. Deborah P. Bryant
Mr. Scott Bryson
The Brzezinski Family Foundation
Mr. Ian J. Brzezinski
Ms. Margaret Buckley
Dr. Robert E. Budin and  

Dr. Diane A. Lowe
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. 

Buechner III
Ms. Dale C. Buffaloe
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne L. 

Bullaughey
Ms. Josie B. Bumgarner
Rev. Dearl L. Bunce
Ms. Mary Catherine Bunting
Ms. Mary Alice Burack
Ms. Mary Stewart Burgher
Dr. Merrikay Oleen Burkey
Mr. and Mrs. James Burnis
Mr. James Burns
Mrs. Janet M. Burns
Ms. Rita J. Burns
Dr. Stephen Burns
Ms. Christine T. Burr

Dr. Robert A. Burri
Dr. Annie Hunt Burriss
Dr. William J. Burtis
Dr. Thomas G. Burton
Ms. Marilyn J. Burysz
Mr. Jonathan Busch
Mr. Paul Bushland
Ms. Jean A. Busker
Ms. Enid J. Busser
Mrs. Irene L. Bussjaeger
Dr. David M. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Chuck and Susan Buxton
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry M. Byrd
Dr. Sherryl A. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Ms. Kris Byrne
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Ms. Sandra Cable and  

Mr. Edwin Cable
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Cable
Ms. Patricia Cabot
Mr. Charles Caldwell
Mr. and Mrs. Duke M. Caldwell
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Call
Ms. Megan B. Callaghan
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Camara
Dr. David L. Camenga and  

Ms. Nora B. Arnold
Ms. Patricia M. Cameron
Dr. Ryan Cameron
Ms. Sandra R. Camley
Ms. Charlotte T. Campbell
Ms. Connie Campbell
Dr. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Ms. Jane E. Campbell
Ms. Janet W. Campbell
Mr. Phil W. Campbell
Ms. Regan C. Campbell
Mr. and Mrs. David Canfield
Ms. Sandra M. Capano
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Capella
Ms. Catherine Capriles
Ms. Pamela A. Cardoza
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony R. 

Cardullo
Ms. Carole M. Carey
Ms. Statia Carey
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and  

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. Jeffery A. Carpenter
Mr. Robert Carr
Mr. Robert E. Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. 

Carrano II
Mr. John Carroll
Mr. Brandon W. Carson
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Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Dr. Jean Carter and  

Mr. Michael P. Carter
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
The Calvin W. Carter Family
Mr. Pierre Carton
Ms. Victoria P. Carver
Mr. Daniel Casey and  

Ms. Dolores Connolly
Ms. Judith Cassella
Ms. Sharon L. Cassidy
Ms. Cecily L. Cassum
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley D. Casto
Ms. Theresa Catino
Mr. and Mrs. Richard E. 

Cavanagh
Mr. Richard A. Cavanaugh
Dr. Roy Caviglia
Mr. and Mrs. Sy Chaba
Ms. Collette Chabbott
Dr. Arthur Chaffee
Ms. Christina Chalkley
Ms. Rebecca Chambers
Edith and Anthony Chan
Mr. Kang Chan
Mr. Kelvin Chan
Ms. Aruna Chandra
Mr. Ramaswamy Chandrashekar
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Chanin
Ms. Miriam D. Chapman
Ms. Amy Charles
Ms. Eileen Chase and  

Mr. William T. Shefchik
Mr. Kenneth Chase
Dr. Michael D. Chase and  

Dr. Patricia Sato
Dr. and Mrs. Lawrence Chasin
Mr. David Chasson
Ms. Karen S. Chatham
Mr. Eng-Aun Cheng
Ms. Frances Chessler and  

Mr. James Gill
Ms. Lynda P. Chesterton
Mrs. Anne A. Chew
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Mr. Albert Chiang and  

Ms. Janet Yang
Mr. James J. Childre Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Lance Chilton
Mr. Fei-Pang Ching
Mr. and Mrs. Philip S. Chordas
Mr. Henry Chou
Ms. Marianne R. Christiano
Robert and Bobbé 

Christopherson
Mr. Chiwei D. Chuang
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Claeys
Cameron R. Clark
Ms. Edith R. Clark

Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Ms. Judith Clarkson
Dr. Jaclynn R. Clasen
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Ms. Pamela Cobey and  

Ms. Beth Rosen
Ms. Regina Cocanougher
Mr. John Cochran and  

Ms. Sue Lasbury
Mr. Alan M. Cody and  

Ms. Edith-Cody Moricz
Mr. David H. Cofrin and  

Ms. Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mr. and Mrs. Darvy M. Cohan
Mr. Edward M. Cohen and  

Ms. Anne Bakstad
Mr. Robert L. Cohen
Dr. and Mrs. Xerxes R. Colah
Ms. Ammie R. Cole
Ms. Sheryl Beckler Cole
Mr. Daniel D. Coleman
Mr. Daniel J. Coleman
Mr. Robert B. Colgin
Mrs. Beverly R. Collins
Ms. Courtney Collins
Mrs. John Collins
Dr. Margaret H. Collins
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Collins
Mr. Thomas R. Collins
Mr. Dale T. Collura
Mr. and Mrs. Ryan Colvin
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Colyar
Ms. Carol R. Combs
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Comer
Mr. James Congo
Mr. Bryan Conley and  

Ms. Monika Nikore
Mr. Gerald R. Connor
Dr. K. T. Connor
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Conradi
Ms. Nancy Contel
Mr. John D. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Cooke
Mr. Chad C. Cooley
Mr. James M. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan P. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin C. Cooper
Dr. and Mrs. Max D. Cooper
Ms. Shan Cooper
Ms. Susan K. Cooper
Mr. Troy L. Cooper
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr. and 

Ms. Deborah E. McFarland
The Honorable Samuel G. 

Coppersmith
Ms. Camille Coppin
Ms. Alyse Lucas Corcoran and 

Mr. John L. Morrison
Dr. and Mrs. Eugene H. Cordes

Ms. Ellyn Corey and  
Mr. Thomas Sartor

Ms. Jessica Cork
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Corkery
Mr. Philip Corliss
Dr. Lourdes C. Corman
Dr. Lynn D. Cornell
Ms. Jill Cornwell and  

Mr. Barry Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Cortelyou
Mr. Rod Corvo
Dr. and Mrs. Michael F. Coscia
Ms. Christina M. Coulourides
Mr. and Mrs. William M. Coulter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Couric
Mr. Glenn R. Courtney
Ms. Loretta Coussirat
Mr. Joel H. Cowan
Dr. Shawn Cowper and  

Dr. Carolyn Rambus
Cox Farms Virginia
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney B. Cox
Ms. Susan K. Cox-Stouffer
Mr. Mark A. Craig
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Craighead
Beth Crane and Richard McKee
Ms. Lisa M. Cremin and  

Mr. W. Bruce Harlan
Dr. Melinda D. Crenshaw
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Crenshaw
Ms. Linda K. Criminger
Ms. Laura L. Crites
Ms. Emily Cronin
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Dr. Catherine Cross
Ms. Donnielle Crossman
Mrs. Anne S. Crowder
Mrs. Betty McGarvie Crowley
Mr. Charles L. Crum Jr.
Dr. Donna Culhane and  

Dr. Wayne M. Eberenz
Cullman Clinical Research
Culver Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Bart Culver
Mr. John F. Cummings
Mr. Robert A. Cunningham
Mr. Will Curns
Ms. Susan M. Curran
Ms. Susan Jane Curtis
Ms. Kristin A. Cutler
Ms. Jean Cypher
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Czarnezki
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D’Adamo
Mr. Larry R. D’Addario
Ms. Rosemary T. Dahl
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Dahlberg
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Dalton
Ms. Colleen Daly
Ms. Nancy D’Amico

Mr. Peter Danbury
Ms. Julia Dancy
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 

Danielsen
Ms. Ann Dannenberg and  

Mr. Glenn D. Rosen
Dr. Carol F. Daron
Mr. Carl Davenport
Mr. Alan J. Davino
Ms. Barbara M. Davis
Mr. Charles Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Erroll B. Davis Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Davis
Dr. Guy D. Davis and  

Ms. Norma Hensler-Davis
Mr. James L. Davis
Mr. John Davis
Mr. Larry E. Davis and  

Ms. Paula J. Quell
Ms. Nancy B. Davis
Mr. Durfee Day
Dr. Homer A. Day
Dr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Mr. and Mrs. David L. De Ford
Mr. Matthew De Galan
Mr. P. De Villiers
Dr. Philip Dean and  

Dr. Linda Church
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

DeBenedittis
Ms. Ann Marie Dechman
Dr. Patricia L. Dedert and  

Dr. Michiel E. Ultee
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. Deel
Mr. David A. DeFehr
Mr. David J. Deffinbaugh
Mr. Derek Deitz
Ms. Ann L. DeLancey
Mr. Edward S. Delaplaine II
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Delgado
DeMaria Case Family Living Trust
Mr. Richard Demenus
Reverend Catherine B. 

Dempesy-Sims
Ms. Françoise E. Denis
Mr. George Timothy Denley
Mr. Raymond E. Dennis
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mrs. Marg Denny
Ms. Lynne F. Derus
Ronak and Bansari Desai
Ms. Marsha Desaussure
Mr. Thomas M. Dethlefs
Ms. Andrea R. Devereux
Ms. Maryalice Devine
Mr. and Mrs. Roger DeVries
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Rev. and Mrs. Donald N. Dial
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Mr. and Mrs. Pedro M. Diaz
Mr. Timothy Diaz
Ms. Bonita V. DiCarlo
Dr. Claudia C. Dickerson and 

Mr. Wayne Grinstead
Mr. Harry A. Dickerson
Ms. Barbara H. Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. 

Dieckmann
Ms. Marion Diener
Dr. Russell N. Dietz and  

Ms. Patricia E. Yalden
Mr. Richard H. W. Dillard
Ms. Jean Marie Dillon
Mr. and Mrs. Lucien A. Dimino
Dinneen Charitable Giving Fund
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Dinsmore
Ms. Lynn Dixon
Ms. Sue Ellen Dobie
Mr. Michael Dodd
Dr. Virginia M. Dodd and  

Ms. Fan Watson
Mr. William R. Dodge and  

Ms. Cynthia Chertos
Dr. Daniel W. Dodgen
Ms. Mary Jane Dodson
Mr. Robert D. Dodson
Mr. William Doerrer
Mr. Joseph P. Dominguez and 

Mr. Robert Burkholder
Mr. Ronald Doney and  

Mr. Michael Allard
Nelson G. Dong, Esq.
Mr. Victor Donnay
Mr. Winton D. Dorow
Mr. Duane Dorscheid
Dr. Razak A. Dosani
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn R. Doshay
Ms. Kathy Doughty
Ms. Rebecca Dowdakin and  

Ms. Flora McMartin
Ms. Moira Dowell
Ms. Beverly Patricia Downing and 

Mr. Jefferson Davis
Dr. Deborah D. Downs and  

Dr. Rami R. Razouk
Dr. Stephen M. Downs
Dr. Diane E. Dreher
Ms. Mary L. Dresser
Ms. Carole J. Drew
Dr. Joseph D. Driskill and  

Ms. Leslie Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelis J. Drost
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel Drotts
Mrs. Faye S. Drummond
Ms. Roseann Dryja
Mr. Robert W. Ducsay
Ms. Maureen Dudley
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Duggan
Dr. Lissa Dulany

Mr. and Mrs. Michael Dull
Ms. Lisa A. Dunavin
Ms. Kaye S. Duncan
Ms. Deborah Dunevant
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Durbin
Mr. William K. Dustin
Ms. Bertha B. Duvernay
Dr. David E. Dwyer and  

Dr. Heidi Lindroth
Ms. Fernanda A. Dykas
Mr. Charles A. Dyke
Dr. Brad Dyke and  

Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Ms. Marilyn K. Eaton
Mr. and Mrs. Conrad J. Eberstein
Mr. and Mrs. Martin J. Eble
Ms. Deborah Ebster
Mr. and Mrs. George H. 

Eddings Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bert P. Eder Sr.
Dr. Brenda K. Edwards
Ms. Carol Edwards
Ms. Genelle Edwards
Col. (Ret.) Ronald A. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. Edmund A. Egan
Ms. Patricia L. Egan-Myers
Mr. Edmond Eger
Ms. Laura M. Egger
Ms. Irene A. Ehret
Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ekman
Dr. Mouradi B. Elchahal
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Eller
Ms. Nida Elley
Mr. David Elsila
Dr. Jill Endres
Mr. Michael K. Eng
Mr. Henry P. Engell
Dr. Mary Jane England
Ms. Patricia H. Enmon
Dr. Carol Entwistle and  

Mr. Fred Entwistle
The Phyllis & Donald Epstein 

Foundation
Ms. Phyllis K. Epstein
Dr. and Mrs. Trent Erney
Ms. Catherine M. Erny
Ms. Evelyne M. Eshelman
Mr. Joseph W. Esherick and  

Ms. Wa Ye
The Lisa Esherick Fund at 

the East Bay Community 
Foundation

Ms. Kathleen Espalin
Mr. Daniel Esrey
Mr. Robert J. Essick
Mr. José A. Esteves
Ms. Mary Etrick and  

Ms. Carol Pitcher
Mr. and Mrs. David Evans

Evans Insulation Company
Mr. Joseph W. Evans
Dr. and Mrs. Martin E. Evans
Ms. Sandra L. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Evans
Dr. and Mrs. Edward Ewing
Mrs. Susan Ewing
Mr. and Mrs. Dieter H. Faber
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Fairbrother
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Fantuzzi
Dr. Harlicia F. Farley
Dr. and Mrs. Neil Farris
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Feeney
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. Henry David 

Fellows Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Mr. and Mrs. Michael F. Feno
Ms. Laura M. Ferenc
Ms. Patricia Ferlic
Mr. Johnny Ferlita
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Ms. Lynda Fife
Mr. Daniel A. Figg
Ms. Robin Figueroa
Mr. Erik Finley
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory K. Finn
Mr. and Mrs. John Fiorillo
Dr. Bruce M. Firestone
First Presbyterian Church
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth W. Fischer
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Fisher
Ms. Catherine Fissell
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Fite
Reverend Sue Fitzgerald
Ms. Sara J. Fitzgerald
Dr. Colleen Fitzpatrick
Mr. John M. Fitzpatrick and  

Ms. Patricia F. Robinson
Ms. Ellen P. Flaherty
Mr. Christophe Flament
Mr. and Mrs. William Flanagan
Mr. David Fleming
Ms. Ruthann Marie Fleming
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Ms. Sarah L. Flosi
Ms. Patricia M. Flowers
Mr. and Mrs. William Foley
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Folk
Ms. Irene Ford
Ms. Karen K. Fore
Mr. Andrew Foreman
Former First Lady Libraries
Mr. Guy Formichella
Mr. John S. Forrer
Mr. Leo C. Forrest
Ms. Sumarie Bass Forrester

Ms. Barbara L. Forster
Ms. Martha Ann Foster
Ms. Karen S. Fouad
Mr. and Mrs. R. Dean Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Fox Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Fox
Mr. Michael Francini and  

Ms. Alys Milner
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. 

Francisco
A. J. Frank Family Foundation
Ms. Linda C. Frank
Linda C. Frank Living Trust
Mr. Paul A. Frank
Mr. Paul R. Frank
Dr. Mary B. Frankis
Ms. Karen L. Franscioni
Dr. Andrea Frantz
Ms. Ronna A. Freiberg and  

Mr. William M. Wise
Dr. Christopher P. French
Ms. Yvonne Freund
Mr. John Fries
Dr. Max L. Fritzler and  

Ms. Gayle Haugen
Mr. Stephen Frost
Mr. and Mrs. John Fry
Mr. Frank J. Fuchs III
Dr. Colony Fugate
Ms. Laura H. Fuhro
Dr. Charles L. Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Fuller
Ms. Jeanne E. Fuller
Ms. S. Marce Fuller
Gregory L. and Carol H. 

Fullerton
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Fulmer
Ms. Marilyn B. Funderburk
Ms. Mary P. Gabay
Ms. Julie Galbraith
Ms. Tara Gallagher
Mr. Thomas J. Gallagher
Mr. Tracy Gallagher
Mr. David J. Garcia and  

Ms. Maya Suryaraman
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Gard
Dr. Cynthia Gardner
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Gardner
Mr. Raymond Garea
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald W. Garland
Ms. Marcia E. Garrett
Mr. and Mrs. Lester L. Garrison
Mrs. Karen B. Gatewood
Mr. and Mrs. Jimmy Gaudreau
Mr. and Mrs. Steven E. Gavenda
Mr. Paul C. Gearen
Ms. Patricia F. Geis
Dr. Shari E. Gelber and  

Dr. Adam Ratner
General Atomics
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Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Georges
Dr. Stephen K. Gerard
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Gerleit
Ms. Liliane V. Gersh
Mr. Cedric E. Gibb and  

Dr. Katharine Gibb
Cedric & Katharine Gibb 

Living Trust
Mr. Eric M. Gibber
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Gies
Ms. Elmira Gilbert
Mr. and Mrs. John Gilberto
Mr. Roosevelt Giles
Mr. Keith T. Gillen
Mr. and Mrs. Charles R. 

Gillespie Jr.
Mr. Hank Gillette
Mr. Douglas Gillingham and  

Ms. Dana L. Friehauf
Ms. Patricia F. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Steven D. Gilmore
Mr. John A. Ginther
Mr. Dale B. Giulieri
Ms. Jean F. Givens and  

Mr. Carter G. Hackney
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Givens
Ms. Sabrina C. Glaser
Mr. and Mrs. Gary W. Glasscock
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Glose
Mr. and Mrs. Jere W. Glover
Mr. Charles O. Gnaedinger
Mr. and Mrs. Nolan Gnewuch
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Dr. Jack R. Goetz
Mr. Alan R. Goff
Mr. Judd Goldberg
Dr. Richard H. Goldberg
Dr. Kathryn Gonzalez
Mr. David Good
Ms. Michele A. Goodman
Ms. Katherine E. Goodpasture
Dr. Mary K. Goodwin
Mr. Robert M. Gorbould
Dr. Patricia C. Gordin and  

Mr. Lawrence A. Gordin
Mr. and Mrs. Joel K. Gordon
Mr. Milton Gore
Mr. and Mrs. Hal Goree
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Gorzek
Mrs. Julia Goss
Ms. Mary K. Graf
Mr. and Mrs. Milton Graff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Dr. and Mrs. Samuel Graham
Mr. James Grahn
Dr. Cherlyn S. Granrose
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Grant
Mr. and Mrs. Glen A. Grant
Mrs. Jane Grant
Mr. Roderick M. Grant

Ms. Sharon L. Grant
Ms. Jean Grant-Dooley
Mr. and Mrs. Rex L. Granum
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Paula Grasso
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Gray
Dr. Paul N. Gray
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Gray
Greater Greenville Family Health
Mr. and Mrs. Erik H. Green
Gary & Jeannie Green Family 

Charitable Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Garrett Green
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Ms. Ann M. Greene
Mr. Bob Greene and  

Ms. Leslie Ellen Brown
Dr. and Mrs. Alan S. Greenglass
Ms. Sarah Greenhaw
Dr. and Mrs. James F. Greenleaf
Mr. E. Alex Gregory
Dr. Jean L. Grem
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Mr. and Mrs. Gene Griffin
Joanne and Tim Griffin
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. G. Anthony Grigsby
Mr. Dennis E. Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Grimm
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Grimsbo
Mr. John E. Grimsley
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Gross
Ms. Jacqueline T. Grosse
Dr. and Mrs. Mark Grove
Mr. Richard A. Gruen
Dr. and Mrs. Surendra Gupta
Mr. and Mrs. George Gurney
Mrs. Barbara Gurtler
Mr. Michael B. Guthrie and  

Dr. Jeff J. Welser
Vivian Hays Guthrie Charitable 

Fund
Ms. Aneta Gutrich
Ms. Susan Gwynne
Ginnie and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Hackett
Mr. Stephen Hadler and  

Ms. Claudia Fedarko
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Hagen
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Hagens
Mr. Ray Hagrman
Mr. Gregory J. Hahn
Dr. Emily S. Haight
Mr. and Mrs. Emmett M. Hale
Ms. Jane Beaumont Hall, Esq.
Ms. Jean Hall
Mrs. Nancy Hall
Ms. Margaret C. Hallenbeck

Ms. Juanita E. Hallisey
Mr. Andrew Hallowell
Mr. Art Hamilton
Mrs. Kathleen C. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Hamilton
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Mr. Roy Hamlin
Mr. Paul B. Hammond and  

Ms. Tracee Laing
Mr. Mark P. Hampton
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge A. Hanes
Ms. Mary P. Hankla
The Robert T. Hanley 

Foundation
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mrs. Rhonda K. Hanna
Dr. David G. Hannay
Mr. and Mrs. Chuck Hanner
Mr. Charles C. Hansen III
Mr. and Mrs. John Hansen
Mr. Michael S. Harbert
Ms. Jennifer K. Hardenbrook
Mr. Hilliard B. Hardman
Mr. John B. Hardman
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Hargraves
Ms. Janet L. Harkness
Rev. and Mrs. William K. 

Harman
Mr. and Mrs. Roger W. Harms
Ms. Sally L. Harms
Ms. Dorothy Harnish
Ms. Anne J. Harper
Mr. William T. Harper and  

Ms. Brida M. Smith
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Ms. Carolyn L. Harris
Harris Family Trust
Ms. Margaret Harris
Ms. Gayle Harrison
Mr. Thomas J. Harrold Jr.
Ms. Michalann Harthill
Mr. and Mrs. George Hartz
Ms. Teresa D. Hastings
Mr. Stephen R. Hatcher and  

Ms. Sharon Joyce Ellis
Mr. John S. Hathaway
Mr. Robert G. Hauge
Ms. Judith J. Havens
Mrs. Elaine J. Hawley
Ms. Faye A. Hayden
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth S. Hays Jr.
Dr. Marlit Hayslett
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Andrea H. Hazlitt
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Healey
Trish and Christopher Healy
Dr. Patrick Hearing and  

Dr. Janet Hearing
Mr. George Heavner
Mr. Greg K. Hecht

Hecht Walker, P.C.
Dr. and Mrs. Boo Heflin
Mr. Robert B. Heinemann
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Heleine
Helen’s Best
Dr. and Mrs. Gerard L. Helinek
Drs. Russell Helms and Wendy F. 

Greene
Mrs. Ilze S. Henderson
Mr. James A. Henderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry L. Henderson
Ms. Laurel E. Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Sammy Henderson
Ms. Sarah A. Henderson
Ms. Janet P. Hendricks
Mr. William O. Hendricks
Dr. and Mrs. Michael G. Henk
Dr. David Hennerman and  

Dr. Barbara Widmer
Mr. John P. Hennessey
Dr. Louis Henry and  

Dr. Judi Henry
Ms. Linda S. Hensel
Mr. Thomas M. Hensley
The Honorable Alexis M. 

Herman
Ellen S. and Jay R. Herman
Mr. J. William Hernandez
Mrs. Dorene M. Herrmann
Dr. Francoise Herrmann
Dr. and Mrs. B. Mark Hess
Ms. Linda A. Hesse
Mrs. Ann E. Hestand
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Heywood
Ms. Patricia Ann Hickey
Dr. James R. Hildebrand
Mr. and Mrs. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Dr. David W. and Wanda Hill
Dr. Denise Hill
Dr. Tracey Hill and Mr. Dale Hill
Mr. E. M. Himsworth
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Hindman
Mr. Spencer Herbert Hipp
Mr. and Mrs. William Hirt
Dr. and Mrs. Dar-Veig Ho
Ms. Rebecca S. Hoblin
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Dr. and Mrs. James E. Hodder
Ms. Barbara Anne Hoeschler
Mr. Richard L. Hoffman
Mr. and Mrs. David D. 

Hofmeister
Ms. Beth Hogan
Mr. Paul Hogben
Mr. John Hogg
Mr. David Hogle and  

Ms. Janice King
Mr. Rick Holden
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Ann M. & Robert M. Holder 
Foundation

Mr. John R. Holder
Holder Properties
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. 

Holder Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Holm
Dr. and Mrs. William A. Holm
Dr. Thomas R. Holmes and  

Dr. Grace Holmes
Mr. Neal S. Holtzer
Pui-Jane Hon
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. 

Honigfort
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Hoogendyk
Ms. Donna Michele Hoover
Ms. Kathy E. Horner
Mr. David A. Hosford
Dr. Vittorio G. Hosle
Mr. and Mrs. John Herbert 

Houston
Mrs. Shirley D. Houston
Ms. Eileen Hout
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Houts
Ms. Jean E. Houvener
Mr. and Mrs. Rand A. Hoven
Mr. and Mrs. Lembhard G. 

Howell
Dr. Diana A. Hu and  

Mr. Stephen Holve
Dr. Jeff Hubbell
Ms. Esther B. Huber
Ms. Mary Catherine Huddleson 

and Mr. Alan Kraning
Mr. and Mrs. H. Martin 

Huddleston
Dr. William Huddleston and  

Dr. Peggy Huddleston
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Huesby
Drs. Kenneth and Britt Huff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Mr. and Mrs. Ming C. Hui
Mrs. Lela Hulsebus
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen A. Hulsizer
Ms. Anne Humes
Mr. David C. Humm
Mr. and Mrs. Bradley Hummel
Mr. and Mrs. Russell N. 

Humphrey
Mr. and Mrs. William C. 

Humphries
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Hunn
Ms. Mary Hoffman Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Hunt
Professor and Mrs. Howard O. 

Hunter
Mr. Michael Hunter
Mr. Brian Hurley
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Hurst
Ms. Rebekah Huskamp

Rev. Mary Ann and  
Dr. Michael Huston

Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. 
Hutchinson

RJ Hutton Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Huxley
Mr. and Mrs. John Hyde
Mr. R. William Ide III
Mr. James Iden and  

Ms. M. Evangeline Samora
Mr. and Mrs. Albert G. Ilg
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen Imbornoni
Ms. Alexia Inigues
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R. 

Inman
Dr. Devrie Intriligator
Dr. and Mrs. Mohammed A. 

Iqbal
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Irish
Mr. B. William Irlbeck
Ms. Adriene Iverson
Mr. David Iverson
Dr. Linda Izquierdo
Ms. Omega A. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. H. Craig Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Mr. and Mrs. Petter Jahnsen
Ms. Jenny James and  

Mr. Gary Parker
Ms. Anita Jamieson
Ms. Diane Jannetto
Mr. and Mrs. David H. Jarvis
Mr. Richard J. Jasculca
Ms. Barbara B. Javaras
Dr. Cynthia P. Jayne
Mr. George W. Jeffery
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Jefson
Ms. Kalah A. Jenkins
Mr. Kent Jenkins and  

Ms. Caroline Cho
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Dr. Lisa Jennings and  

Dr. David Jennings
Ms. Emily Jo Jensen
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Jensen
Robert C. Jespersen Fund
Mr. and Mrs. C. Gene Jester
Mr. Matthew Jewett
Mr. James V. Jirousek
Rev. Dr. Janice Jodock
Mr. Andrew M. Johnson
Ms. Brenda Johnson
Ms. Carolyn A. Johnson
Dr. Collin B. Johnson and  

Ms. Kirsten Olson
Mr. Frederick D. Johnson
Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson and  

Mr. Kenneth L. Grotewiel
Ms. Karen Johnson

Ms. Karen L. Johnson
Dr. Kathryn Johnson
Mr. Kent Johnson and  

Ms. Gina Purlia
Mr. and Mrs. Larry A. Johnson
Dr. Leanor B. Johnson
Ms. Luci Baines Johnson
Ms. Mary Ann Johnson
Ms. Anne T. Johnston
Mr. Douglass Johnston and  

Ms. Sarah May
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Johnston
Ms. Karen L. Johnston
Mr. Cliff Jolliff and  

Ms. Elaine Gerke
Mr. Brad S. Jolly
Ms. Barbara Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Douglas H. Jones
Mr. G. Pownall Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert G. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey D. Jones
Mrs. Nancy Jane Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald M. Jones
Dr. T. Stephen Jones
Dr. and Mrs. Warren Jones
Mr. David C. Jordan
Dr. and Mrs. David M. Jordan
Bob and Diane Jorgensen
Ms. Sara Josloff
Journey Forward Strategies
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen T. Joyce
Dave and Suzanne Juday
Ms. Nina H. Jue
Ms. Renée Julien
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Jump
Mr. Michael C. Just
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Mr. Charles Eric Kalman
Dr. Sona Kalousdian and  

Dr. Ira Lawrence
Dr. Sanjay Kalra
Mr. Steven G. H. Kam
Mr. Dale S. Kammerlohr
Mrs. Carol F. Kane
Dr. and Mrs. Norman M. Kane
Mr. Nahaliel Kanfer
Mr. Chander Kant
Ms. Audra Karasa
The 2001 Kariat Revocable Trust
Mr. Vinod Kariat and  

Dr. Saila Kariat
Mr. Warren Karmol
Mr. Subodh Karnik and  

Ms. Bethann Frillman
Mr. and Mrs. Alex Kasman
Dr. Mary Jo Kasten and  

Dr. Keith Bible
Ms. Martha Kastens
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Kautzer

Dr. Charles D. Kay and  
Ms. Margaret Trageser-Kay

Ms. Deborah Kearney and  
Mr. Jerome Feldman

Ms. Dorothy L. Keebler
Mr. Stanley E. Kehl and  

Ms. Karen Fie
Mr. James Kelleher
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kelleher
Mr. Robert D. Kelley
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Kelly
Mr. and Ms. John Kemmerer
Mr. Ralph Kemp and  

Ms. Donna Hansen
Mr. Steven Kemp
Ms. Alexis Kennedy
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Ms. Nicky Kenney
Mr. Kenneth E. Kerr
Dr. and Mrs. Onnik Keshishian
Mr. Robert Kessler and  

Ms. Nancy Prahofer
Mr. Theodore M. Keuchel
Mr. and Mrs. Ashraf R. Khalaf
Dr. and Mrs. Saleem A. Khan
Mr. Anup Khattar
Mr. John B. Kilbane
Mr. John Kilburg
The Reverend Billy Kim
Ms. Jung Sook Kim
Dr. and Mrs. Sung-Hou Kim
Mr. J. Stephen King and  

Mrs. Carol Noel King
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 

Kingsbury
Mr. and Mrs. Mark B. Kinney
Ms. Mary C. Kinsey
Ms. Gabriella Kiss
Dr. and Mrs. Erik C. Kissel
Dr. Stephen N. Kissinger
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen E. Kitchen
Ms. Linda A. Klein
Ms. Barbara E. Kline
Ms. Carolyn Klinger and  

Mr. Donn Williams
Ms. Jen Klobnak
Dr. and Mrs. William 

Klopfenstein
Mr. Jeffrey Knauth
Mr. Ross A. Knepper
Ms. Janice J. Knight
Mr. and Mrs. Hendrik C. 

Knipscheer
Mr. and Mrs. Wyck Knox
Ms. Julia R. Knox-Hudson
Ms. Sandra L. Kobel
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. Kobrin
Mr. Eric K. Kocher
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Curtis 

Kohlhaas

53



Ambassadors CircleDONORS 2022–2023
Koll Family Foundation
Dr. Hey-Jin Kong
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph M. Kopko
Dr. J. Michael Korff and  

Ms. Meena Korff-Rodrigues
Ms. Barbara Kornet and  

Mr. Jon Sesso
Ms. Darlene S. Kostrub
Dr. and Mrs. M. Roman Kotlarek
Dr. Mark C. Kowala and  

Dr. Jane G. Rapinchuk
Dr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. Donald Kraft
Mrs. Molly M. Kraft
Mr. Richard S. Kramer
Mr. Thomas P. Krasner
Ms. Melissa A. R. Krause
Mr. Seth R. Krieger
Ms. Vimala Krishnamurthy
Dr. Shyam Krishnan
Ms. Leigh-Anne Krometis
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Krum
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Kruse
Ms. Patricia Scheller Krysiak
Dr. Henry Kuharic
Mrs. Martha Kuhlman
Mr. Robert J. Kunio
Mr. Alan D. Kurzweil
Ms. Debbie Kusaka
Mr. John K. Kusant Jr.
Ms. Margaret Kuwada
Dr. Arden Kwan and  

Dr. Mei Chow-Kwan
Ms. Celestine La Croix
Mr. Andrew S. Labowsky
Ms. Carolyn S. Lackey
Mr. and Mrs. David Lackey
Ms. Michelle LaGrandeur
Lai Family Trust
Mr. and Mrs. George Y. Lai
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Lamb
Ms. Mary I. Lambert
Dr. Matthew J. Lambert III
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lammert
Ms. Marie L. Landry and  

Mr. Peter S. Aronson
Ms. Rebecca A. Lane and  

Ms. Kathleen Williams
Ambassador and Mrs. James T. 

Laney
Mrs. Sue Lang
Mr. David E. Lange
Mr. Peter Lankford and  

Dr. Alyna Chien
Mr. Louis J. Laratta
Mr. and Mrs. Bradley A. Larson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Larson
Ms. Mary Laschober
Mr. Mark V. Laseen
Ms. Robin J. Lasko

Ms. Nancy Latner
Mr. Craig B. Laub
C. B. Laub Family Foundation
Mr. Steven Lavell
Ms. Joan Lavin
Mr. John W. Law and  

Mr. Thomas Moulton
Mr. David B. Lawall
Ms. Mary C. Lawlor
Mr. Robert A. Lawrence
Lawton Family Fund
Dr. Peter Layde and  

Ms. Angela Carollo
Mr. Richard Leask and  

Ms. Barbara Means
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald W. Leavell
Mr. Andrew S. Lebor
Mr. Joel L. Lebowitz
Mr. François LeClair
Ms. Jane C. Leclerc
Mr. and Mrs. John L. Ledman
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney M. Lee
Tecla and Michael Legge
Mr. Roger Lehecka
Mr. Gary G. Lehman
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Lehman
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford D. Leitch
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Leitch
Mr. David O. Leiwant
Mr. David M. Lemal
Mr. Thomas P. Lemke
Ms. Barbara Lempit
Dr. Jennifer Lennington
Ms. Ina B. Leonard
Ms. Elisabeth K. Lescault
Ms. Marilyn R. Leung
Mr. and Mrs. John LeVay
Mr. and Mrs. William Levings
Mrs. Marjorie Lewellen
Pam Lewis Foundation
Ms. Leslie A. Lewis
Drs. Raymond and Ruth Liang
Mr. Scott P. Libson and  

Ms. Dorothy Rhodes
Ms. Anna Lide
Dr. Huda Lillard and  

Dr. Dorris Lillard
Ms. Meredith Lilley
Ms. Christine Lim
Mr. Jeffrey Limberg and  

Ms. Kathleen Conklin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. Lindsay
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Lindstrom
Mr. Michael L. Linhardt
Ms. Sylvia F. Linke
Ms. Kathleen Linney and  

Mr. Tom Moss
Ms. Ilene Linssen
Mr. Hugh A. Linstrom

Mr. Daniel K. Linthicum
Ms. Mary D. Linton
Mr. Arthur D. Lipson and  

Ms. Rochelle S. Kaplan
Mr. Richard Listerud
Ms. Sharon Liu
Mr. and Ms. Ed Lockett
Mr. and Mrs. George Lockhart
Mr. Jim Loftis and  

Ms. Judith Billica
Dr. and Mrs. David L. Lohin
Dr. and Mrs. William F. Loos
Ms. Jane Loranger
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Louchheim
Ms. Mary Ambler Loving
Ms. Carole A. Lovinger
Mr. and Mrs. Craig R. Lowry
Dr. Vincent A. Lucas
Mr. Robert Luemers
Dr. Barbara A. Luke
Ms. Lillian Lundeen and  

Mr. Scott Van Orsdel
Mr. and Mrs. Vincent N. Lunetta
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Ms. Louella Smart Lupo
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas V. Lydon
Ms. Frances Lyman
Ms. Joanne Lyman
Ms. Janet Lynch
Mr. Michael M. Lynch and  

Ms. Martha Hanson
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Lyon
Ms. Helen A. Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. J. Austin Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph P. Lyons
Ms. Kathryn A. Lyons
Ms. Eduarda A. MacAranas
Ms. Diane Maciejewski
Mr. Christopher M. Mackey and 

Ms. Donna L. Cherniak
Ms. Janet M. Mackey
Mr. Ronald R. Macklem
Ms. Martha MacLachlan
Ms. Nancy F. MacLean
David C. MacNamee
Dr. Sean Madden
Mr. John Terry Maes
Ms. Drue A. Magee
Mr. and Mrs. Charlie Magill
Mr. and Mrs. Marcus R. 

Magnuson
Ms. Margaret Kiss Magyar
Mr. Kathleen J. Mahaffey
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew B. Mair
Dr. Lena Malik
Mr. and Mrs. Carl S. Malmberg
Dr. Nancy Maloney
Ms. Rose Beth Mandelbaum

Ms. Melanie L. Manner and  
Mr. Rick Manner

Dr. and Mrs. Peter B. Manning
Ms. Louise M. Manry
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Margossian
Ms. Theresa Z. Marlow
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Mars
Mr. Earl Marsh
Ms. Cassandra L. Marshall
The Honorable F. Ray Marshall
Mr. and Mrs. Aaron E. Martin
Ms. Emily Martin
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Martin
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Martin
Ms. Kathleen E. Martin
Mr. Michael K. Martin and  

Dr. Bonnie J. Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph S. Martin
Ms. Suzanne Martin
Mr. Richard Martinez
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy H. Martins
Ms. Bonnie Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Keith W. Mason
Ms. Suzanne E. Massey
Loris Masterton Family 

Foundation UAD
Mrs. William L. Masterton
Ms. Darlene D. Mathias
Ms. Christina Mathis
Mr. and Mrs. Ernie Mathis
Ms. Elizabeth Matlock
Dr. Carolee S. Matsumoto and 

Mr. David L. Gilbertson
The Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Daniel P. 

Matthews
Dr. and Mrs. Randall Matthews
Ms. Sarah Matthews and The 

Reverend Daniel Matthews
Mr. Karl H. Matthies
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Mattia
The Maude E. Norman Family 

Trust
Mr. Michael John Mauriel
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Max
Mr. and Mrs. R. Steven Maxwell
Ms. Tanya R. Mayer and  

Mr. Paul Friedman
Mr. and Mrs. Roy Mayfield
Mr. Robert T. and Susan H. 

Mayne
Dr. Derek T. Mayweather
Ms. Enid E. McAdoo
Mr. and Mrs. William H. 

McAnally
Mr. and Mrs. Donald K. McBride
Mr. and Mrs. C. Freeman McCall
Mr. Edward A. McCallum
Mr. and Mrs. John B. 

McCammon
Ms. Teresa J. McCanlies
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Deborah and Stephen McCarter
Dr. Paul J. McCarthy
Ms. Rhonda McCarthy
Dr. Susan A. McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. McCleary
The McCloskey Family Trust
Ms. Marilyn R. McCloskey
Dr. Mary Lou McCloskey and  

Mr. Joel Reed
Mr. Brian McClure
Mr. Patrick H. McCollough
Ms. Erin K. McConahey
Mr. and Mrs. Michael 

McConahey
Ms. Sandra L. McCoy-Cleveland 

and Mr. David Cleveland
Ms. Anna McCrary
Mrs. Carol L. McCullough
Mrs. Sandra A. McCurdy
Mr. and Mrs. James F. 

McDermott
Mr. and Mrs. David P. McElroy
Ms. J. E. McElroy
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

McEnroe
Ms. Christine M. McGarry
Ms. Ellen G. McGeorge
Ms. Nancy Mary McGirr
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McGlynn
Ms. Sharon McGregor
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel McGuire
Ms. Patty A. McGuire
Ms. Sharon McIlrath
Mr. and Mrs. William F. 

McInerney
Mr. David J. McIntosh
Mr. and Mrs. James T. 

McIntyre Jr.
Mrs. Kati McKee
Ms. Pamela W. McKee
Dr. Margaret Anne McKenna
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. McKenna
Marni McKinney Foundation
Mr. Robert H. McKinney
Ms. Jane McKinzey
Reverend Leslie McKown
Mr. and Mrs. Myron D. McLain
Mr. and Mrs. Scott A. 

McLaughlin
John Luther McLean and Isabelle 

Gray McLean Trust
Mrs. Fae McLean
Ms. Dilcia A. McLenan-Brent
Ms. Betty Jo McLeod
Ms. Dominique McLerran
Mr. Gerard S. McLoughlin
Mrs. Margaret M. McManus
Dr. Steven W. McMillen
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel McMorrow
Mr. and Mrs. David A. McMullen

Mr. and Mrs. Scott McMurray
Ms. Yone C. McNally and  

Mr. Scott Horngren
Mr. and Mrs. Reginald McNutt
Ms. Virginia L. McPhearson
Mr. Guy McRoberts
Mrs. Nadeen McShane
Ms. Mary C. McSpadden
Ms. Jamie L. Meacham
Ms. Janice A. Mears
Mr. Charles A. Mecum
Ms. Tomasita Medal
Ms. Jean M. Meek and  

Mr. George Meek
Dr. Barbara F. Meeker
Ms. Leila Meghji
Mr. Jim Megna
Dr. Lee Mei
Mr. William Meier
Mrs. Mathias Meinzinger
Roy W. Meissner Living Trust
Mr. Roy W. Meissner Jr.
Ms. Mary Louise Mele
Mr. Donald E. Melnick
Mr. John R. Melzer
Mr. Tom A. Mendel
Mr. John K. Menges
Mr. Martin N. Mercer
Dr. and Mrs. Christopher Meriam
Mr. and Mrs. Dale M. Merrell
Ms. Deborah A. Merriam
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Merrill
Mrs. Cama C. Merritt
Ms. Lucy D. Metcalf
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Meteer Jr.
Ms. Carol L. Meurer
Dr. Gary L. McKown and  

Ms. Jill M. Meuser
Ms. Hope Welles Meyer
Mr. Joe Meyer and  

Ms. Elsa Ann Gaines
Dr. David K. Meyerholz
Mr. Richard A. Michalski and  

Ms. Anne Theresa Frates
Mr. Philippe Michelet
Dr. and Mrs. John C. 

Middlebrooks
Ms. Natalia Migal and  

Mr. Bradley Kozak
Ms. Mihoko S. Miki
Ms. Jane Milazzo
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Millar
Dr. and Mrs. Dayton Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Jon Miller
Ms. Phyllis A. Miller
Mr. Raymond Miller
Dr. and Mrs. Wayne Milloy
Mr. Roy E. Mills
The Honorable and Mrs. 

Michael J. Missal

Deborah Missal Revocable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Clifton D. Mitchell
Ms. Constance J. Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. Gregg Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. James M. 

Mitchelson
Ms. Cristina L. Miyar
Mr. Dennis R. Mobley
Ms. Anne Modarressi
Mr. Zoeb Mogri
Ms. Kerry D. Molln
Mr. and Mrs. Charles P. Monastra
Ms. Donna Moniz
Ms. Alicia Montalvo
Ms. Maria A. Montalvo and 

Representative Strom Peterson
Ms. Lou Ann Montana and  

Mr. James Pflugrath
Mr. Craig Montell
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph C. 

Montgomery
Mr. and Mrs. Scott T. 

Montgomery
Mrs. Beverly J. Moody
Dr. James E. Moore and  

Ms. Joan Romano
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Ms. Anne Cherie Moos
Mr. Peter W. D. Morford
Dr. and Mrs. Joe M. Morgan
Rev. and Mrs. Michael Morgan
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Moriarty
Mr. and Mrs. Joel V. Morris Jr.
Mr. William R. Morris
Mr. Gary Morrison and  

Ms. Sari Mintz
Mr. Emory L. Morsberger
Ms. Jill L. Mortensen and  

Ms. Sharon Kay Phillips
Ms. Victoria K. Mortensen
Mrs. Serena Moss
Ms. Christina W. Moulson
Mr. Jerome D. Mrokowski
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Mueting
Mr. Ashutosh S. Mujumdar
Dr. and Mrs. Sal Mukho
Ms. Wenda Pyman Mullenbach
Ms. Lynette Mullens
Mr. and Mrs. Terence A. Mullervy
Mr. Paul Multari and  

Ms. Lynn Gardner
Ms. Holly Mulvey
Ms. Kristin Mulzer
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G. 

Mumford
Mr. and Mrs. Venkat 

Mummalaneni
Dr. and Mrs. Robert S. 

Munford III
Mr. James L. Munoz

Mr. Robert R. Munoz and  
Ms. Pamela J. Hughes

Ms. Rose Mary Murades
Dr. and Mrs. James Murakami
Ms. Jane Murch
Dr. and Mrs. Glen Murphy
Ms. Maureen D. Murphy
Mr. Michael Murphy
Mr. and Mrs. Nelson R. Murphy
Ms. Christi Murray
Mr. Roger A. Musolf
Dr. James S. Musumeci
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Muyskens
Mr. and Mrs. C. William Myers
Mr. and Mrs. Jon F. Myers
Ms. Debra Mykkanen
Dr. Stephanie Nacouzi
The Naduse Foundation
Mr. Rajeev Y. Nagar
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Nagle
Ms. Vivian T. Nagy
Dr. Somnath N. Naik
Ms. Cynthia C. Nakasato
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Nania
Mr. Mark Nardone
Mr. Thomas Nardone and  

Ms. Edith L. Lam-Nardone
Nash Family Giving Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Natoli
Dr. and Mrs. John J. Naveau
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Neal
Ms. Cassandra Neff
Neff Freeman Revocable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Ms. Doris W. Neilson
Ms. Lisa A. Nelms
Mr. George Nelsen and  

Ms. Therese Simon
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Nelson
Ms. Karen M. Nelson
Mr. and M. Edwin Nelson
Mr. Robert B. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Nelson
Pamela and Paul Ness
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Nester
Dr. and Mrs. Donald J. Nevin
New Horizon Foundation
New Ventures
Mr. Dana Newbauer and  

Dr. Lisa Nocera
Ms. Susan M. Newman
Dr. and Mrs. Brian Newnam
Ms. Theresa H. Newton
Mr. Hai Nguyen
Ms. Lien D. Nguyen
Mr. Ronald P. Nimmer
Mr. Eric Nitzberg
Ms. Mildred E. Noreen
Mr. Jonathan V. Norman III
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Ms. Maude Norman
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Nowak
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Nowicki
The NPP Charitable Fund
Ms. Lynette Nyaggah
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Nygaard
Ms. Audrey Quay Oaks
Mr. Steven C. Oaks
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Obey
Obregon Family Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Obregon
Mr. David O’Brien
Ms. Monica R. O’Brien
Mr. James J. O’Connell
Ms. Karen W. O’Connor
Dr. Margaret O’Connor
Miss Nancy Lee Oetter
Ms. Marianne Ofenloch
Dr. Robert W. Okerblom
Dr. Mark D. Okusa and  

Dr. Diane Rosin
Dr. David O. Oladele-Bankole
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Oldanie
Mr. and Mrs. Cory Olson
Dr. David Olson
Mr. David Olson
Ms. Karen A. Olson
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Ms. S. Kathleen Orange
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Mr. Patrick O’Rourke
Dr. Reginald Ashley Orr
Ms. Stacey Orsat
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Osgood
Dr. and Mrs. James G. Osgood
Osgood Revocable Trust
Mr. Thomas R. Osowski
Mr. James Ostrander
Mr. Charles J. Oswald
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Mr. and Mrs. Ivan Otterness
Ms. Karen B. Ouzts and  

Mr. Bill Petuskey
Ms. Sue Ann Overman
Mr. Kenneth R. Overoye
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph M. Owens
Dr. Adelekan Oyejide
Mr. Andrew H. Pace
Pacific Nails Company
Mrs. Nancy M. Packard
Mr. Visvanatha Padmanabhan
Dr. Marjorie Pak and  

Mr. Christopher Huber
Mr. Jerry Palmese
Ms. Susanne Palombo
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Palsgrove
Ms. Joan A. Panabaker

Mr. Ashok J. Pandya
Dr. Jenny Pang and  

Dr. Jeffrey Sullivan
Dr. Herbert Pardes
Dr. and Mrs. Keith B. Paredes
Dr. and Mrs. Nikhil J. Parekh
Mr. Richard A. Park
Dr. and Mrs. John Parker
Ms. Linda W. Parks
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Parrish
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Parrott
Ms. Rebecca J. Parsons
Mrs. Robert A. Pastor
Mr. and Mrs. Arvind M. Patel
Dr. and Mrs. Rajan Patel
Dr. and Mrs. Ramesh V. Patel
Dr. Seema K. Patel
Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Leo H. 

Patterson
Ms. Monica F. Patterson
Ms. Carol Patton
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher D. 

Patton
Mr. and Mrs. James Patton
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Patton Jr.
Ms. Alison V. Paul
Ms. Nicholas H. Paul
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Inman 

Payne
Mr. Jerry M. Payne
PBH Charitable Fund
Dr. Michele L. Pearson
Mr. and Mrs. Sam L. Pearson
Mr. and Mrs. Perry Peckham
Mr. Jim Pederson and  

Dr. Karen Pederson
Mr. and Mrs. J. Donald Peek
Dr. and Mrs. Charles F. Pelzer
The Honorable Mary C. 

Pendleton
Ms. Margaret S. Penirian
Mr. Ken Penner
Mr. and Mrs. William H. 

Penniman
Ms. Barbara A. Perkins
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Perkins
Dr. Kenneth J. Perkins
Mr. Fred Perpall
Ms. Barbara E. Perreault
Mr. Egbert L. J. Perry
Ms. Linda K. Persohn
Ms. Penelope S. Peters
Mr. and Mrs. Charles B. Petersen
Dr. John T. Peterson and  

Dr. Mary A. Vander Maten
Mr. and Mrs. Todd L. Peterson
Mr. Francis A. Petrus
Ms. Beth Petti
Ms. June Petticord

Mr. Walter Pezet and  
Ms. Fae Daniels

Mr. and Mrs. John S. Pfister
Mr. and Mrs. David Phelps
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Phelps
Ms. Dorothy K. Phillips
Mr. and Mrs. Harry H. Phillips
Mr. James M. Phillips
Ms. Mary Ann Phillips
Ms. Pauline Phillips
Ms. Rebecca J. Picard
The Honorable Thomas R. 

Pickering
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Pieper
Mr. Charles A. Pigott
Ms. Marian S. Pillsbury
Mr. and Mrs. Kent E. Ping
Mrs. Patricia Pinkos
Dr. and Mrs. Robert K. 

Pinschmidt Jr.
Ms. Veronica J. Pinto
Scott and Margaret Piper
Mr. Richard A. Pipoly
Ms. Nancy A. Pitera
Ms. Rachel L. Pivnick
Ms. Karen Lee Platis
Terry Platt
Mr. Dan Buttimer and  

Dr. Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer
Mr. John Poertner
Dr. Rebecca Pogue
Dr. Ronald L. Poland
Mr. Gerald A. Pollack
Mr. Michael S. Pollock
Mr. and Mrs. Donald H. Pond Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. John Michael 

Pongracz
Mr. Robert H. Poole
Ms. Kathleen A. Poon
Dr. and Mrs. William W. Pope
Mr. John R. Popp
Lester Poretsky Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Brian M. Porter
Rev. and Mrs. George E. Porter Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Joe W. Posey
Ms. Daisy Poss
Mr. John R. Potter
Ms. Camille Pousson
Mr. and Mrs. David Powell
Mr. Thomas A. Power
Mr. Bruno Preaux
Ms. Vickie Preston
Ms. Helen Smith Price
Dr. Rosalynne Price and  

Mr. William Robert Price
Ms. Susan S. Priest
Dr. and Mrs. Robert J. Puckett
Ms. Anne L. Putnam

Mrs. Diana L. Putz
Mr. Thomas G. Pyatt
Ms. Sally Quinby
Dr. James Quinn
Ms. Janis M. Quinn
Ms. Kathleen A. Quinn
Mr. Nathan P. Quiring
Ms. Pamela Quirk Becker
Ms. Diana C. Quirk
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Quirk
Mr. Moshen Ayoub Qureshi
Mr. Andrew Raamot and  

Dr. Christy Rentmeester
Mr. Christopher Radko
Mr. Salvatore J. Ragucci
Mr. Tom A. Ragusa
Dr. and Mrs. Fazlur Rahman
Mr. William L. Raiser
Mr. Wade A. Rakes and  

Mr. Nicholas T. Miller
Mr. Terry W. Ralston
Ms. Linda L. Ramsey
Dr. Gregory Dean Randolph and 

Ms. Janice Bryant
Ms. Sylvia E. Randolph
Mr. and Mrs. Wallace L. Rank
Dr. Mark Rapaport and  

Ms. Jacqueline Calavan
Mr. Leonard Rappe
Mr. Richard J. Rappoport
Dr. Wendy Rashidi
Mr. and Mrs. John Rathmell
Mr. Richard E. Ratliff
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Ratliff 

III
Ms. Judith A. Rattmann
Ms. Catherine Rau
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Rausch
Mr. Tom E. Rausch
Mr. Paul G. Ravnikar
Ms. Rebecca L. Rawls
Dr. Angela G. Ray
Mrs. Sandra Ray
Mr. and Mrs. F. Douglas 

Raymond III
Ms. Margaret P. Raymond
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen James 

Raynor
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Ream Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Reckford
Ms. Shirley M. Reddick
Dr. Gautham Reddy and  

Dr. Rebecca Reddy
Roopa and Vishnu Reddy
Mr. Douglas K. Reece
Mr. Gary M. Reedy and  

Dr. Cindy Reedy
Ms. Florence M. Reese
Ms. Ann E. Reeves
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Ms. Rosemary Regis and  
Mr. David W. DeRamus

Rev. Diane W. Rehfield
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Rehwaldt
Ms. C. Joanne Reid
Mr. Richard M. Reilly
Mr. Scott Reilly
Ms. Betty M. Reiss
Mr. and Mrs. James Reiszner
Ms. Sue A. Rendleman
Ms. Emily D. Renuart
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Reppke
Ms. A. Louisa Rettew
Mr. and Mrs. William Revelle
Dr. Charles F. Reynolds III
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Reynolds
Mr. and Mrs. John Z. Reynolds
RFB Advertising
Dr. and Mrs. James G. Rheinwald
Ms. Charley A. Rhoads
Henry W. Rhoads Revocable 

Agreement Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Rice
Susan and Robert Richane
Ms. Gina T. Richard and  

Mr. Eric Cox
Ms. Pamela Richard
Ms. Anne M. Richardson
Ms. Grace E. Richardson
Dr. Malcolm L. Richardson
Dr. Matt Richburg
Clare and Norman Richie and 

Family
Ms. Sally Rich-Kolb
Ms. Marilynn Richtarik and  

Mr. Matt Bolch
Mr. Joseph Richter
Ms. Helen E. Rider
Mr. David A. Rieck
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth C. Rieker
Dr. Jonathan C. Rienstra-Kiracofe 

and Dr. Christine Rienstra-
Kiracofe

Mr. Warren Bradford Rigdon
The Honorable Richard W. Riley
Mr. and Mrs. David I. Roberts
Nora Roberts Family Foundation
Mrs. Stanley Roberts
Mr. Leslie C. Roberts
Ms. Andrea Robertson
Ms. Arlene Robertson
Mr. and Mrs. John Barron 

Robertson
Loydel Robertson
Mr. Christopher Robinson and 

Ms. Mary Anne Mullins
Ms. Ellen Robinson
Ms. Mary Margaret Robinson
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Robinson
Mr. Larry Rockefeller

Rev. John W. Rodber
Dr. Daniel Rodeheaver and  

Dr. Denise Rodeheaver
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Rodgers
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel J. Rodrigues
Dr. Michael P. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Peter T. Rogers
Mr. Edwin G. Rohde
Ms. Wendy B. Rohman
Ms. Diane Rohrbach
Dr. Judith C. Rohrer
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Rollins
Ms. Jean R. Rollins and  

Mr. Ed Boatner
Roman Dental
Dr. Paul M. Roman and  

Ms. Terry C. Blum
Ms. Marsha Rooks
Ms. Joan B. Rosenberg
Dr. Carolyn Rosenberry and  

Dr. Terrone Rosenberry
Mr. Brian H. Ross and  

Ms. Cheryl Sullivan
Dr. James A. Ross
Ms. Judy Ross
Mr. Maurice G. Ross
Mr. Stephen Ross
Mr. and Mrs. Rob Rosztoczy
Rotary Club of McKinney 

Sunrise Flag
Mr. Robert C. Rothhouse
Ms. Joan Rouse
Dr. Benoit Rousseau and  

Dr. Rie Ishii
Mr. Michael S. Royce and  

Ms. Alexis Rappaport
Ms. Cynthia L. Rubens
Mr. Jerry T. Rupley and  

Dr. Mary Rupley
Mr. Richard E. Rush
Ms. Nancy K. Russell
Dr. Robert W. Russell
Ms. Wondie Russell and  

Mr. Edward Steinman
Ms. Ann M. Rust
Dr. George S. Rust and  

Dr. Cynthia T. Rust
Dr. Marion L. Rust
Mr. M. Duane Rutledge
Ms. Jane Ryan
Mr. John E. Ryan
Mr. Kenneth Lewis Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Ryan
Ms. Mary Fran Rybarik
The S & C Harvest Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald D. Saake
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Sabin
Mr. Jay Sachs and  

Ms. Mary De Voe

Ms. Jeanne E. Salathiel
Mr. Vikram Salgaonkar
Ms. Dawn E. Salmons
Mr. Larry Salois
Ms. Leslie Salzillo
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sandberg-Larsen
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Sanders
Ms. Della D. Sanderson
Hon. William F. Sanderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Sandlin
Ms. Joan Sanford
Dr. Jonathon D. Saphier and  

Rev. Margaret K. Saphier
Mr. Golam Sarker
Mr. and Mrs. J. Neal Sasser Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Satre
Ms. Shirley Sauber
Ms. Sandra S. Sauder
Mr. Richard H. Sauers
Mrs. Dianne Saunders
Dr. Maria Sauzier
Dr. Brenda Flowers Savage
Mr. Gordon Saville
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Sawyer
Mr. Thomas R. Saylor
Mr. Thomas F. Scanlan
Ms. Barbara Schacht and  

Ms. Lillian Wiegel
Ms. Ann Schaefer
Ms. Barbara J. Schaefer
Ms. Grace K. Schafer
Mr. Terry H. Schale
Ms. Carol E. Scharfer
Dr. and Mrs. Bradley J. Scheel Jr.
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Dr. Elinor A. Scheirer
Mr. Sanford H. Schenbart
Mr. Walter Schier
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. 

Schmerker
Dr. Klaus Wilhelm Schmidt-Rohr
Mr. and Mrs. Roger W. 

Schmiedeskamp
Ms. Ann Schoenfeld
Ms. Anne-Marie Scholer
Mr. Eric J. Scholl
Dr. Frances Schoonmaker
Mr. Craig Schopmeyer
Mr. John Schopp
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Schreiber
Stephen and Nanci 

Schrieber-Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Schuette
Mrs. Frederick H. Schultz
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Schumacher
Ms. Brooke Schumm and  

Ms. Kari Schumm

Dr. Audrey L. Scollan and  
Dr. Neil J. Scollan

Ms. Donna Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Earl A. Scott
Dr. Gwen G. Scott
Ms. Judith A. Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Rick R. Scott
Mr. James Scotton
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Searson
Mr. Christopher Seay
Mr. Theodore Sedgwick
Ms. Ellen Segar
Ms. Carole A. Seger
Dr. Narinder N. Sehgal
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Seim
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald O. Seiser
Ms. Deborah Selby
Mr. and Mrs. Dean Sellers
Mr. Marc M. Seltzer
Ms. Wendy Sergeant-Clarke
Mr. and Mrs. Tommaso Serra
Ms. Ingrid Serrell
Mr. Prochy P. Sethna
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Ms. Barbara L. Shaeffer and  

Mr. Ricky Moore
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Shafer
Dr. Phillip B. Shaffer and  

Ms. Jennifer S. Lyon
Mr. and Mrs. Kirti B. Shah
Dr. Ramesh Shah and  

Ms. Nita Varia
Dr. Naveed Shams and  

Mrs. Seema N. Shams
Dr. Susan H. Shane
Mr. Eric M. Shank
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sharkey
Dr. Santosh D. Sharma
Ms. Patricia L. Shaw
Ms. Jan Marie Shaw-Flamm and 

Mr. Andrew Flamm
Ms. Charlotte Ann Shea
Mr. John E. Sheedy
Ms. E. Ann Sheehan
Mr. John P. Sheehan
Mr. Robert J. Shelton
Ambassador Sally A. 

Shelton-Colby
Mr. and Mrs. John Shepard
Mr. Timothy C. Sherck
The Sherman Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Sherman
Mr. Richard L. Shewell Jr.
Dr. Mariko Shirazi
Dr. Lawrence H. Shirley
Mrs. Linda Shotwell
Ms. Suzanne Shull
Mr. Martin Sidwell and  

Mrs. Felicity Sidwell
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Drs. Scott L. Siegal and  

Suzanne Shenk
Ms. Carole A. Siegel
Mr. Randy Siltanen
Ms. Rita Elaine Silver
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Simeone
Ms. Linda J. Simpson
Ms. Mary Simun
Mr. Sher G. Singh
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Sinnamon
Ms. Helen L. Sisk
Ms. Rochelle Sjolseth
Ms. Beverly Skeffington
Mr. John Skinner, USN (RET)
Mr. Daniel F. Skully
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel B. Smart III
Mr. Joseph M. Smierciak
Patricia K. Smith Charitable 

Foundation Trust
Mr. and Mrs. David D. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Neal & Bea Smith Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Smith
Ms. Marie Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith and  

Ms. Laurel A. Bleak
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and  

Dr. Louise N. Smith
Mrs. Patricia K. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Ms. Sigrid Snider
Ms. Nancy Snustad and  

Mr. Michael Anderson
Ms. Peggy G. Snyder
Mr. Stephen C. Snyder
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Snyder
Mr. Richard M. Soehren
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Soerens
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. 

Sokolnicki
Mr. and Mrs. Mento A. Soponis
Mr. Jordan Sorensen
Ms. Mariko H. H. Soto
Dr. Denise M. Soucy
Mr. Erik Soule and  

Ms. Rebecca Turner
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Souza
Mr. Tim Spagnoletti
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Spain
Dr. and Mrs. Roy F. Spalding
Ms. Janey Spangler
Ms. Mary Louise Kelly and  

Dr. Greg T. Spear
Dr. Paul Spearman
Dr. Samuel H. Speck and  

Dr. Martha L. Clabby
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Spencer
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Spencer
Mr. Irwin Spiegelman

Ms. Darlene Spillers
Mr. Joseph Spinden
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Spinelli
Ms. Carolyn Spolidoro
Mrs. John D. Spragins
Ms. Mary Gay Sprague
Ms. Joanne W. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Springman
Dr. Jane P. Srinivasan
Ms. Christine T. St.Clare and  

Mr. Mark S. St.Clare
St.Clare Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Doug Staiger
Mr. Stephen B. Stancliff and  

Ms. Tamara Marshall-Keim
Mrs. Brigitte Stanfill
Mr. Thomas D. Stanks
Mr. Robert E. Stanley
Mr. William J. Stanley III
Stanley, Love-Stanley, P.C.
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. and Mrs. John H. Starks Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David Starkweather
Dr. Thad Starner and  

Ms. Tavenner Hall
Ms. Aviva Starr and  

Ms. Sherry Samuels
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Starr
Staubus-Dodge Family Fund at 

Rancho Santa Fe Foundation
Dr. Janet Stavnezer
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Stearn
Lucy and Tom Stec
Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Mr. Edward M. Steele
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Steele
Steele Revocable Living Trust
Mr. and Ms. Fred Steffens
Dr. Marrilyn Stein
Mr. and Mrs. E. Andrew 

Steinbock III
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Stevens
Mr. John R. Stevens
Mr. David Stewart and  

Ms. April Bruce-Stewart
Rev. and Mrs. Glen J. Stewart
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Stewart
Mr. William Stocking
Ms. Vicky Stockton and  

Mr. Jim Allen
Ms. Barbara J. Stoecker
Ms. Phyllis Stoecklein
Mr. Richard Stohlman
Ms. Sharon F. Stollings
Ms. Nancy J. Stouffer
Ms. Lisa Strongin and  

Ms. Maxine L. Epperson
Mr. and Mrs. Barry P. Stuart
Ms. Belinda Stubblefield

Ms. Cynthia Jo Stuble
Ms. Anne M. Sturtevant
Mr. and Mrs. Richard P. Succa
Mr. Sidney K. Suggs
Ms. Lucy Sullivan
Mr. John Summerhays and  

Ms. Myrna Orenstein
Dr. Constance Swank
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Swank
Dr. Kelley Swatzell and  

Dr. John Waterbor
Ms. Ann C. Sweeney
Ms. Jeanne Swen
Mr. Dale A. Swisher
Mr. Rachanawan Swusdipanee
Ms. Patricia R. Sylvester
Ms. Kathleen M. Syme
Mr. and Mrs. James Szabo
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan M. Szanto
Ms. Fay Szwast
Mr. Michael S. Tabisz
Ms. Sharl K. Talan
Ms. Caroline Scott Talley and  

Mr. Mark Root
Ms. Agnes Tam
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Tamm
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Tamminga
Mr. Robert Tyree Tanner
Ms. Laura Tarbox
Ms. Patrice L. Tarr
Mrs. Ruth M. Tate
Ms. Barbara S. Taylor
Mr. Bernard Taylor Sr.
Ms. Judy M. Taylor
Mr. Richard Taylor
Dr. Steven S. Taylor and  

Dr. Rosemary A. Taylor
Mrs. Jean E. Tedrick
Mr. Timmy G. Tedrick
Ms. Carol G. Teeter
Ms. Gillian M. Teichert
Telaka Foundation
Mr. John J. Templeton
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Terzaken
Dr. Tina Tessina and  

Mr. Richard Sharrard
Mr. Frank H. Tetreault and  

Ms. Kathleen Rooney
Vasuki Thangamuthu
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Thayer
Ms. Mary C. Thayer
Ms. Hilaire D. Thomas
Ms. Patricia A. Thomas
Dr. Sherrill Thomas-Dertke
Mr. Evan A. Thompson
Ms. Isabelle Thompson
Ms. Jane E. Thompson
Mr. Joshua L. Thompson

Mr. Robert Thompson
Mr. and Mrs. Ivan M. Thomsen
Mr. and Mrs. John Thonet
Mr. Curtis J. Thorne
Ms. Laurie Thornton
Dr. George R. Throop and  

Ms. Nancy M. Dunn
Jon and Susie Throop
Ms. Rosemary Thurston
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Tiggelaar
Mr. and Mrs. Steven M. Tillman
The Tom Fund
Mr. Leonard Tom
Simon and Mary Tonkin
Ms. Mary Tooley
Dr. Phyllis Trible
Ms. Lori A. Triplett
Ms. Nancy S. Tritt
Mrs. Phyllis J. Troyer
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Trullinger
Dr. Carolyn Trunca and  

Mr. David Moriarty
Mr. Tony Truong
Mrs. Ruth Moody Tsu
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
The Tufenkian Foundation
Mr. James Tufenkian
Mr. David W. Tuffy
Ms. Bonnie B. Turner
Mr. Michael J. Turner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Uding
Dr. John R. Uglum III
Mr. Harold W. Underhill
Mr. Jonathan M. Unger
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas R. 

Unnasch
Dr. Ruth Uphold and  

Ms. Mary Provencher
Mr. Rudolf Urban
Mr. Richard H. Usher
Ms. Mildred Vaccarella
Dr. Rama Vaitla
Mr. and Mrs. Dale J. Valaskovic
Mr. and Mrs. Albert R. Vale
Valine Family Charitable Fund
Ms. Julie Valyn
Ms. Susan M. van den Toorn
Richard and Diane Van Grunsven 

Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Van 

Grunsven
Mr. Henri P. Van Helden
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Van Sant
Dr. W. Christian VandenBerg 

and Dr. Elizabeth Neubig
Ms. Saber W. VanDetta
Mr. Robert G. Vanecko
Mr. Doug VanOrnum
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Mr. Hector H. Vargas
Dr. Joseph Vargas and  

Mrs. Shannon Vargas
Dr. Albert Varner
Dr. James Roy Vasser
Robert Vaughn, Ph.D.
Ms. Ann S. Venable
Dr. and Mrs. Charles H. Veurink
Mr. Robert R. Viducich
Mr. Gary W. Vig
Rev. Audrey Vincent
Dr. Dorothy Vaughn Vincent
Ms. Ilona Vinces
Ms. Janice M. Vint
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Vogel
Vohra Wound Care Physicians
Mr. Mark Voigt
Ms. Barbara K. Vold
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Volkema
Ms. Muriel Vomhof
Ms. Cecilia A. Vore and  

Mr. Carl Falco
Mr. Omer Waddles
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Ms. J. Wade
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Wade
Ms. Sara Waggener
Ms. Hannelore Wagner
Ms. Santoshi Wagner-Anue
Mr. Herbert L. Wahrenburg
Ms. Diane E. Wais and  

Mr. John Wierschem
Ms. Rose Wakeman
Ms. Christine P. Walker
Mr. Neil R. Walker
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Walker
Rev. Martha E. Wallace and  

Mr. Dennis White
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Wallace
Mr. John T. Walsh
Ms. Kathryn Walsh and  

Mr. Wesley Romansky
Ms. Lauren G. Walsh
Mr. James Waltz
Mr. Albert J. Ward Jr.
Professor and Mrs. Barclay Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Edward W. Ward
The Ward Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Travis Ward
Mr. Roy Wardell
Mr. and Mrs. Forrest E. Wardwell
Dr. John P. Waring
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. Warner 

III
Mr. Paul Warren and  

Dr. Chris Chi
Ms. Donna Wasserbach
Ms. Cathryn A. Wasson

Mr. Richard D. Waterfield and 
Ms. Marni McKinney

Dr. Karen Waters
Ms. Margaret Watrobka
Mr. and Mrs. Craig R. Watson
Mr. Kenneth J. Watt and  

Mr. Victor J. Amburgy
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson B. Watts
Ms. Alecia L. Wawrzynski
Ms. Margaret S. Weaver
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Webb
Ms. Loretta Webber
Mr. Daniel L. Weber
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Weber
Ms. Ellen Webster
Ms. Karen Weddle
Dr. John Wehner and  

Dr. Asuncion Martinez-Wehner
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey C. Weil
Mr. Kenneth S. Weiner and  

Ms. Kathy Fletcher
Mr. Franz Weinhandl
Mr. George L. Weir
Mr. Patrick Welch
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn Welch
Ms. Barbara A. Welcher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Welle
Mr. and Ms. W. Harrison 

Wellford
Ms. Norma J. Wells
Mr. Robert D. Wells
Wendell Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Wendell
Mr. Richard Werremeyer
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Hamilton 

Wesby
Ms. Helen H. West
Ms. Kathleen Westerholt and  

Ms. Gail Koser
Dr. and Mrs. W. Daniel 

Westerkam
Westminster Barrington 

Foundation
Mr. James G. Wetrich
Mr. Eugene E. Weymouth
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Whalen
Ms. Gail J. Whatley
Mr. Thomas L. Whatley
Dr. and Mrs. William Wheeler
Mr. John A. Whisler
Ms. Susan Pearson Whisnant
Mr. and Mrs. David S. White
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas White
Ms. Eugenia White
Dr. Jane White and  

Mr. Joseph Amerling
Ms. Kathleen S. Whiteford
Mr. James D. Whitehouse
Ms. Nancy L. Wideman
Dr. David A. Wiebe

Dr. and Mrs. Lawrence Wieland
Mr. Jeffrey Wihtol
Mr. Fredric M. Wild
Mr. Nicholas J. Wilhelm and  

Ms. Mary E. Daly
Ms. Barbara A. Wilkes
Ms. Charlotte R. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Williams
Mr. James Williams
Mr. Timothy R. Williams
Ms. Ruthelen M. W. Williamson
Ms. Verna M. Willis
Ms. Marianna Wilson
Mr. Michael R. Wilson and  

Ms. Brooke Wilson
Mr. Paul A. Wilson
Dr. Robert Woodrow Wilson and 

Dr. Elizabeth S. Wilson
Ms. Veronica I. Wilson
Ms. Ursula M. Wilson-Booth
Wilton Pharmacy
Mr. Larry B. Wiltse
Ms. Elizabeth Winchester
Ms. Margaret M. Wing
Mr. John P. Wingard
Dr. Hubert Winston
Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
Ms. Sharon G. Withrow
Dr. Stephan Neil Witt and  

Ms. Jill C. Parker-Witt
Drs. Edward Witten and  

Chiara Nappi
Ms. Cynthia Witting
Dr. Jacqueline Wittmeyer and  

Dr. Christopher Hill
Mr. Douglas MacLean and  

Ms. Susan Wolf
Mr. Mark A. Wollen
Mr. Peter M. Wolter
Ms. Linda H. Womack
Ms. Kim Wong
Lai Ying Wong and Chin 

Shing Wong
Ms. Nancy S. Wong
Ms. Renie Wong and  

Mr. George Meier
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt H. Wood Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Wood
Dr. and Mrs. Woody Woodall
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Mr. Daniel Woodard
Mrs. Carolyn Woods
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin R. Woolf
Ms. Norris Wootton and  

Mr. David Shivers
Mr. and Mrs. Wesley Worden
Ms. Kathleen Worley
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Wortman
Ms. Amy E. Wright

Ms. Deborah F. Wright
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis C. Wright
Dr. and Mrs. Kelly Wright
Ms. Nina A. Wright
Mr. Rex Wright
Ms. Doris A. Wunsch
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Wurst
Dr. Dennis R. Wyant and  

Ms. Jane Feldman
Mrs. Sylvia Xeras
Ms. Patricia Yacovone-Biagi and 

Mr. Bruce Biagi
Mr. Donald J. Yanulavich
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Yarbrough
Mr. and Mrs. Randall W. Yates
Ms. Jo Ellen Diehl Yeary
Mr. and Mrs. Michael V. Yester
Dr. Katrina Yielding
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Yoder
Dr. John-David Yoder
Mr. Peter Yoo and  

Ms. Julie Mulvahill
Dr. and Mrs. Harold Yoon
Dr. June Youatt and  

Dr. Charles Ballard
Mr. Stephen Youlan
Dr. and Mrs. A. Stuart Young
Mr. and Mrs. John Young
Mr. Lance B. Young and  

Mr. James Summers
Mr. Michael E. Young
Mr. Thomas C. Young
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Younkin
The Honorable Marie 

Yovanovitch
Mr. Jing-Sheng Yue
Mrs. Anna F. Yuhas
Ms. Jan H. Zahrly
Ms. Lynne C. Zane
Mr. and Mrs. Carl V. Zangardi
Ms. Theresa L. Zapotocky
The JV Schiro Zavela Foundation
Jean Schiro-Zavela and  

Vance Zavela
Mr. Stephen E. Zehr
Ms. Sally M. Zeijlon
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Zeiler
Mr. Nathan Zerbe and  

Ms. Joan Nichols
Ms. Karen Ziegert
Mr. William S. Zimmerman
Mrs. Constance L. Zimpfer
Dr. Edward T. Zito
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Zitzman
Ms. Deborah J. Zorn
Mr. and Mrs. John Zuber
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Zucker
Ms. Cheryl V. Zwirgzdas
Dr. Sape A. Zylstra
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Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Adamo
Ms. Edith E. Holiday and  

Mr. Terrence B. Adamson
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Ms. Portia Comenetia Allen
Ms. Carrie Amestoy
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson and  

Ms. Lori B. Lundell
Mrs. Janice B. Anderson
Ms. Marion Anderson-Peat
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Mr. Brian Anthony and  

Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick
Mr. and Mrs. Colin S. Archibald
Ms. Jane Ariail
Mr. Charles R. Arterburn
Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Auerbach
Ms. Jacqui Avila-Bell
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Babin
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Ms. Anne Baglini
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Mrs. Mary Balfour
Dr. John Ball and Ms. Jean Dillon
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mrs. Cecilia T. Banulski
Mr. Howard Barfels
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Ms. Nancy E. Barnwell
Ms. Garnet Bass
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Beans
Dr. Christa-Maria Beardsley
Mr. Lon A. Beck
Mr. Jay Beck
Ms. Anne Behler
Mr. Robert N. Bell and  

Ms. Celia R. Denov
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory J. Bell
Ms. Michelle Benash and  

Mr. Kris Krohn
Ms. Cindy Benson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Bercal
Ms. Diane R. Bergen
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Bickley Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James Biggs
Jane Nichols Bishop
Ms. Stephanie Biziewski
Mr. William G. G. Blakney
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mrs. Loretta Bober
Mrs. Jean M. Boddy
Ms. Esther Borg

Dr. Amy R. Boscov and  
Dr. Terence Ellen

Mr. John Bour
Mrs. Patricia B. Bourland
Ms. Caroline Bowdish
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mrs. Laura Jo Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. Albert Boysen
Ms. Olivia H. Bozik
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Bonnie D. Briscoe
Ms. Lee Britton Henkel
Rev. and Mrs. John L. Brown
Ms. Kathryn Brown
Ms. Mary Lord Brown
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and  

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
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Children play a game during a break 
in their school day in Kidal, Mali. The 
Carter Center has finished its tenure as 
Independent Observer of the country's 
peace process. FI
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are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substan-
tial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

• �Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit.

• �Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements.

• �Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Center’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed.

• �Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

• �Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substan-
tial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, 
and certain internal control-related matters that we identi-
fied during the audit.

Atlanta, Georgia  
April 2, 2024

Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Trustees 
The Carter Center Inc.:
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
The Carter Center Inc. and its subsidiary (the Center), 
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial 
position as of Aug. 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related 
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finan-
cial position of the Center as of Aug. 31, 2023 and 2022, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are required to be independent of the 
Center and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date that the consoli-
dated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2023 and 2022

		  2023	 2022

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents		  $       74,117,222 	 75,452,534

Accounts receivable:

	 Due from conditional agreements		  16,494,168 	 8,787,185

	 Other		  376,995 	 272,740

		  Total accounts receivable		  16,871,163 	 9,059,925

Contributions receivable, net (note 3)		  510,351 	 230,163

Inventory (notes 4, 9, and 15)		  6,331,911 	 4,387,783

Operating lease right-of-use assets (note 8)		  780,337 	 —

Investments (notes 5, 7, and 10)		  1,053,658,214 	 1,058,873,553

Property, plant, and equipment, net (note 6)		  4,988,913 	 4,923,280

Artwork			  2,436,465 	 2,435,365

Other assets		  401,565 	 33,286

		  Total assets		  $1,160,096,141 	 1,155,395,889

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

	 Accounts payable and accrued expenses		  $     11,350,439 	 9,932,820

	 Lease liabilities (note 8)		  780,337 	 —

	 Deferred revenue		  7,300,146 	 6,111,603

	 Annuity obligations (note 7)		  6,249,963 	 6,204,467

		  Total liabilities		  25,680,885 	 22,248,890

Net assets (note 11):

	 Without donor restrictions		  421,297,749 	 423,491,324

	 With donor restrictions		  713,117,507 	 709,655,675

		  Total net assets		  1,134,415,256 	 1,133,146,999

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7, 8, and 16)		

		  Total liabilities and net assets		  $1,160,096,141 	 1,155,395,889

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2023 (with comparative totals for 2022)

			   Without donor	 With donor	 Totals
			   restrictions	 restrictions	 2023	 2022

Revenue and support:
	Contributions and grants:

	Operating			   $  37,336,091 	 — 	 37,336,091 	 44,139,241

	Programs:

			  Health			   — 	 56,244,502 	 56,244,502 	 39,935,489

			  Peace			   — 	 19,930,381 	 19,930,381 	 10,635,582

			  Cross-program			   — 	 218,299 	 218,299 	 192,618

	 In-kind gifts (note 9):

			  Health			   — 	 265,344,619 	 265,344,619 	 193,676,160

	Endowment			   — 	 761,913 	 761,913 	 309,185

				   Total contributions and grants		  37,336,091 	 342,499,714 	 379,835,805 	 288,888,275

	Endowment fund earnings		  13,668,196 	 24,094,217 	 37,762,413 	 36,410,658

	Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  (1,867,622) 	 (3,988,508) 	 (5,856,130) 	(120,004,340)

	Facilities use income		  298,790 	 — 	 298,790 	 252,509

	 Interest and investment income		  1,429,387 	 142,256 	 1,571,643 	 31,566

	Net assets released from restrictions:

			  Health			   339,357,891 	 (339,357,891) 	 — 	 —

			  Peace			   19,567,120 	 (19,567,120) 	 — 	 —

			  Cross-program			   360,836 	 (360,836) 	 — 	 —

				   Total revenue and support		  410,150,689 	 3,461,832 	 413,612,521 	 205,578,668

Expenses:
Program:

			  Health			   349,226,880 	 — 	 349,226,880 	 261,125,289

			  Peace			   35,492,107 	 — 	 35,492,107 	 26,900,511

			  Cross-program			   807,977 	 — 	 807,977 	 1,843,904

	Fundraising			   12,368,890 	 — 	 12,368,890 	 11,610,169

	General and administrative		  14,448,410 	 — 	 14,448,410 	 11,788,052

				   Total expenses		  412,344,264 	 — 	 412,344,264 	 313,267,925

				   Change in net assets		  (2,193,575) 	 3,461,832 	 1,268,257 	 (107,689,257)

Net assets at beginning of year		  423,491,324 	 709,655,675 	1,133,146,999 	1,240,836,256

Net assets at end of year		  $421,297,749 	 713,117,507 	1,134,415,256 	1,133,146,999

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2022

						      Without donor	 With donor
						      restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Revenue and support:
	Contributions and grants:

		  Operating				    $  44,139,241 	 — 	 44,139,241

		  Programs:

			    Health				    — 	 39,935,489 	 39,935,489

			    Peace				    — 	 10,635,582 	 10,635,582

			    Cross-program			   — 	 192,618 	 192,618

		  In-kind gifts (note 9):

			    Health				    — 	 193,676,160 	 193,676,160

		  Endowment				    — 	 309,185 	 309,185

				   Total contributions and grants			   44,139,241 	 244,749,034 	 288,888,275

	Endowment fund earnings			   13,180,421 	 23,230,237 	 36,410,658

	Appreciation of endowment investments, net			   (44,187,191) 	 (75,817,149) 	(120,004,340)

	Facilities use income			   252,509 	 — 	 252,509

	 Interest and investment income			   31,566 	 — 	 31,566

	Net assets released from restrictions:

		    Health				    251,788,694 	 (251,788,694) 	 —

		    Peace				    16,190,835 	 (16,190,835) 	 —

		    Cross-program			   673,887 	 (673,887) 	 —

				   Total revenue and support			   282,069,962 	 (76,491,294) 	 205,578,668

Expenses:
	 Program:

		  Health				    261,125,289 	 — 	 261,125,289

		  Peace				    26,900,511 	 — 	 26,900,511

		  Cross-program				    1,843,904 	 — 	 1,843,904

	Fundraising				    11,610,169 	 — 	 11,610,169

	General and administrative			   11,788,052 	 — 	 11,788,052

				   Total expenses			   313,267,925 	 — 	 313,267,925

				   Change in net assets			   (31,197,963) 	 (76,491,294) 	(107,689,257)

Net assets at beginning of year			   454,689,287 	 786,146,969 	1,240,836,256

Net assets at end of year			   $423,491,324 	 709,655,675 	1,133,146,999

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended August 31, 2023 (With comparative totals for 2022)

		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses

				    Cross-		  General and	 Total
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 2023	 2022

Salaries and benefits	 $  27,381,133 	 13,694,736 	 268,277 	 5,100,390 	 7,735,225 	 54,179,761 	 48,528,747

Consulting	 7,694,720 	 7,760,526 	 357,046 	 503,182 	 2,482,550 	 18,798,024 	 15,398,236

Communications	 4,232,919 	 686,234 	 3,324 	 2,781,626 	 247,555 	 7,951,658 	 6,548,851

Services		 2,950,443 	 932,666 	 5,273 	 1,613,514 	 463,830 	 5,965,726 	 3,372,665

Office and equipment	 11,820,910 	 1,115,033 	 14,143 	 229,015 	 973,948 	 14,153,049 	 5,145,284

Vehicles		 5,491,880 	 499,301 	 27 	 459 	 759 	 5,992,426 	 4,378,686

Travel/meetings	 21,026,913 	 4,360,217 	 25,327 	 1,167,200 	 377,966 	 26,957,623 	 20,493,236

Interventions (note 2(l))	 263,649,627 	 38,613 	 — 	 — 	 — 	 263,688,240 	197,241,072

Other		  1,499,418 	 620,953 	 3,640 	 445,482 	 1,293,037 	 3,862,530 	 3,388,780

Grants		  2,867,953 	 5,336,120 	 100,000 	 — 	 — 	 8,304,073 	 6,523,516

				    348,615,916 	 35,044,399 	 777,057 	 11,840,868 	 13,574,870 	 409,853,110 	311,019,073

Common area and  
  depreciation	 610,964 	 447,708 	 30,920 	 528,022 	 873,540 	 2,491,154 	 2,248,852

		  Total expenses	 $349,226,880 	 35,492,107 	 807,977 	 12,368,890 	 14,448,410 	 412,344,264 	313,267,925

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended August 31, 2022
		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses

				    Cross-		  General and
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 Total

Salaries and benefits	 $25,163,228 	 12,271,525 	 226,777 	 4,757,418 	 6,109,799 	 48,528,747

Consulting	 7,431,564 	 5,096,448 	 429,708 	 422,726 	 2,017,790 	 15,398,236

Communications	 2,863,071 	 898,857 	 4,550 	 2,549,798 	 232,575 	 6,548,851

Services		 252,997 	 807,028 	 2,508 	 1,822,813 	 487,319 	 3,372,665

Office and equipment	 3,046,108 	 1,166,654 	 34,097 	 168,671 	 729,754 	 5,145,284

Vehicles		 3,918,949 	 458,738 	 22 	 368 	 609 	 4,378,686

Travel/meetings	 16,677,506 	 2,630,142 	 9,106 	 1,034,685 	 141,797 	 20,493,236

Interventions (note 2(l))	 197,241,072 	 — 	 — 	 — 	 — 	 197,241,072

Other		  1,321,847 	 406,321 	 3,753 	 377,025 	 1,279,834 	 3,388,780

Grants		  2,657,408 	 2,760,638 	 1,105,470 	 — 	 — 	 6,523,516

				    260,573,750 	 26,496,351 	 1,815,991 	 11,133,504 	 10,999,477 	 311,019,073

Common area and 
  depreciation	 551,539 	 404,160 	 27,913 	 476,665 	 788,575 	 2,248,852

		  Total expenses	 $261,125,289 	 26,900,511 	 1,843,904 	 11,610,169 	 11,788,052 	 313,267,925

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022

		  2023	 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets			   $1,268,257 	(107,689,257)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash  
	   provided by operating activities:

			  Depreciation				    834,626 	 755,972

			  Appreciation of endowment investments, net			   5,845,650 	 120,004,340

			  Appreciation of non-endowment investments, net			   (23,554) 	 (32,866)

			  Donated artwork			   (1,100) 	 —

			  Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net			   (761,913) 	 (309,185)

			�  Net change in inventory balances due to noncash  
  contributions and distributions			   (1,944,128) 	 (3,626,740)

			  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

				   Accounts receivable			   (7,811,238) 	 (2,843,258)

				   Contributions receivable, net of donor endowment			   (280,188) 	 57,356

				   Other assets			   (368,279) 	 180,905

				�   Accounts payable and accrued expenses, deferred  
  revenue, and annuity obligations			   3,482,426 	 4,760,920

					    Net cash provided by operating activities			   240,559 	 11,258,187

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment, net of related payables			   (900,259) 	 (1,138,794)

Endowment fund earnings			   (37,762,413) 	 (36,410,658)

Purchase of investments			   (672,656) 	 (1,488,025)

Sale of investments				   37,843,608 	 37,402,972

					    Net cash used in investing activities			   (1,491,720) 	 (1,634,505)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net			   761,913 	 309,185

Payments on annuities and trusts			   (846,064) 	 (764,432)

					    Net cash used in financing activities			   (84,151) 	 (455,247)

					    Net change in cash and cash equivalents			   (1,335,312) 	 9,168,435

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			   75,452,534 	 66,284,099

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			   $74,117,222 	 75,452,534

Supplemental disclosures for cash flow information:

		  Noncash investing activity — purchases of property and  
		    equipment in accounts payable			   $     104,779 	 72,749

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ORGANIZATION  
AND OPERATION

The Carter Center Inc. (the Center), formerly known as 
Carter Presidential Library Inc. and Carter Presidential 
Center Inc., was organized on Oct. 26, 1981, under the 
laws of the state of Georgia as a not-for-profit corporation 
to be operated exclusively for charitable and educational 
purposes.

The Center operates programmatically under two 
main action areas: Peace and Health. The Center also 
receives broad-based support deemed to be beneficial to all 
programs and categorized as Cross-program.

Initiatives in Peace include preventing and resolving 
conflict, protecting basic human rights, promoting rule of 
law, and monitoring elections in emerging democracies. 
The Health area strives to improve health in the United 
States and around the world. Initiatives include disease 
eradication and control and mental health reform. The 
Center operates field offices in various African, Asian, and 
Latin American countries, as needed, to fulfill its program-
matic objectives.

The Board of Trustees (the Board) of the Center consists 
of President Carter and Mrs. Carter (as of Aug. 31, 2023), 
the president of Emory University, 10 members appointed 
by Emory University’s board of trustees, and 11 members 
appointed by President Carter and those trustees not 
appointed by Emory University’s board of trustees (Carter 
Center class of the Center’s trustees). Additionally, Emory 
University’s board of trustees has the authority to approve 
amendments to the Center’s articles of incorporation and 
bylaws. Carter Center of Emory University (CCEU) (an 
affiliate of CCI) is a department of Emory University that 
was established to assist with the operations of the Center’s 
programs. The financial data for CCEU is not included in 
these consolidated financial statements as it is considered 
part of the Emory University reporting entity.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
OTHER MATTERS

A.	 Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 

in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.

B.	 Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
include the activity of The Carter Center Collaborative 
Inc. (CCCI), an affiliated tax-exempt not-for-profit corpo-
ration that supports the Center’s mission through receipt 
of in-kind goods and services. All significant intercom-
pany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

C.	 Basis of Presentation
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-im-
posed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Center 
and changes therein are classified and reported as 
follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that 
are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either 
by actions of the Center and/or the passage of time.

D.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Center’s cash and cash equivalents represent liquid 
financial instruments with an original maturity of 
three months or less that are not invested as part of the 
investment assets. These amounts, carried at cost, approx-
imate fair value.

E.	 Contributions
Contributions received are recognized as revenue when 
underlying assets or a donor’s unconditional promise 
to give is received. Contributions are considered to be 
available for use without restriction unless specifically 
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are desig-
nated for future periods or restricted by the donor for 
specific purposes are reported as support that increases 
net assets with donor restrictions.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to 
be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable 
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected 
to be collected in future years are recorded at the present 
value of their estimated future cash flows. Unconditional 
promises to give are discounted using interest rates 
approximating fair value at the date of the gift.

Contributions and grants are conditional if the donor 
agreement includes both a donor-imposed barrier that 
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must be overcome and a right of return of funds (or a 
release of an obligation to transfer funds). Conditional 
contributions are recognized as revenue once the 
donor-imposed barrier is overcome (typically qualifying 
expenses being incurred) or when right of return of the 
contribution to the donor no longer exists, as specified 
in the terms and conditions of the donor agreement.

F.	 In-Kind Gifts
Contributed property and equipment is recorded at 
fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate 
how long the assets must be used, the contributions 
are recorded as support with donor restrictions. In the 
absence of such stipulations, contributions of prop-
erty and equipment are recorded as support without 
donor restrictions.

Donated materials and supplies, primarily medical 
supplies, are reflected in the consolidated statements of 
activities as contributions at their estimated fair values. 
Donated services are reflected as contributions if the 
following criteria are met: (1) the services received create 
or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) the services require 
specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if 
not provided by donation. Donated services are recog-
nized at fair value as the services are performed.

G.	 Inventory
Inventory primarily consists of medication used by 
the Center to treat diseases that are the subject of the 
Center’s health programs. Inventory is received as an 
in-kind donation and is valued using the first in, first 
out method at fair value at the time of the gift. Values as 
determined by the donor and independent third-party 
pricing information are utilized in management’s fair 
value estimate.

H.	 Investments
Investments in the pooled investment fund (the Fund) 
(note 5) are stated at fair value as determined by the 
manager, Emory University. Emory University’s pooled 
investments in securities and listed funds are valued 
using quoted prices in active markets, if available; 
otherwise, if the market is inactive, fair value is deter-
mined by Emory University in accordance with its 
valuation policies.

Investments in alternative investment fund structures 
held in the Fund are valued by Emory University using 

the net asset value (NAV) per share of the investment (or 
its equivalent), as a practical expedient, if (a) the under-
lying investment manager’s calculation of NAV is fair 
value based, and (b) Emory University does not currently 
have plans to sell the investment for an amount different 
from NAV.

All other investments are stated at fair value based 
on quoted market prices. Investment return, including 
net realized and unrealized gains or losses, is recognized 
when earned and reported in the consolidated statement 
of activities.

The values of the investments in the pooled 
endowment fund determined by Emory University 
are evaluated by management of the Center who has 
concluded that such values are reasonable estimates of 
fair value at August 31, 2023 and 2022.

Investments are exposed to several risks, such as 
interest rate, currency, market, and credit risks. Due 
to the level of risk associated with certain investments, 
it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investments will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in 
the Center’s consolidated financial statements.

The Fund may hold investments denominated in 
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Thus, there is 
exposure to currency risk because the value of the invest-
ments denominated in other currencies may fluctuate 
due to changes in currency exchange rates. This can have 
an effect on the reported value of these assets.

The Fund’s investment portfolio is subject to interest 
rate and credit risks for certain securities whose valuation 
would be impacted by changes in interest rates. The port-
folio is also subject to the risk that the issuer of a debt 
security may be unable to pay interest or repay principal 
when it is due.

The value of securities held by the Fund may decline 
in response to certain economic events. Such events 
impacting valuation may include (but are not limited 
to) economic changes; market fluctuations; regulatory 
changes; global and political instability; and currency, 
interest rate, and commodity price fluctuations.

I.	 Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost at the 
date of acquisition or at fair value at the date of dona-
tion, in the case of gifts. Depreciation is provided over 
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a 
straight-line basis.
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J.	 Leases
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2016-02, Financial Accounting for Leases, together 
with its subsequent related amendments in 2018 and 
2019, collectively referred to as FASB Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842, Leases (Topic 
842). The Center adopted Topic 842 as of Sept. 1, 2022 
(“transition date”), using the modified retrospective 
approach and as a result did not adjust the comparative 
period financial information or make the disclosures for 
periods before the transition date. The Center elected 
the package of practical expedients to not reassess prior 
conclusions related to contracts containing leases, lease 
classification, lease term, and initial direct costs, as 
well as not to separate nonlease components from lease 
components and instead account for each as a single 
lease component for all classes of its assets.

As a result of adopting Topic 842, the Center 
recognized operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets 
and corresponding liabilities of $767,888 as of Sept. 1, 
2022. The adoption of Topic 842 resulted in no mate-
rial impact to the Center’s statements of activities or 
cash flows.

Refer to note 8 for further discussion on the 
Center’s leases.

K.	 Artwork
The Center has capitalized works of art and collectibles 
received since its inception at the estimated fair value at 
the date of acquisition. Works of art with service poten-
tial that diminishes very slowly over time, to the extent 
that its estimated useful life is extraordinarily long, are 
not subject to depreciation.

L.	 Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the Center’s various programs 
and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, 
certain costs have been allocated among the programs 
and supporting services benefited. Intervention expenses 
included within the Center’s health program service 
comprise the distribution of donated medications, 
primarily Mectizan and Zithromax, as well as filter cloth 
distribution, epidemiological surveys, and health educa-
tion training and material. Expenses attributable to more 

than one functional expense category and the basis for 
allocation are as follows:

Expense	 Allocation basis

Depreciation	 Square footage
IT department	� Estimates of time and costs of 

specific technology utilized

M.	 Federal and Other Government Grants
The Center receives funding under grants and agree-
ments from the U.S. and other government agencies. 
These funds are generally considered nonreciprocal 
transactions and are subject to donor conditions and 
restrictions which are typically met by incurring quali-
fying expenses for a program. The Center is entitled to 
the funds once the conditions have been met.

For the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, 
the Center received £0 GBP ($0) and £450,000 GBP 
($583,651), respectively, from the United Kingdom 
Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office 
(FCDO) in support of the Center’s Citizen Observer 
Engagement and Advocacy project in the DRC.

For the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, 
the Center received €200,000 Euros ($209,840) and 
€200,000 Euros ($225,464), respectively, from Ireland’s 
Department of Foreign Affairs Civil Society Fund to 
support Promoting and Protecting Women’s Right of 
Access to Information in West Africa.

For the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, the 
Swiss Confederation contributed $0 and $121,918, 
respectively, to support Civil Society Organization 
engagement in inclusive and credible elections in Tunisia. 
For the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, the Swiss 
Confederation contributed $0 and $200,000, respec-
tively, to support Monitoring Digital Threats on Social 
Media in Myanmar.

N.	 Tax Status
The Center and CCCI have received determination 
letters from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) dated 
Dec. 16, 1991, and March 22, 2007, respectively, each 
indicating recognition as an organization described 
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(the Code) whereby only unrelated business income, 
as defined by Section 512(a) of the Code, is subject to 
federal income tax.
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The Center applies FASB ASC Topic 740, Income 
Taxes (ASC 740), which addresses the accounting for 
uncertainty in income tax positions. It also provides 
guidance on when tax positions are recognized in an 
entity’s financial statements and how the values of these 
positions are determined. There is currently no impact 
on the consolidated financial statements as a result of 
ASC 740.

O.	 Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
requires management to make a number of estimates 
and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Significant items 
subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
fair value of inventory; fair values of investments without 
readily determinable fair value; and obligations under 
split-interest agreements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.

 
CONTRIBUTIONS  
RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable consist of the following at 
August 31, 2023 and 2022:

		  2023	 2022

With donor restrictions:
	 Endowment		  $199,323 	 199,323
	 Health		  225,508 	 30,840
	 Peace		  29,286 	 —
	 Cross-program		  56,234 	 —
			   $510,351 	 230,163

The anticipated receipts of these receivables are as follows at 
August 31, 2023 and 2022:

		  2023	 2022

Less than one year		  $455,508 	 230,163
One to five years		  60,000 	 —
More than five years		  — 	 —
Less unamortized discount		  (5,157) 	 — 
			   $510,351 	 230,163

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded 
as additional contribution revenue in accordance with 
donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions. In the 
opinion of the Center’s management, all contributions 
receivable recorded at August 31, 2023 and 2022, are 
deemed fully collectible.

 
 
INVENTORY

Inventory was comprised of Zithromax medication in the 
amount of $2,857,738 and $4,387,783 as of August 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively. Inventory also included 
Mectizan medication as of August 31, 2023 and 2022, in 
the amount of $3,474,173 and $0, respectively.

 
 
INVESTMENTS

The Center invests the majority of its investments in a 
pooled investment fund managed and held in trust by 
Emory University. The Center’s investments also include 
assets invested for its charitable gift annuities and charitable 
remainder trusts. These investments are presented in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position 
at their fair values.
		  Fair value
		  2023	 2022

Pooled investments held 
	 at Emory University		 $1,041,971,736 	 1,047,539,542
Cash and cash equivalents		  151,616 	 393,138
Fixed-income securities:
	 Domestic mutual funds		  3,321,592 	 3,741,181
	 Government and 
	   agency securities		  373,772 	 —
Equities:
	 Domestic stocks		  7,748,498 	 7,109,229
	 Domestic mutual funds		  91,000 	 90,463
			  $1,053,658,214 	 1,058,873,553
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PROPERTY, PLANT,  
AND EQUIPMENT

The components of property, plant, and equipment at 
August 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

			   Estimated 
	 2023	 2022	 useful lives

Land	 $     636,732 	 636,732 	 N/A
Buildings	 17,580,412 	 17,580,412 	 30 years
Building improvements	 3,451,877 	 3,123,015 	 15 years
Grounds and land  
	 improvements	 385,891 	 198,243 	 10 years
Furniture and fixtures	 1,481,341 	 1,233,613 	 10 years
Office equipment	 832,072 	 741,364 	 5 years
Computer equipment	 498,603 	 453,290 	 3 years
		  24,866,928 	 23,966,669
Less accumulated  
	 depreciation	 (19,878,015) 	 (19,043,389)
		  $  4,988,913 	 4,923,280

Depreciation expense totaled $834,626 and $755,972 
during 2023 and 2022, respectively.

 
SPLIT-INTEREST  
AGREEMENTS

The Center is a beneficiary under several types of split-in-
terest agreements, primarily charitable gift annuities. Under 
these agreements, the Center acts as trustee of assets 
received from donors and remits to the donor or other 
designee a fixed amount for a specified period of time, 
normally until the death of the donor or other designee. 
Assets related to charitable gift annuities are recorded at 
their fair values when received, and an annuity payment 
liability is recognized at the present value of future cash 
flows expected to be paid to the donor or other designee. 
At the time of the gift, the Center recognizes contribution 
revenue for the remainder interest in an amount equal to 
the difference between the fair value of the assets received 
and the annuity liability. Discount rates and actuarial 
assumptions used to determine the annuity liability are 
typically based on factors, such as applicable federal interest 
rates and life income beneficiary life expectancies, as 
determined by mortality tables published by the IRS. The 
changes in the value of these agreements are included in 

As of August 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, the Center’s 
investment in the pooled investment fund totaled 
$1,041,971,736 and $1,047,539,542, representing approx-
imately 10.46% and 10.70% of the pool at each of these 
dates. The composition of total pooled investments held at 
Emory University is as follows (in thousands):

		  2023	 2022

Short-term investments  
	 and cash equivalents		  $   636,418 	 388,330
Public equity		  3,461,058 	 3,538,101
Absolute return/fixed income		  1,318,519 	 1,181,574
Private equity/venture capital		  3,651,408 	 3,726,232
Real assets		  845,881 	 949,996
Derivative instruments		  49,843 	 11,695
			   $9,963,127 	 9,795,928

Based on Emory University’s investment policy statement, 
investments classified as public equity include global equity 
securities and commingled funds — equity, as well as alterna-
tive investments pursuing such strategies. Absolute return/
fixed income investments are comprised of fixed-income 
securities and commingled funds — fixed income, along with 
alternative investments pursuing similar credit or oppor-
tunistic strategies. Private equity/venture capital includes 
investments in the private markets, as well as investments in 
private securities. Real assets include those investments in 
natural resources and real estate partnerships.

Emory University is subject to limitations and restrictions 
on its ability to redeem or sell certain of the investments 
included in its pooled investment fund. Such restrictions 
vary by investment type and range from required notice 
periods (generally 30 to 180 days after initial lockup periods) 
to specified terms at inception (generally 10 years).

The Center and Emory University entered into a memo-
randum of understanding (MOU) during September 2020 
which sets forth mutual expectations regarding the manage-
ment by Emory University of the Center’s assets held in 
trust in the pooled investment fund. The MOU provides 
that the Center is permitted partial withdrawals of up to 
10% per year (inclusive of regular spending payouts), with 
30 days’ written notice prior to a calendar quarter or fiscal 
year end. A full withdrawal request by the Center requires 
at least one year’s written notice and is subject to a multi-
year distribution schedule in line with the duration of the 
long-term investment portfolio, as agreed upon by both the 
Center and Emory University.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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periods covered by the Center’s option to extend (or not to 
terminate) the lease that the Center is reasonably certain to 
exercise. The Center has elected not to recognize ROU assets 
and lease liabilities for leases with terms of 12 months or 
less.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the 
lease liability are comprised of fixed payments and variable 
lease payments. Variable lease payments associated with 
the Center’s leases are recognized when the event, activity, 
or circumstance in the lease agreement on which those 
payments are assessed occurs. Variable lease payments for 
operating leases are presented as operating expense in the 
Center’s consolidated statements of activities.

Topic 842 requires a lessee to discount its unpaid lease 
payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental 
borrowing rate. Generally, the Center cannot determine the 
interest rate implicit in the lease because it does not have 
access to the lessor’s estimated residual value or the amount 
of the lessor’s deferred initial direct costs. Therefore, the 
Center uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate for leases which is adjusted for lease term.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for lease payments made at or before the lease commence-
ment date, plus any initial direct costs incurred less any 
lease incentives received. For operating leases, the ROU 
asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at 
the carrying amount of the lease liability, plus initial direct 
costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less 
the unamortized balance of lease incentives received. Lease 
expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

ROU assets for operating leases are periodically reduced 
by impairment losses. The Center uses the long lived assets 
impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 360-10, Property, 
Plant, and Equipment — Overall, to determine whether an ROU 
asset is impaired, and if so, the amount of the impairment 
loss to recognize.

The Center monitors for events or changes in circum-
stances that require a reassessment of leases. When a 
reassessment results in the remeasurement of a lease liability, 
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the corresponding ROU asset unless doing so would 
reduce the carrying amount of the ROU asset to an amount 
less than zero. In that case, the amount of the adjustment 
that would result in a negative ROU asset balance is 
recorded in profit or loss.

operating contributions and grants in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of activities.

Certain states have restrictions on investment allocations. 
Management of the Center believes it has complied with any 
known restrictions in states in which it has received chari-
table gifts subject to such restrictions.

The fair value of the assets related to split-interest 
agreements is included in investments in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial position and totaled 
$11,686,478 and $11,334,011 at August 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. The annuity liability related to these agreements 
is $6,249,963 and $6,204,467 at August 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. The net contribution revenue (loss) reported 
for split interest agreements as a component of contribu-
tions and grants revenue and support totaled $306,971 
and ($3,083,801) for the years ended August 31, 2023 and 
2022, respectively.

 
 
LEASES

(Policy applicable beginning September 1, 2022.) The 
Center is a lessee in several noncancelable operating leases, 
primarily for office space and small equipment. The Center 
determines if an arrangement contains a lease at contract 
inception. If an arrangement is determined to contain a 
lease, the Center recognizes an ROU asset and lease liability 
at the lease commencement date. The Center’s operating 
leases expire over the next four years. These leases generally 
contain renewal options for periods negotiable between the 
parties upon notice to renew. Because the Center is not 
reasonably certain to exercise these renewal options, the 
options are not considered in determining the lease term, 
and associated potential option payments are excluded 
from lease payments. The Center’s leases generally do not 
include termination options for either party to the lease or 
restrictive financial or other covenants. Payments due under 
the lease contracts include fixed payments plus variable 
payments on some of the office space leases. For office space 
leases, variable payments include payments for the Center’s 
proportionate share of the building’s property taxes, 
insurance, and common area maintenance. The Center has 
elected to discount its lease liabilities using its incremental 
borrowing rate.

The lease term for all of the Center’s leases includes 
the noncancellable period of the lease plus any additional 

8

77



Operating lease cost included in the office and 
equipment line item on the accompanying consolidated 
statements of functional expenses were $1,544,091 and 
$1,660,053, respectively, for the years ended August 31, 
2023 and 2022.

Amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated 
statement of financial position as of August 31, 2023, were 
as follows:

Maturities of lease liabilities under noncancellable leases 
as of August 31, 2023, are as follows:

			   Operating 
			   leases

2024			   $346,963
2025			   250,612
2026			   211,971 
Thereafter			   —
		     Total undiscounted lease payments		  809,546
Less imputed interest			   (29,209)
	      Total lease liabilities			   $780,337
Weighted-average remaining lease  
	 term-operating leases		  2.7 years

Lessor
The Center leases space to various entities under noncancel-
able operating leases with various terms. The Center leases 
to CCEU approximately 20% of the Center’s space under a 
lease for a term of 99 years, with a rental payment of $1 per 
year. A business agreement with the Center’s caterer has no 
annual rent; rather, the Center receives 5% to 10% of the 
tenant’s gross revenue, as defined in such agreement. For 
operating leases, the lease liability is measured at the present 
value of the unpaid lease payments at the lease commence-
ment date.

 
 
IN-KIND GIFTS

The components of in-kind gifts, donated goods, and 
services for the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, are 
as follows:

		  2023	 2022

Health:
	 Medication		  $264,420,613 	 193,380,832
	 Other		  924,006 	 295,328
			   $265,344,619 	 193,676,160

Donations of medication were received primarily from 
two pharmaceutical companies for the years ended 
August 31, 2023 and 2022. These donations are subject 
to donor-imposed restrictions as to location of distribu-
tion and were used in the Center’s River Blindness and 
Trachoma programs in sub-Saharan Africa. Such donations 
are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the gift. 
Estimates of fair value are based primarily on analyzing 
observable market data associated with branded, wholesale 
and generic pricing; geographic factors considering the U.S. 
as the most advantageous market; and fair value indicators 
provided by donors, if any.

All gifts in-kind are utilized in the year of receipt with 
the exception relating to the balance of medical inventory 
disclosed in note 4.

FAIR VALUE  
OF FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS

The Center’s estimates of fair value for financial assets 
and liabilities are based on the framework established in 
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement. This framework is 
based on the inputs used in valuations and gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets and requires 
observable inputs to be used in the valuations when avail-
able. The disclosure of fair value estimates in the hierarchy 
described below is based on whether the significant inputs 
into the valuation are observable. In determining the level of 
the hierarchy in which the estimate is disclosed, the highest 
priority is given to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs that 
reflect the Center’s significant market assumptions. The 
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Valuations based on pricing inputs that are 
other than quoted prices in active markets, which are 
either directly or indirectly observable; examples include 
quoted prices in active markets of the underlying assets, 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in an inactive market, or valuations based on 
models where significant inputs are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Level 3 — Valuations are derived from other valuation 
methodologies, including pricing models, discounted 
cash flow models, and similar techniques. Level 3 valu-
ations incorporate certain assumptions and projections 
that are not observable in the market and require signifi-
cant professional judgment in determining the fair value 
assigned to such assets or liabilities.

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable 
market data when available. As required by ASC Topic 820, 
assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on 
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value 
measurements.

Contributions receivable for current year gifts are initially 
measured at fair value in the year the receivable is recorded 
based on the present value of future cash flows discounted 
at a rate commensurate with risks involved, which is an 
application of the income approach. At August 31, 2023 
and 2022, there were $280,188 and $0 current year gifts 
included in contributions receivable.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
and deferred revenue approximates fair value because of 
the relative terms and short maturity of these financial 
instruments. The carrying value of annuity obligations 
approximates fair value and is based on the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows.

NAV was used as a practical expedient estimate 
of fair value relative to the Center’s interest in the 
Emory University pooled endowment fund. NAV, in 
many instances, may not equal fair value that would be 
determined pursuant to ASC Topic 820. There are no 
redemption restrictions on the Center with respect to its 
pooled investments held at Emory University. Investments 
that are valued using the practical expedient, as described 
above, are labeled as NAV and are not categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy. The Center does not hold any 
investments that would be categorized as Level 3 invest-
ments as of August 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2023:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents			   $74,268,838 	 — 	 74,268,838
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds			   3,321,592 	 — 	 3,321,592
		  Government and agency securities			   373,772 	 — 	 373,772
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks			   7,748,498 	 — 	 7,748,498
		  Domestic mutual funds			   91,000 	 — 	 91,000
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund		  — 	 1,041,971,736 	 1,041,971,736
			   Total			   $85,803,700 	 1,041,971,736 	 1,127,775,436

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2022:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents			   $75,845,672 	 — 	 75,845,672
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds			   3,741,181 	 — 	 3,741,181
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks			   7,109,229 	 — 	 7,109,229
		  Domestic mutual funds			   90,463 	 — 	 90,463
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund		  — 	 1,047,539,542 	 1,047,539,542
			   Total			   $86,786,545 	 1,047,539,542 	 1,134,326,087
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Of the donor-restricted endowment net assets noted 
above, $166.0 million and $165.2 million as of August 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively, represent donor-restricted 
endowment corpus. The remaining $509.0 million and 
$513.0 million as of August 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, 
represent appreciation and reinvested earnings related to 
the donor-restricted corpus but for which the Center’s 
management and board have full discretion to use within 
the donor-stipulated purpose, if any, as noted above.

 
ENDOWMENT  
FUNDS

The Center’s endowment funds consist of individual 
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated 
by the Board to function as endowments. The net assets 
associated with endowment funds, including those funds 
designated by the Board to function as endowment, are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions.

A. Interpretation of Relevant Law
The Center has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as 
adopted by the State of Georgia, as providing, among other 
things, expanded spending flexibility by allowing, subject 
to a standard of prudence, spending from an endowment 
without regard to the book value of the corpus of the fund. 
As a result of this interpretation, the Center classifies as net 
assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts 
donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subse-
quent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumula-
tion is added to the fund.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Center considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate 
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

• �The duration and preservation of the fund

• �The purposes of the Center and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund

• �General economic conditions

 
 
NET ASSETS

A. Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2023 and 2022, net assets without donor 
restrictions are as follows:

		  2023	 2022

Undesignated		  $  46,078,889 	 46,466,338
Board-designated for:
	� Endowment investment,  

  subject to spending policy  
  and appropriation		  375,218,860 	 377,024,986

			   $421,297,749 	 423,491,324

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds inter-
nally designated for endowment investment and program 
funding. These amounts are classified as net assets without 
donor restrictions due to the lack of explicit donor stipu-
lations that restrict their use. Unrealized gains or losses on 
internally designated endowment funds are classified as 
changes in net assets without restrictions.

B. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2023 and 2022, net assets with donor 
restrictions are available for the following purposes:

		  2023	 2022

Donor-restricted for specified purposes:
	 Health		  $  13,123,730 	 7,289,000
	 Peace		  1,083,808 	 612,543
	 Cross-program		  23,890,162 	 23,507,730
			   38,097,700 	 31,409,273
Donor-restricted endowments  
 � subject to spending policy and  

appropriation, to support  
the following purposes:

	   Health		  20,365,281 	 20,496,911
	   Peace		  2,884,735 	 2,917,276
	   Cross-program		  3,748,662 	 2,776,147
	   General activities		  648,021,129 	 652,056,068
			   675,019,807 	 678,246,402
			   $713,117,507 	 709,655,675

Notes to consolidated financial statements

11

12

80



• �The possible effect of inflation and deflation

• �The expected total return from income and the 
appreciation of investments

• �Other resources of the Center

• �The investment policies of the Center.

The Center invests its endowment assets in a pooled 
investment fund managed by Emory University. The Board 
follows the investment return objectives and the spending 
policy, as directed and managed by Emory University’s 
board of trustees, as set forth in more detail below.

B. Return Objectives and Risk Parameters
The Center supports Emory University’s investment and 
spending policies, the objective of which is to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by 
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing 
power of the endowment assets. Under this investment 
policy, as approved by Emory University’s board of trustees, 
the endowment assets are invested within risk tolerances 
of Emory University to provide an expected total return in 
excess of spending and inflation over the long term.

C. Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
To satisfy its long-term return objectives, the Center relies 
on Emory University’s total return strategy in which invest-
ment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation 
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). Emory University employs a diversified asset 
allocation strategy across public equity, absolute return/fixed 
income, private equity/venture capital, real assets, and deriv-
ative instruments to achieve its long-term return objectives 
within a prudent risk framework.

D. �Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives 
Relate to Spending Policy

The Center follows Emory University’s total return endow-
ment spending policy that establishes the maximum amount 
of endowment investment return available to support 
current operating and capital needs. The Center considered 
the expected return on its endowment, including the effect 
of inflation in setting the annual appropriation amount. 
Accordingly, the Center expects the current spending policy 
to allow its endowment to maintain its purchasing power 
if projected growth rates are achieved. Additional real 
growth will be provided by new gifts and any excess invest-
ment return.

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2023:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds			   $                  — 	 675,019,807 	 675,019,807
Board-designated endowment funds			   375,218,860 	 — 	 375,218,860
		  Total funds			   $375,218,860 	 675,019,807 	 1,050,238,667

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2022:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds			   $                  — 	 678,246,402 	 678,246,402
Board-designated endowment funds			   377,024,986 	 — 	 377,024,986
		  Total funds			   $377,024,986 	 678,246,402 	 1,055,271,388
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There were no underwater endowment funds during the years ended August 31, 2023 or 2022.

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2023, are as follows:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2022			   $377,024,986 	 678,246,402 	 1,055,271,388
Contributions			   61,496 	 761,913 	 823,409
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings			   13,668,196 	 24,094,217 	 37,762,413
	 Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  (1,867,622) 	 (3,988,508) 	 (5,856,130)
		  Total investment return			   11,800,574 	 20,105,709 	 31,906,283
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure		  (13,668,196) 	 (24,094,217) 	 (37,762,413)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2023			   $375,218,860 	 675,019,807 	 1,050,238,667

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2022, are as follows:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2021			   $420,522,974 	 753,754,366 	 1,174,277,340
Contributions			   689,203 	 309,185 	 998,388
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings			   13,180,421 	 23,230,237 	 36,410,658
	 Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  (44,187,191) 	 (75,817,149) 	 (120,004,340)
		  Total investment return			   (31,006,770) 	 (52,586,912) 	 (83,593,682)
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure		  (13,180,421) 	 (23,230,237) 	 (36,410,658)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2022			   $377,024,986 	 678,246,402 	 1,055,271,388

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Emory University made unrestricted contributions to 
the Center of $805,075 and $779,989, respectively, for the 
years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022. In addition, CCEU 
made unrestricted contributions to CCI, primarily related to 
endowment earnings at CCEU, of $500,390 and $484,791 
for the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

THE CARTER CENTER 
COLLABORATIVE,  
INC. (CCCI)

CCCI received donations of in-kind goods for the benefit 
of the Center totaling $264,420,613 and $193,380,832 for 
the years ended August 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, 
that are included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities. Expenses totaling $262,329,014 and 
$189,901,562 related to the use or grant of these donations 
are also included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities for the years ended August 31, 2023 
and 2022, respectively. Inventory related to these goods for 
CCCI totaled $6,331,911 and $4,387,783 as of August 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of financial position.

 
COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES

Federal Financial Assistance
Federally funded programs are routinely subject to special 
audits that could result in claims against the resources of the 
Center. Management does not believe that there will be any 
claims arising from such audits that could have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of the Center.

 
SUBSEQUENT  
EVENTS

The Center has evaluated subsequent events from the 
consolidated statement of financial position date through 
April 2, 2024, the date on which the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, and determined 
that there are none requiring adjustment or disclosure in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements and 
related footnotes.

LIQUIDITY AND  
AVAILABILITY OF  
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Center’s financial assets available for general expen-
diture within one year of August 31, 2023 and 2022, are 
as follows:

		  2023	 2022

Total assets		 $1,160,096,141 	 1,155,395,889
	 Less:
	� �  Net assets with donor  

 � restrictions for specified  
purpose, net of inventory		  (31,765,789) 	 (27,021,490)

	� �  Donor-restricted and  
 � board-designated  
endowment funds		  (1,050,238,667) 	(1,055,271,388)

	   Inventory		  (6,331,911) 	 (4,387,783)
	 �  Property, plant, and  

 � equipment		  (4,988,913) 	 (4,923,280)
	   Artwork		  (2,436,465) 	 (2,435,365)
	   Other assets		  (401,565) 	 (33,286)
	   Deferred revenue		  (7,300,146) 	 (6,111,603)
	   Annuity obligations		  (6,249,963) 	 (6,204,467)
			  $     50,382,722 	 49,007,227

The primary sources of liquidity for the Center are cash 
accounts at headquarters and in the field. The Center 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 
In the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, the Center’s 
Board of Trustees may turn to the portion of the Center’s 
endowment classified as without donor restrictions 
for consideration.

 
RELATED–PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS

Emory University provides certain administrative functions 
to the Center, including, but not limited to, payroll admin-
istration, investment management, information technology, 
and legal services. The Center paid Emory University 
$690,156 during both the years ended August 31, 2023 and 
2022, respectively, for the provision of these services.
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Marie Muzinga Tungu recycles green 
waste into organic fertilizer thanks to 
a small Carter Center program grant 
to an organization outside of Kinshasa, 
Democratic Republic of the Congo. 

85



The Carter Center Around the World

Caribbean and 
Central America
  4	Belize
  5	Costa Rica
  6	Cuba
  7	�Dominican 

Republic
  8	El Salvador
  9	Guatemala
10	Haiti
11	Honduras
12	Jamaica
13	Nicaragua
14	Panama

North America
1	Canada
2	Mexico
3	United States

Europe
26	Albania
27	�Bosnia and 

Herzegovina
28	Estonia
29	Romania
30	Russia

South America
15	Argentina
16	Bolivia
17	Brazil
18	Chile
19	Colombia
20	Ecuador
21	Guyana
22	Paraguay
23	Peru
24	Suriname
25	Venezuela

Since its founding in 
1982, The Carter Center 
has undertaken peace 
and health initiatives in 
more than 80 countries 
worldwide. These are 
the countries where 
the Center has had 
a presence, past and 
present.

Legend
n Peace Programs
n Health Programs
n �Peace and 

Health Programs
n No Activity

1

3

2 6

12 7
9

23 17

19

25

10
4

14
5

13

21
24

16

22

15

18

8

11

20

50

43

34

51

39

46
57

44
56
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Africa
31	Algeria
32	Angola
33	Benin
34	Burkina Faso
35	Burundi
36	Cameroon
37	�Central African 

Republic

Oceania
86	New Zealand

Asia
75	Bangladesh
76	China
77	India
78	Indonesia
79	Myanmar
80	Nepal
81	North Korea
82	Pakistan
83	Philippines
84	Sri Lanka
85	Timor-Leste

38	Chad
39	Cote d’Ivoire
40	�Democratic 

Republic of 
the Congo

41	Eritrea
42	Ethiopia
43	Ghana

44	Guinea
45	Kenya
46	Liberia
47	Libya
48	Madagascar
49	Malawi
50	Mali
51	Mauritania

52	Mozambique
53	Niger
54	Nigeria
55	Rwanda
56	Senegal
57	Sierra Leone
58	Somalia
59	South Africa

60	South Sudan
61	Sudan
62	Tanzania
63	Togo
64	Tunisia
65	Uganda
66	Zambia

Middle East
67	Egypt
68	�Israel and Palestine
69	Jordan
70	Lebanon
71	Qatar
72	Syria
73	United Arab Emirates
74	Yemen

30

67

72

27

69

26

68

74

28

76

81

75

82

84

78
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Senior Staff

Interns and Graduate Assistants

Peace Programs
Barbara Smith, M.S. 
Vice President, Peace Programs

David Carroll, Ph.D. 
Director, Democracy Program

Susan Marx, MSt., M.A. 
Director, Human Rights Program

Leanne Webster, J.D., M.P.A. 
Director, Rule of Law Program

Cross-Program
P. Craig Withers Jr., 
M.H.A., M.B.A.
Vice President, Overseas 
Operations

Health Programs
Kashef Ijaz, M.D., M.P.H.
Vice President, Health Programs

Eve H. Byrd, D.N.P., M.P.H.
Director, Mental Health Program

Kelly Callahan, M.P.H.
Director, Trachoma Control 
Program

William H. Foege, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Fellow, Health Policy

Gregory Noland, Ph.D., M.P.H.
Director, River Blindness, 
Lymphatic Filariasis, 
Schistosomiasis, and Malaria

Adam Weiss, M.P.H.
Director, Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program

Operations
Laynea Allen
Director; People, Operations, 
and Programs

Christopher D. Brown, CPA
Vice President, Finance; Treasurer

Matthew De Galan
Vice President, Communications

Nicole Kruse
Vice President, Development

Educational Programs
Zarie Riley, Ph.D.
Director, Educational Programs

Paige Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

Office of Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter
Lauren L. Gay
Special Assistant to Jimmy Carter; 
Corporate Secretary

Beth M. Davis
Special Assistant, 
Presidential Scheduling;  
Chief Operating Officer

Melissa M. Montgomery
Special Assistant to 
Rosalynn Carter

The Carter Center sponsors 
a competitive internship 
program, bringing to Atlanta 
college students and recent 
graduates from universities 
around the world each 
semester. Interns and graduate 
assistants play a vital role in 
helping The Carter Center 
accomplish its peace and health 
initiatives, and interns serve 
in many capacities around the 
Center. In turn, The Carter 
Center provides a substantive 
learning experience that serves 
as a basis for interns to explore 
their career options and to 
develop professional skills. Over 
its history, The Carter Center 
has had 3,697 interns from 109 
countries and 659 universities 
who spoke 174 languages. In addition to performing job duties across many Carter Center departments, interns 

travel to Plains, Georgia, each semester to learn about the Center's founders, President 
Jimmy Carter and First Lady Rosalynn Carter.
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Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter

International Task Force for Disease Eradication

Kashef Ijaz, M.D., M.P.H. (Chair)
Vice President for Health Programs
The Carter Center 

Fatima Barry, Ph.D.
Health Specialist
Health, Nutrition, and Population
The World Bank 

Simon Bland
Chief Executive Officer
Global Institute for Disease 

Elimination

Ibrahima Socé Fall, Dr.Med., Ph.D.
Director, Department of Control of 

Neglected Tropical Diseases
World Health Organization 

J. Peter Figueroa, Ph.D.
Professor of Public Health, 

Epidemiology, and HIV/AIDS
University of the West Indies

Donald R. Hopkins, M.D., M.P.H.
Special Advisor, Guinea Worm 

Eradication
The Carter Center

Patrick Lammie, Ph.D.
Director, Neglected Tropical 

Diseases Support Center
The Task Force for Global Health

Ephrem T. Lemango, M.D., M.A.
Principal Advisor and Chief of 

Immunizations
UNICEF

Kim Lindblade, Ph.D.
PMI Insights Technical Director, 

Malaria and Neglected Tropical 
Diseases

PATH 

David Molyneux, Ph.D., 
D.Sc., Hon. F.R.C.P.
Professor, Tropical Health Sciences
Liverpool School of 

Tropical Medicine

Ana Morice Trejos, M.D.,  
M.Sc., M.P.H.
Pediatrician/Epidemiologist
Independent Consultant

Notable scientists and organizations come together in this Carter Center task force to evaluate 
the potential for eradicating or controlling infectious diseases. It monitors progress in disease 
eradication, reviews the status of selected diseases, and recommends opportunities for 
eradication or better control of diseases such as Guinea worm, river blindness, lymphatic 
filariasis, schistosomiasis, malaria, and measles.

W. William Schluter, M.D., 
M.S.P.H.
Director, Global Immunization 

Division
U.S. Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention

Faisal Sultan, M.D.
Special Assistant to the Prime 

Minister on Health
Government of Pakistan

Jordan Tappero, M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Program Officer, Neglected 

Tropical Diseases
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

Dyann Wirth, Ph.D., M.A.
Professor of Immunology and 

Infectious Diseases
Harvard School of Public Health

Osvaldo Hurtado 
Former President of Ecuador

Torquato Jardim 
Former Justice of the Superior 
Electoral Tribunal of Brazil

Serena Joseph-Harris 
Former High Commissioner for the 
Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 
to the United Kingdom

Luis Alberto Lacalle 
Former President of Uruguay

Samuel Lewis 
Former Vice President of Panama

Jennie K. Lincoln  
(Executive Secretary) 
Senior Advisor for Latin America 
and the Caribbean, The Carter 
Center

John Maisto 
Former U.S. Ambassador to the 
Organization of American States

John Manley 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Canada

Carlos Mesa 
Former President of Bolivia

Andrés Pastrana 
Former President of Colombia

Sergio Ramirez 
Former Vice President of Nicaragua

Sir Ronald Sanders 
Member of the Commonwealth 
Eminent Persons Group 
2010–2011

Bruno Stagno 
Former Foreign Minister of 
Costa Rica

Eduardo Stein 
Former Vice President of 
Guatemala

Martín Torrijos 
Former President of Panama

Fernando Tuesta Soldevilla 
Former Director, National Office of 
Electoral Processes, Peru

Joaquín Villalobos 
Founder of the Farabundo Marti 
National Liberation Front, 
Signatory of the Peace Agreements 
of El Salvador in 1992

The Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter comprises former presidents, prime 
ministers, and cabinet ministers from the Western Hemisphere who seek to increase the visibility 
of the tenets of the charter and to prevent democratic tensions from erupting into crises.

Diego Abente Brun 
Former Minister of Justice and 
Labor of Paraguay

Mariclaire Acosta 
Former Undersecretary of Foreign 
Relations for Human Rights and 
Democracy of Mexico

Nicolás Ardito Barletta 
Former President of Panama

Carlos Ayala Corao 
Former President, Inter-American 
Commission on Human Rights

Cecilia Blondet 
Former Minister for the 
Advancement of Women and 
Human Development of Peru

Catalina Botero Marino 
Former Special Rapporteur 
for Freedom of Expression for 
Inter-American Commission on 
Human Rights

Humberto de la Calle 
Former Vice President 
of Colombia

Santiago Canton 
Former Director of RFK Partners 
for Human Rights for Robert F. 
Kennedy Center for Justice and 
Human Rights

Fernando Henrique Cardoso 
Former President of Brazil

Jimmy Carter 
Former President of the 
United States of America

Jorge Castañeda 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Mexico

Joe Clark 
Former Prime Minister of Canada

Santiago Corcuera 
U.N. Rapporteur and Chair for 
Working Group on Enforced or 
Involuntary Disappearances

Alejandro Foxley 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Chile

Enrique Garcia 
Former Executive President  
of the Development Bank of  
Latin America

Diego García-Sayán 
Former Foreign Minister of Peru

César Gaviria 
Former President of Colombia

John Graham 
Chair Emeritus, Canadian 
Foundation for the Americas
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The Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for 
Mental Health Journalism Advisory Board

The Carter Center Mental Health Task Force
Previously chaired by former First Lady Rosalynn Carter, the 
Mental Health Task Force advises the Carter Center Mental 
Health Program on global and domestic work to decrease 
discriminatory behaviors resulting from stigma, advance 

Renato D. Alarcon, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Distinguished Emeritus Professor of 
Psychiatry, Mayo Clinic School of 
Medicine, Honorio Delgado Chair, 
Universidad Peruana Cayetano 
Heredia

William R. Beardslee, M.D. 
Director (Retired), Baer Prevention 
Initiatives, Boston Children’s 
Hospital

Pamela Collins, M.D., M.P.H. 
Professor of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Sciences, University of 
Washington

Benjamin G. Druss, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Rosalynn Carter Endowed 
Chair in Mental Health, 
Rollins School of Public Health, 
Emory University

Mary Jane England, M.D. 
Professor, Boston University School 
of Public Health

Rosa Gil, D.S.W. 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer, Comunilife Inc.

W. Rodney Hammond, Ph.D. 
Director (Retired), Division of 
Violence Prevention, Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention

Larke Huang, Ph.D. 
Senior Advisor (Retired), Office of 
the Administrator, SAMHSA

Ethleen Iron Cloud-Two 
Dogs, M.S. 
Program Director, Mental Health 
Project, Oglala Sioux Tribe

Nadine J. Kaslow, Ph.D., ABPP 
Professor and Chief Psychologist, 
Department of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Sciences, Emory 
University

Jennifer Olsen, D.Ph., M.P.H. 
Executive Director, Rosalynn Carter 
Institute for Caregivers

Ruth Perou, Ph.D. 
Deputy Associate Director, National 
Center on Birth Defects and 
Developmental Disabilities, U.S. 
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention

Sally Engelhard Pingree 
President, The S. Engelhard Center; 
Trustee, The Charles Engelhard 
Foundation

Shekhar Saxena, M.D., FRCPsych., 
D.A.B., M.R.C. 
Professor of Global Mental Health, 
Harvard T.H. Chan School of 
Public Health

Leslie Scallet, J.D. 
Vice President (Retired),  
The Lewin Group

Joel Slack 
President, Slack Consulting

Ex-Officio
Thomas H. Bornemann, Ed.D. 
Former Director, Carter Center 
Mental Health Program

Kathryn Cade , M.B.A. 
Vice Chair, Carter Center Board 
of Trustees

Gregory L. Fricchione, M.D. 
Associate Chief of Psychiatry, 
Massachusetts General Hospital

evidence-based behavioral health policy initiatives, and 
improve access to mental health promotion, substance abuse 
prevention, treatment, and supports for all. 

Advisory board members select fellows and serve as mentors 
who provide technical assistance and share professional 
contacts within their fields of expertise.

Jimmie Briggs 
Principal, Skoll Foundation; 
Contributing Writer, Vanity Fair

Caroline S. Clauss-Ehlers, Ph.D., 
ABPP 
Professor of Psychology, Long 
Island University, Brooklyn; 
Co-Founder and Co-Director, 
LIU Institute for Professional 
Development 

Benjamin G. Druss, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Rosalynn Carter Endowed Chair 
for Mental Health, Rollins School 
of Public Health, Emory University

Víctor García-Perdomo, Ph.D. 
Professor, School of 
Communication 
Universidad de La Sabana 

Katie Hawkins-Gaar 
Freelance Journalist and 
Consultant

Kortni Alston Lemon, Ph.D., 
M.B.A. 
Department Chair and Associate 
Professor for the Department of 
Communication, Art, and Design 
Gardner-Webb University

Bill Lichtenstein 
President, Lichtenstein 
Creative Media

Tori Murden McClure, M.Div., 
J.D., M.F.A. 
President, Spalding University

Bob Meyers 
President Emeritus, National 
Press Foundation

Ellen Mickiewicz, Ph.D. 
James R. Shepley Professor Emeritus 
of Public Policy Studies, Duke 
University

Arlene Morgan 
Assistant Dean, School of Media 
and Communication, Temple 
University

Deborah Wang 
Contributing Reporter, Editor, and 
Host, KUOW Public Radio

International Advisors
Saliha Afridi, Psy.D. 
Clinical Psychologist, Founder, 
and Managing Director, The 
LightHouse Arabia 
United Arab Emirates

Nick Bradshaw 
Director of Partnerships and 
Outreach, World Innovation 
Summit for Health (WISH) 
Qatar

Iman Ben Chaibah 
Founder, Sail Magazine and 
Publishing 
United Arab Emirates

Yahira R. Guzmán-Sabogal 
Professor of Psychiatry,  
Faculty of Medicine,  
Universidad de La Sabana 
Colombia

Áine O'Meara, M.S. 
Headline Programme Leader 
Ireland 

Leonard Stall 
Philanthropist; Chairman, 
Touchline 
United Arab Emirates

Justin Thomas, Ph.D. 
Associate Professor of 
Psychology, Zayed University 
United Arab Emirates
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Board of Councilors
The Board of Councilors is 
a leadership advisory group 
that promotes understanding 
of and support for the Carter 
Center’s mission. Members 
attend quarterly presentations 
and act as advocates for 
the Center.

Chair
Laura Turner Seydel
Captain Planet Foundation

Vice Chair
Clark Dean
Executive Managing Director, 

Transaction Sciences
Transwestern

Life Members
Miles Alexander
Kirkpatrick Townsend & Stockton

H. Inman Allen
Ivan Allen Company

Tricia Allen

Claire “Yum” Arnold
Leapfrog Services

W. Frank Barron Jr.

Frank J. Belatti
Equicorp Partners

Paula Lawton Bevington
Bevington Advisors

Elizabeth K. Blake

Arthur M. Blank
The Arthur M. Blank Family 

Foundation

Charles M. Brewer
Las Catalinas Holding Company

Martha Finn Brooks
Director, Bombardier, Jabil Circuit, 

Constellium, and CARE USA

Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
Byers Engineering Company

President Jimmy Carter

Dan T. Cathy
Chick-fil-A

Robert B. Colgin
The Social List of Atlanta, Georgia

Shan Cooper

Ann Wilson Cramer
Coxe Curry & Associates

A. W. “Bill” Dahlberg

F. T. “Tread” Davis Jr.

Walter W. Driver Jr.

L. Reade Fahs
National Vision

J. Rex Fuqua
Fuqua Capital Corporation

E. Alex Gregory
YKK Corporation of America

John B. Hardman, M.D.

Laura Hardman

Philip J. Hickey Jr.

Robert M. Holder Jr.
The RMH Group

W. Thomas Johnson

Ingrid Saunders Jones

James R. Lientz Jr.

Dennis P. Lockhart

James R. Margard

Robert H. McKinney

Mary S. Moore
The Cook’s Warehouse

Dorothy B. “Dot” Padgett

Shyam Reddy
BlueLinx Corporation

Gerald A. Rosenthal
Rosenthal, Levy, Simon, & Sosa

R.K. Sehgal

Dr. Lauren Speeth
The Elfenworks Foundation

Robert E. Turner III
Turner Enterprises

Robert A. Yellowlees

Limited Term Members
Raydean M. Acevedo
President and CEO
Research Management Consultants

Mark C. Adams
Managing Director
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

Brad L. Alexander
Impact Public Affairs

David Allman
Founder and Chairman
Regent Partners

Gavin S. Appleby

Gregory T. Baranco
President
Baranco Automotive Group

Thomas A. Barrow III

Dr. Mark R. Bell II
Head of Family Office Services and 

Private Capital
Balentine

Daniel Berman
Founder, Chairman and CEO
PharmaCentra

Justin Berman
Co-Founder and Co-Chairman
Cresset Capital

J. Veronica Biggins
Managing Director
Diversified Search

Becky Blalock
Managing Partner
Advisory Capital

Theodore I. Blum
Managing Shareholder
Greenberg Traurig

Sue Boehlke
President and Managing Director
Informa Tech

Philip P. Bolton
Founder and Publisher Emeritus
Global Atlanta

Emmet Bondurant
Partner
Bondurant, Mixson & Elmore

Dr. Raphael Bostic
President and CEO
Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta

Amanda Brown-Olmstead
President and CEO
A. Brown-Olmstead Associates

Dr. Annie Hunt Burriss

Cristina E. Carrell
Owner
Mountain Creek Farm

Amy Carter

Chip and Becky Carter

Jack and Elizabeth Carter

James and Sally Carter

Hon. Jason and Kate Carter

Jeff Carter

Josh and Sarah Carter

Sarah Carter, Ph.D.,  
and Brendan Murphy, Ph.D.

Andrew T. Cathy
CEO
Chick-fil-A

Dr. Louis Centofanti
President
Perma-Fix Environmental Services

Pedro Cherry
President and CEO
Atlanta Gas Light Company

James J. Childre Jr.
President
Childre Ford

John and Mirabai Chuldenko

Shawntel Hebert Clark
Managing Attorney, Employment
Vanderlande

Cameron Clayton
CEO
EasyPark Group

Hon. Terry L. Coleman
Principal
Coleman Consulting

Kevin M. Collins
President
Invesco Mortgage Capital

Colin Connolly
President and CEO
Cousins Properties

Stuart Countess
Chief Operating Officer and 

Senior VP
Kia Georgia

Joel H. Cowan
President
Habersham & Cowan

David D. Cummings
Founder
Atlanta Tech Village

Lacy Curry
Director
Piedmont Fayette Hospital

Erroll B. Davis Jr.

Cynthia N. Day
President and CEO
Citizens Trust Bank

David H. Dixon
Senior Managing Partner
OneStreet Residential

Brendan Doherty
Big & Chewy

Paul D. Donahue
Chairman and CEO
Genuine Parts Company

Carolyn Donnelly
Managing Director, Marketing and 

Strategic Priorities
CIBC Private Wealth Management

Michael S. Donnelly
Atlanta Regional President
Wells Fargo of Georgia

Michael P. Doss
President and CEO
Graphic Packaging Holding 

Company

Karen I. Duckett
Owner and CEO
Duckett Design Group

M. Michael Egan

Johanna W. Ellis-Reisinger

Diana Ellsworth
Partner
McKinsey & Company

Jimmy Etheredge
CEO, North America
Accenture

Michael P. Fahey
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Board of Councilors
Duriya Farooqui
Director
Intercontinental Exchange, and 

International Hotels Group

Hon. R. Keegan Federal Jr.
Founder and Senior Partner
The Federal Firm

Henry David Fellows Jr.
Partner
Fellows LaBriola

R. Fenton-May, Ph.D.
Chairman and CEO
CarrierWeb USA

Christian Fischer
President and CEO
Georgia-Pacific

Dr. Candace Steele Flippin

Pegi Follachio
Follachio & Associates

Ann G. Fort
Partner
Eversheds Sutherland

Shalya Forté
Senior Director of Revenue, East
SiriusXM

Emma Foulkes
Partner
Collective Wealth Partners

Dr. Janine Franco
The Village Vets of Decatur

Chanel H. Frazier
Managing Director
BlackRock Atlanta Innovation Hub

Grace Fricks
President and CEO
Access to Capital for Entrepreneurs

Patricia A. Fritz
Vice President of Corporate Affairs
UCB

Praveen Ghanta
Founder and CEO
fraction.work

Taylor Glover
President and CEO
Turner Enterprises

Kevin Gooch
Partner
Holland & Knight

Daniel L. Gordon
Principal
Jabian Consulting

Kevin Greiner
President and CEO
Gas South

James S. Grien
President and CEO
TM Capital Corp.

Bruce C. Gunter
Civitas Housing Group

Julie Ison Haley
CEO and Co-Founder
Edge Solutions

Nancy D. Halwig

Cynthia Hardy
CEO and Founder
Pivot Global Partners

Thomas J. Harrold Jr.
Member
Miller & Martin

Ellen Weaver Hartman
Hartman Public Relations

David B. Hartnett
Chief Economic Development 

Officer
Metro Atlanta Chamber

Aziz Hashim
Founder and Managing Partner
NRD Capital

Greg K. Hecht
Partner
Hecht Walker Jordan

Babette Henagan
Managing Partner
Linx Partners

Glenn P. Hendrix
Partner
Arnall, Golden, Gregory

Thomas M. Hensley
President
Fieldale Farms Corporation

Jeff Hilimire
CEO
Dragon Army

John R. Holder
Chairman
Holder Properties

Philip E. Holladay Jr.

Bob Hope
Chairman
Hope Beckham Espinosa

Julia Houston
Chief Strategy and Marketing 

Officer
Equifax

Susan Hrib
Co-Founder and CEO
Atlanta Music Fund

Travis D. Hughes
Founder and Broker in Charge
Hughes Investment Partners

Farley A. Hunter
F. A. Hunter & Associates

Christine Hurtsellers
CEO
Voya Investment Management

R. William “Bill” Ide III

Henna Inam
CEO
Transformational Leadership

Sara Irvani
CEO
Okabashi Brands

Jacqueline Jenna

Terri Jondahl
CEO
CAB Worldwide

Stanley S. Jones
Partner
Nelson Mullins Riley & 

Scarborough

Paul Q. Judge, Ph.D.
Founder
Judge Ventures

Nancy Juneau
CEO
Juneau Construction

Wab Kadaba
Partner
Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton

Murad R. Karimi
Founder and CEO
Mosaic Management

Mr. Subodh Karnik
Chairman and CEO
ManaAir and ExpressJet Airlines

Katharine Kelley
President and CEO
Green Street Properties

Jay Kelly
Director
Jay Kelly Interactive Design

Soumaya Khalifa
President and CEO
Khalifa Consulting

Joe E. Kiani
CEO and Chairman of the Board
Masimo Corporation

David F. Kirkpatrick
Vice President
IMG College Licensing

Linda A. Klein
Senior Managing Shareholder
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, 

Caldwell & Berkowitz

Kerry W. Kohnen

Sue Kolloru
Chief Strategy Officer
Pearson

Sonjui L. Kumar
Partner
KPPB Law

James B. Langford Jr.
President
FC Solutions

Allegra Lawrence-Hardy
Partner
Lawrence & Bundy

L. Dave Lentz
Chief Operating Officer
Fisher & Phillips

Mitchell B. Lewis

William H. Linginfelter
Area President, Georgia and  

South Carolina
Regions Bank

Russ Lipari
President
Validus Group

David Llewellyn
Law Office of David J. Llewellyn

Stephen Lockyer
President
Confederation Capital Partners

Hon. Ronnie Mabra
Founder and Managing Partner
The Mabra Law Firm

Saadia Madsbjerg
President
The Coca-Cola Foundation

Simon R. Malko
Managing Partner
Morris, Manning & Martin

Adam Malone
Partner
Malone Law

Ellen C. Marks

James Marlow
President
Southface Institute

Keith W. Mason
Principal
KWM Capital Management

Darrell J. Mays
Managing Partner
Navigation Capital Partners

Dominic C. Mazzone
Managing Director
Mazzone & Associates

Barry C. McCarthy
President and CEO
Deluxe Corporation

Michael A. McCarthy
Director of Research and Principal
Shapiro Capital Management

Wade F. McKenzie
President
PhyTest

Roderick M. McLean
Vice President and General 

Manager
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
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Daniel McMorrow
General Manager
D-Mac Industries

Dr. Russell Medford
Founder and CEO
Covanos

Hon. Harold Melton
Partner
Troutman Pepper Hamilton 

Sanders

Natalia Migal
Chief Risk Officer US Region
DLL

D. Kris Miller
President
Ackerman & Co.

James T. Mills Jr.

Patricia Edenfield Mitchell
Pat Mitchell Media

Joseph C. Montgomery

C. David Moody Jr.
President and CEO
C.D. Moody Construction 

Company

Ralph R. Morrison
Of Counsel
Djuric Spratt

Emory L. Morsberger
Principal
Morsberger Revitalization

Amol S. Naik
Founder and CEO
Resurgens Strategies

Richard S. Novack
Senior Vice President, U.S. Markets
Cigna

Colleen Nunn

Hon. Samuel S. Olens
Counsel
Dentons US

Daniel E. O’Neill
President
O’Neill Management Consulting

Sanjay Parekh
Entrepreneur and Co-Founder
Occasional Wraps and  

Edgewise Media

Sunny K. Park

Greg Parker
Founder
Parker’s Corporation

William C. Pate
President and CEO
Atlanta Convention and  

Visitors Bureau

Frank Patterson
President
Trilith Studios

Fred Perpall
CEO
The Beck Group

Egbert L. J. Perry
Chairman and CEO
The Integral Group

Jason Perry
Office Managing Partner
Grant Thornton

C. Mark Pirrung
CEO
Atlanta Beverage Company

Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer, 
Ph.D.

Chairman and CEO
Bowdon Manufacturing Company

Helen Probst Mills
Co-Founder
New Rural Project

Erica Qualls-Battey
Area General Manager
Atlanta Marriott Marquis

William T. Ratliff III
Chairman
New South Federal Savings Bank

Dr. Pravin Reddy
Reddy Aesthetic Institute

Jim Reed
President
YKK Corporation of America

Sarah and Stephen Reynolds

Matt Richburg, Ph.D.
Managing Partner
Ampersand Leadership Group

Joy Rohadfox
CEO and President
Rohadfox Construction  

Control Services

Jean R. Rollins
President
The C Three Group

H. Jerome Russell Jr.
President
H. J. Russell & Company

Ravi Saligram

D. Jack Sawyer Jr.
Managing Director
Cresset Capital

Jackie Saylor
Partner
The Saylor Law Firm

Thomas R. Saylor

David W. Scheible

Jennifer L. Scully
President and CEO
Clinical Resources

Kashi Sehgal
Founder and CEO
Retaaza

Mindy Selig
Senior Vice President
Selig Enterprises

Neeli G. Shah, Esq.
The Law Offices of Neeli Shah

Sachin Shailendra
President
SG Contracting

William M. Sharp Sr.
Partner
Holland & Knight

Nzinga Shaw

Jane E. Shivers
Shivers Consulting

Fahim Siddiqui
Sr. Vice President of Information 

Technology
The Home Depot

Jim Simpson
President, Georgia Region
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan

Jewel Burks Solomon
Managing Partner
Collab Capital

Laurie Speed
Speed + King Law Firm

Ann G. Stallard

William J. Stanley III
Principal
Stanley, Love-Stanley

Richard E. “Ricky” Steele Jr.
Chief Development Officer
Talent 360 Solutions
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